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ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE
on
CONSUMER PROTECTION AND
TOXIC MATERIALS
Sally Tanner, Chairwoman

0

Int erim Bearing
BKK Hazardous Waste Landfill

0
West Covina city Ball
Council Chambers
October 10, 1984

CHAIRWOMAN SALLY TANNER:
gentlemen.

Good morning ladies and

This is a hearing of the Assembly Committee on

Consumer Protection and Toxic Materials.
Tanner.

I'm Assemblywoman Sally

I'd like to introduce Assemblyman Frank Hill to my

Assemblyman Bill Lancaster to his left.

left~

There will be other

members of the committee who will arrive -- they're flying in and
they will arrive sometime during the morning.
The subject of our hearing today is the BKK Landfill in
West Covina.

The landfill has become increasingly controversial

over the past several years.

The controversy has increased as

new information on the site has come to light that has raised
questions concerning its safety and integrity.

The concern of

the citizens of West Covina, of course, deepened greatly when
migrating gas from the landfill forced the evacuation of 21
families who live along the southern border.
Today we will be reviewing recent events and findings at
the landfill.

The issues to be examined include:

*Air emissions of volatile organic chemicals, such as
vinyl chloride from the landfill.

Sometimes these air

emissions exceed standards that the Air Resources Board
has established.
*Control problems arising from methane gas, which is
produced by the decomposition of solid wastes.
*The leaching of liquids containing hazardous
constituents from the landfill.
*The "501" hearing process.

As you may know, the

function of a "501" hearing is to determine if an
existing Class I hazardous waste disposal site "may
present an imminent and substantial endangerment to
health and the environment."
It should be noted that because of the environmental
problems at the landfill, the BKK Corporation has agreed with the
EPA and the state department of Health Services that after
November 30, no more hazardous wastes will be disposed of at the
West Covina Landfill.

After that date, the facility will accept

only Class II solid waste.
This policy will ensure that the amount of hazardous
waste in the landfill does not increase.

It leaves us, however,

with the problems mentioned above: air emissions of volatile
organics; the migration of natural gas, together with entrained
volatile organics; and leachate which, unless controlled, may
n~ve

off-site and contaminate the surrounding groundwater basin.
This hearing is intended to gather information on what

is known about the BKK Landfill; what information remains to be
2

0
developed; and what the prognosis for the future is.

The key

questions from this Committee's viewpoint are:
*Does the landfill now, or will it in the future, pose a
danger to citizens of the City of West Covina and/or to
the environment?

0

*What measures should be taken to eliminate this danger
or to ensure that it does not arise?

•

*Is existing law adequate to ensure the protection of
the public health and the environment from the types of
dangers posed by Class I landfills, like the BKK
Landfill?
This committee intends to, from this hearing, gather
information to develop legislation, hopefully, that will prevent
this kind of occurrence in other areas.

And we are going to try

to attempt to mitigate the problems, or see how the problems can
be mitigated that we find here in West Covina.
We have a very full agenda.
to keep their testimony short.

We are asking the witnesses

We are going to try to finish; we

will have a morning session, we'll break for lunch, and we have
to finish before 4:00.

There are people who have to catch planes

and so we are going to break before 4:00.
I see Bob Bacon here.

Bob, thank you for being here.

You will be a witness this afternoon, is that right?
MAYOR ROBERT L. BACON:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

This morning.

Oh, this morning?

The BKK Corporation has agreed to come and be witness
here this morning and they have agreed to explain to us what
3

their plans are, what they are doing, what their plans are for
the

future~

and so if we have questions, we can ask of the

representative of BKK any questions we choose.

I will ask that

we remember that this is an Assembly committee hearing, and we
are attempting to develop legislation and we're going to go about
this in a very serious way.

Ron Gastellum, who is the General

Counsel for BKK Corporation, will be our first witness.

Mr.

Gastellurn.
MR.RON GASTELLUM:

I'm very pleased to be here,

Assemblywoman Tanner and members of the committee and members of
the Legislature.

Would you give me an idea of how much time you

want to limit the testimony to?
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Well, we are giving the local

residents, combined (aside) What would you say, about and hour
and a half of time?
MR. ARNIE PETERS:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Two hours.
Or more.

Could you attempt to cover

your testimony within 30 to 45 minutes?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Certainly.

I'd like to give you an initial presentation on some of
the regulatory history.

I would like to follow that with an

explanation of what we propose to do with the site, say within
the next six months, but beyond in terms of preventive mitigation
type measures.

And I'd like to answer your questions.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I would like to interrupt you.

sorry.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Now

Go ahead.
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I'm

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I meant to invite Assemblyman Hill

and Assemblyman Lancaster to make a statement if they wish.

I'm

sorry.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Shall I step down?

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

No, it'll be fine.

ASSEMBLYMAN BILL LANCASTER:

We get to be introduced

twice that way.
ASSEMBLYMAN FRANK HILL:
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Do you want me to go first?
Go ahead, Frank.

I had a statement if anybody would

like to pick up a copy of that.

I won't read that, I'll just

thank Sally for holding the committee hearing and again reiterate
that the direction of the thrust that we hope to go towards is
towards some positive legislation towards the future and how we
look forward as opposed to looking backward.
There are four things that I'm primarily interested in.
The first one is the "SOl'' hearing, and what I perceive
as the pressing need for a "SOl" hearing.

And I'd specifically

like to hear from the Department of Health Services about what I
see as an inconsistency on having people out of their homes
because of a health risk and at the same time not willing to hold
a "SOl" hearing to establish whether or not there's a health
risk.

And I'd like to hear from them on that.
I'm interested in the comments about the site

characterization study and how that's progressing and, I think,
the need for that to be completed.

5

I'm also interested in Health Services -- about their
staffing needs.

I know when I voted on an override of the

Governor's veto I was hearing that "we have the staff that we
need, we're adequately

staffed~"

and yet, I'm hearing from the

meetings recently this week, or last week, in the City of West
Covina that the DOHS is saying that they do need staff.
want to find out just where they are.

And I

I don't think we can

afford to endanger public health with a lack of resources.
And then finally, I'm interested in some legislation to
come up with a lead agency, once and for all.

I don't think we

can continue to have a situation where the Department of Health
Services is pointing the finger at the Air Quality Management
Board, who points a finger at the Water Control Board, who points
a finger at the Solid Waste Management Board, and they're all
looking at the EPA.

And I think that we need to have a lead

agency to, once and for all, oversee and to take the
responsibility in the toxics area.
So I'm looking forward to the hearing.
willingness of BKK to be here.

I appreciate the

I know that it was not an easy

decision, and I think it takes some courage, and I appreciate
your willingness to come here and testify and answer some
questions.

And I look forward, from the audience, to some

positive and constructive suggestions on legislatively how to go
forth from here.
Thank you, Sally.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Lancaster.
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Well, thank you very much.

I,

first of all, would like to offer my thanks to the Chairperson of

0

the Consumer Protection and Toxic Materials Committee.

I am not

personally a member of this committee; so therefore, I consider
it an honor to be your guest and I appreciate that very much.

0

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
we are.

I'd like to kind of frame where

First of all, this meeting is important, obviously, and

the fact of the matter of the positive step that was taken
regarding the cutoff date of December 1st or after November 30th,
that no longer will BKK be receiving any toxic waste materials of
any kind, as I understand this.
positive step.

That, I think, is a particularly

And the fact that we are in the process of making

every effort to clean out a couple of very bad sites; the McColl
site, the Stringfellow site.

And probably they were all slated

to come to BKK, which I don't think was very good for all of us;
so therefore, that can no longer happen, which I think is very
positive.
But when you do that, you raise some very serious
questions that I think need to be answered, because the "501"
process is a process that deals with toxic waste only.
now shifting BKK back to the Class II site facility.

And we're
So

therefore, the "501" hearing process -- does it apply or does it
not apply?

I think these questions need to be answered.

Plus the fact that you've run, now, into the question of
jurisdiction.

Jurisdictional questions.

the jurisdiction lie?

Just exactly where does

Obviously, there's health considerations
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and monitoring, things of this nature that certain agencies have
responsibility for.

Then you have certain

responsibiliti~s

that

now come out of the county, I presume, if it's a Class II and not
a Class I, if the Class I is lifted totally from that property.
So these are the kinds of things that we need to really
be kind of seeking and searching to find out; just exactly where
the responsibility will be if it's a Class II site; how it's
going to be monitored; how it's going to be inspected.

All of

these things are part and parcel of exactly where we are today,
because the BKK facility will shift to a Class II site as of
December 1.

And therefore, we have to consider that and consider

what the ramifications of that action are.
So I appreciate the opportunity, again, Sally, of being
here today, and thank you so much for inviting me.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you.

Mr. Gastellum.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Thank you.

I appreciate those comments

and I'll keep them in mind as I go through my presentation.
Let me start, if I may, back in June of 1983
I gave a similar presentation to the City of West Covina
night before last in conjunction with a petition to construct a
turbine generator that would convert the methane gas that we have
at the landfill into electrical energy.

Those members of the

council who are among the audience who heard the presentation,
please indulge me for a moment.
But beginning in June of 1983, the situation at BKK
Landfill dramatically changed.

In June of 1983, the
8

Environmental Protection agency, as part of their national
program, inspected the BKK Landfill for compliance with EPA
groundwater monitoring standards, standards with respect to
disposable and ignitable and reactive wastes, and bulk liquid
disposal.

These are priority items for EPA on a national basis.

Incidentally, about 70 to 80 percent of the facilities they
inspected failed the compliance standards.
Casmalia was among them.

BKK was among them.

Kettleman was among them.

Most of the facilities in California did not comply with
EPA standards.

The reason was that there really was no serious

attempt from a regulatory standpoint to strictly comply with EPA
standards.

California, for a long time, has been in front of the

Environmental Protection agency in terms of the stringency of the
standards imposed upon land disposal facilities.

Within the past

five years, EPA has made this leapfrog over the State of
California and become more specific in their regulations.
Within the past year now, the State of California is
about to perhaps leapfrog over the EPA.

We have many regulations

in the Department of Health Services and the State Water
Resources Control Board that are very specific and in many cases,
more stringent than EPA regulations.

The telling note was that

in June of '83, the EPA inspector found violations but the
Department of Health Services inspector did not find violations .
There really had been no serious attempt by facilities
such as ours to comply with the EPA standards, because it was
deemed sufficient to comply with state standards.

The law is

that state standards during this interim status shall be
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substantially equivalent to the federal standards, and we were
perhaps asleep in believing that our standards were substantially
equivalent.

That was the hallmark decision

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Gastellum, you're saying that

actually the state standards were not equivalent to the EPA
standards?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, it was a matter of argument.

would argue that they were substantially equivalent.

We

The State

of California could have argued that their standards were
substantially equivalent, but they chose not to.

They chose to

take the position that the EPA standards were the standards;
absolute conformance with those standards was required.

And if

you were not in conformance you were subject to a regulatory
action.
DOHS initiated regulatory action against the BKK
Landfill.

They initiated regulatory actions against Casmalia and

Kettleman and other facilities as well.

The Deukmejian

Administration -- this isn't intended to be a political statement
at all -- is very enforcement oriented.

And the enforcement

decision was made by the Administration that they would enforce
those standards and impose penalties, · et cetera, and that would
be their position.

So rather than fighting about -- or arguing

about specific standards, they simply said, "Those are the
standards.

You shall comply.

CHAIRWO~~N

TANNER:

And if you don't, it's $25,000."
The state is required -- every state

is required to meet the standards of EPA.
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Isn't that correct?

MR. GASTELLUM:

They are required to be substantially

equivalent during interim status (inaudible).
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, they can always be stronger.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:
equivalent.

Either stronger or equivalent to.

Stronger, yes.

They can't be less than substantially

What I'm trying to say here is there really has not

been a lot of debate about whether the previous standards were
substantially equivalent.

The decision was made that EPA

standards would be the base, and that from that base the
Administration would go forward and develop more stringent
standards in many cases.

And so the regulations that are now

pending in the Office of Administrative Law are, in most cases,
more stringent than EPA standards.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
about that.

Well, you know I'm still concerned

What does "substantially equivalent" mean?

MR. GASTELLUM:

Mrs. Tanner, I don't know what

substantially equivalent means.

I don't think that that is

something that is well defined.

I think that you look at a

practice or a standard in a state, you compare that to an EPA
standard, and then the lawyers or the administrators argue about
whether it's substantially equivalent.

The law just says

substantially equivalent.
Now, what we did do is

subsequently EPA asserted

jurisdiction, and said, "State, we are going to also serve
jurisdiction.

We're going to cite BKK for not complying with

these standards."

We were afraid of having too many actors
11

regulating us.

We knew that DOHS was going to regulate us, so we

challenged the EPA jurisdiction.

We said, "The law says as long

as you're substantially equivalent and the DOHS is enforcing the
law, you don't have jurisdiction."

Well, the EPA administrative

officer that heard the case agreed with us, that as long as the
state was administering the law, then the state should be allowed
to do it and EPA didn't have jurisdiction.
This was under RCRA.

EPA has appealed that to the

administrator and that is now pending.

So EPA has really not had

a strong regulatory role directly under RCRA during the past
year.

And that's primarily because we challenged their

jurisdiction.

So in that one instance, an administrative law

judge made the determination that the state enforcement program
was sufficient.
EPA has subsequently found other provisions to assert
jurisdiction under Section 16 of CERCLA.

We entered into a

consent agreement with them under Section 3032 of RCRA.
never intended to not cooperate with EPA.
resources~

We have

They have valuable

they are a player, and so that process has gone on.

But it has been legally and practically a mixed bag with
a lot o.f mixed signals throughout this process.
only at this site, but at all sites.
trying to cooperate.

And I think not

Let me assure you, they're

They are working very hard in coordinating.

A lot of staff people are

involved~

a lot of different issues to

address.
I'm getting sidetracked here, but I
your question.
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hop~

I've addressed

So with that effort to impose these restrictions on BKK
Landfill, it became very apparent to us that it wasn't a legal
battle anymore.

What we needed to do was to demonstrate

compliance with the EPA standards.

So on December 20th of 1983,

we entered into an agreement with the Department of Health
Services, and that agreement was intended to lay out a format for
meeting the EPA standards and whatever other standards the DOHS

•

might want to impose •
If you saw the documents, I think you'd be astounded at
how broad it is and how undefined it is.

"You shall -- under

'Site Characterization' --you shall put in groundwater
monitoring."

Well, for those of us, and I'm sure many of you,

who are beginning to become familiar with this field -- and Arnie
Peters has just smiled at me -- what is groundwater monitoring?
What is site characterization?
holes?

How deep do you drill?

How many

It's an enormously complex subject.
And as you go through the record of what is currently

BKK Landfill, in terms of site characterization alone, I think,
again, you'll be astounded at the number of twists and turns.
Twists and turns that aren't necessarily as a result of any
particular cause.
agree with you.

BKK, in some instances, might say, "We don't
That's not the right way to go because our

consultants say this is the way to do it."
this is the way to do it."

EPA might say, "Well,

But there is no standard.

What I'm

trying to say precisely is, there are no standards for doing a
site characterization.

It is an ad hoc process.

That is what

has occurred at BRK Landfill, and that is what has been so
frustrating.
13

The Department of Health Services, when they entered
into this arrangement, did not have regulations pertaining to
site characterization.

The Department of Health Services has

nothing to do with classifying site and Class I facilities.
Regional Water Quality Board does that.

The

The state Water

Resources Control Board, in their regulations, established
criteria for classification of Class I and Class II.

So we had

an agency that was directing a site characterization without
standards and really no experience.

Well intentioned, but that

was •.•
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You're saying that the Department of

Health Services has no standards for site characterization?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Correct.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

The Regional Quality Board has

criteria but no standards?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Actually, the Regional Quality Board has

more experience but no specific regulations or standards on what
we might call a site characterization.

They have done, to my

knowledge, a number of site characterization type activities.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right.

When they ask for -- say

they ask BKK to perform a site characterization, do they give you
a list of things that they want you to follow?
MR. GASTELLUM:

They did not.

They could, but there are

regulations ••.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

They did not.

MR. GASTELLUM:

for them to use as the basis for

that.

14

0
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So you just -- they say we need a

site characterization, and request that of you.

0

And then you

just assume that whatever you feel, or your consultants or your
-- whoever they are -- experts -- determine is a proper site
characterization, that's what you do.

0

MR. GASTELLUM:

Is that the way it works?

Actually, it's more of a matter of

negotiation and agreement.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

•

MR. GASTELLUM:

Between •••

Between technical people •••

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Between technical people.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

water •••

I see.

Our geologists, their geologists, would

sit down and try and come to agreement as to what is the best way
to approach this site characterization.
overly critical of the process.

I'm not trying to be

I'm just trying to say that it

is a more complex and difficult process because there is no
particular road map that's available for anybody to just go out
and do a site characterization.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Madam Chair.

Yes, Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

There are many, many landfill

facilities within the County of Los Angeles and the State of
California.

Now, there have been all kinds of studies made about

the characterization of the ground where these facilities have
been allowed a permit for II, and in your case, a permit for
Class I.

I find it very difficult to follow your comment about

15

BKK's inability to fathom what is needed for a site
characterization study of the site, when we have it going on all
the time.
I'd appreciate very much if you'd elaborate a little
more, because one of the things I noticed in the paper this
morning -- correct me if the paper is not correct because, you
know, papers are papers -- but the fact of the matter is that the
comments that you made before the council was that you are
shifting your resources to controlling the problem -- I think
that's the best way to describe it -- and away from the site
characterization study.
The State Department of Health Services, as I understand
it, maintains that a site characterization study or negotiation
must continue.

And I find it difficult to understand why this

can't be done, why the site characterization study cannot be
completed to the satisfaction of the agencies.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, I guess what I'm trying to say,

and not getting my point across, is that a site characterization
is not something you can put your hand on very easily.
experience, certainly, in other landfills.
at BRK Landfill.

There is

There is experience

There are volumes of reports and studies that

have been done at BKK Landfill prior to what has occurred
recently.

All of that is technical information that people can

build upon to try to understand this particular site.
The question before us now is what kind of additional
information is needed to do the job that is needed.
have to do first, we think, is to define:
16

What you

what job do we need to

do now if we're not going after a new permit to dispose of
hazardous waste?

0

And the standard under EPA regulations is that

you have to demonstrate that there is no migration of waste at
any time in the future from your facility, and that you have to
have natural containment to do that.

If that is the standard,

then you would have to have a site characterization that is going
to satisfy everybody that there is natural containment to do that
job.

We are not going to try and do that job.
We are saying something different.

be contained.
do that?

The wastes have to

There is no question about that.

Do you have to study every ridge?

every zone to be able to do that?

But how do you

Do you have to study

Or do you put in remedial

measures -- dams here, pipes there, wells therei or do you take
all the liquid out -- to remove the hazard?

What we're saying

that we're going to try and do is a combination of all of them.
We're going to take the
Excuse me.

I think you have a question.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Well yes, because I keep getting

back to the basic point that I have a problem in understanding,
and that is -- For example, you're talking about water quality
and things of this nature.

A geological study of the terrain

involved, frankly, has got to be done.
done on the total site.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Is that correct?
No sir, I think that's incorrect.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
because I'd like to know.

Evidently it has not been

Okay, well fine, correct me,

You have done a geological study that

satisfies the department?
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MR. GASTELLUM:

At different points in time we have done

geological studies that satisfied them.

Today, if we've done a

geological study that satisfies the department to continue to
take hazardous wastes, the answer is no.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Okay.

We're now shifting to a

Class II, but the problem with your facility is that you still
have a tremendous amount of hazardous waste within the facility.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

So then does that lead to the

conclusion that the characterization study of the site ought to
be dealing in the area of hazardous waste and not in the area of
Class II?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

All right.

So therefore, the

Department of Health Services is saying -- I take it they're
that the requirement is still

saying, by the newspaper article

there for this study of that ground because of the hazardous
material that's in the ground.
MR. GASTELLUM:

That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Okay.

We're not disputing that.

ASSEMBLYMAN I,ANCASTER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

You're not what?

We are not disputing that.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Okay.

But you're saying you

don't have a standard in order to accomplish that goal.
what you're saying to us?
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Is that

MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, I'm saying that that has been the

cause of the rather lengthy site characterization study that has
been so frustrating to so many people.

What I'm saying now is,

now that the emphasis has changed, site characterization will
indeed continue, but it will be an incident to designing
mitigation measures to satisfy the regulatory agencies to make
sure that the wastes don't move.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Such as pumping, things of this

nature.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Recirculation, recycling,

whatever you're doing.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Where do you put your pumps, where do

you put your barriers; how much liquid do you take out, how do
you treat it.

And to arrive at those decisions, certainly site

characterization does have to continue to some extent.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So the question is, how much do you

need to know about the site so that you can control the waste
that's in the site?
MR. GASTELLUM:

That's correct.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

That's the question.

Mr. Hill.

Now, I wouldn't represent to you tha.t

the agencies are satisfied at this point that sufficient site
characterization has been completed to even agree on the
mitigation measures.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:
question.

I've got, you know, even a more basic

And I'm not trying to set you up, but I wonder about
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the appropriateness of BKK itself doing the site characterization
study.

Is that the way that it's done under landfill?

Should it

-- why not the Department of Health Services or a different
agency
MR. GASTELLUM:
Hill.

I think that's a fair question, Mr.

We wrestled with that question early on.

We made a

proposal to the Department of Health Services, for example, in
writing over a year ago.

We said, "we will pay for whatever

consultant you want to hire to direct the site characterization.
We'll pay.

You pick 'em, and we'll be satisfied."

turned us down.

They have their own reasons, and I can't presume

to know all their reasons.
that time.
process.

And they

So it was unacceptable to them at

We've spent on the order of $3 million in this
It's a big landfill that may not be unusual for a big

landfill.

This is a new experience for a lot of us.

know what the answer is.

I don't

I do know that they do not have the

resources, themselves, so they would have to .••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

••• what department?

The Department of Health Services.

They

have key people, but there aren't enough people to do this big of
a job.

They would have to hire people from the private sector

just like we do.

And then they would have to rely on them just

like we do.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

This Department of Health

Services, is the one that you .•• the Department of Health Services
is the one that you asked and you said you'd provide the money
and they could hire the consultant, that's the one that turned
you down?
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MR. GASTELLUM:

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

And, of course, the question to

them, I guess, ought to be, Frank, why did they turn them down.
(inaudible)
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

0

All right.

Why don't you continue,

then?
MR. GASTELLUM:

•

I think I've pretty well described the

activities, there are a lot of agencies involved, Air Quality,
Regional Water Quality, a number of them have issued orders to us
and we're trying to comply with all of them.
meetings with all technical people.
we are going from here.
example:

There are weekly

They try to agree on where

It hasn't always worked smoothly.

For

In May of 1984, we submitted a plan to the agencies

where we are proposing to put in monitors and gas collection
wells in the area on the southern boundary of the landfill where
gas was later detected and homes had to be evacuated.
in May of '84.

This was

On July 17, 1984, gas was detected and you pretty

well know the story since then.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You planned on putting monitors in

in May?
MR. GASTELLUM:

We had a plan with a time table, and we

would have monitors in by June of '84.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Because we weren't authorized to.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Why didn't you go ahead with that?

By whom?

By the agencies.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

But, the state and the EPA •••
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MR. GASTELLUM:
plan~

The state and EPA.

We submitted the

we would really do anything at the landfill and at our risk

without agency approval.

It is (inaudible).

The government is

really running that landfill as much as we are.

Neither one of

us is particularly efficient at this time, I must say.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I wonder if we could have a copy of

that plan that you've submitted.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Certainly.

There were a number of

technical discussions leading up to that plan as well .

I have

with me today a gentleman who we have hired, a private
consultant, who is now (inaudible) and line filled gas, who's
been with us throughout that period, who can give you more
detailed answers on what our plans were, what we've done
subsequently, and perhaps I can make him available at this time

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I think that what we'd like to do is

move toward what are you doing now to control the
do you plan on doing in the future.

problems~

what

I think, I would say, a

great deal of background on what has happened.

I'm rather

surprised about some of the things you've mentioned.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Madam Chair, before we move in

that direction, I certainly agree that we should do that.

I

would like to ask one question that's been bothering me since the
briefing about (inaudible).
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Lancaster, go ahead.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I received, as we all did, a

briefing a few days ago on this whole question, and some of the
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maps that were shown to me showed leaching beyond the harrier on
the southwest side and the pool immediately south where, and I

0

understand that the permit requirement was that this be a
continuous pumping operation.

I understand, and correct me if

I'm wrong, that perhaps that's not been done, a recycling

0

operation.

Can you comment on that to me?

MR. GASTELLUM:
comment on that.

Yes.

Let me say that I can generally

That is a matter of a regulatory action by the

Regional Water Quality Board taking our (inaudible).
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Well, let's clarify that point,

because that is an important ingredient.

They are the one that

has to do the pumping, or BKK is the one that has to do the
pumping.

Are you saying that they were not really able to keep

up with the permit requirements on the pumping because of the
fact that the regulatory agencies did not give them permission;
they didn't know what to do; how to do it, standards weren't
developed and why was the pumping not continuously,

(inaudible) a

requirement of the permit?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, the pumping at Barrier II •••

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Okay.

This is the pool?
Mr. Lancaster, you obviously know

a lot more than those people about landfill at this time.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
than I want to about landfill.
MR. GASTELLUM:
within the past month.

I've learned more about landfill
(laughter).

(inaudible) in the history of Barrier II
There have been conflicting orders by

different regulatory agencies as to when to pump and not to pump.
Different agencies have different concerns.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Nhen not to pump?

When not to pump.

Correct.

The air

people, their concern about the effect of pumping and ...
ASSEMBLY~I

LANCASTER:

••• and air quality was

concerned?
MR. GASTELLUM:
experience, for example.
concerned.

Air quality, yes.

We had one

This is really what got the air people

On the south side of the landfill, when geologists

determine that there was a sand cell and layer which could
potentially allow off-site migration, the Department of Health
Services said, "This is a very serious situation: we need to
immediately install wells downgradient from that area and find
out the direction it is moving."

This was their position.

said, "You have to do that within a day or two."

They

The only way we

could physically do that was to rate the gas line that is a part
of the perimeter gas collection system.

So immediately, the air

people got involved and they said, "We want to be a part of all
these decisions."
board.

The DOHS said, "fine," and so they were now on

So in part of that process, we have gotten different

kinds of consideration of what you pump now, later, what you do
with it when you pump it out.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I understand that you're saying

that there's a tremendous amount of confusion on the part of BKK
and when they should or shouldn't pump as by the regulatory
agency.

My q u estion is, if failure to pump the pool to, for

example, that this, and maybe you're not qualified to give this
opinion, but the fact of the matter is, that without the
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characterization study, and failure to pump that pool, perhaps
created a circumstance where the seepage started down from there,
which is immediately north of some of the houses that were
affected, is it not?
MR. GASTELLUM:

I'm not qualified to respond to that.

I

think, though, _ I am qualified to -- there was a general
discussion about what is seepage; what is leaching and what are
we seeing, in terms of water quality.

•

Leachate is liquid that

passes through, or material that is examining.

We really haven't

seen evidence of that off-site, at least to my knowledge, what we
have seen is gas migration ••
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Where does vinyl chloride come

from, then?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, vinyl chloride (multiple voices)

is gas (inaudible).
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. GASTELLUM:

Gas (inaudible)

And up to about 2,000 parts per billion,

gas contaminates will become soluble in water and so you might
have water downstream of Barrier II that is coming in contact
with gas, where gas contaminates become part of the water, and it
shows up this contamination.

So when we look at the water

quality testing around the perimeter of the landfill, we are
invariably seeing volatile organic compounds.

So as far as I

know, under 2,000 parts per billion and they may go higher or
lower, and generally very, very low.

For example:

One of the

issues that was before the Water Quality Board on Monday, is
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2-8 parts per billion quantity of vinyl chloride in some
(inaudible) that is beyond the containment area but still
on-site.

Well, what does 2 parts per billion, or 8 parts per

billion mean, or 100 parts per billion.

These are the

issu~s

that we are grappling with and again, I tell you, there are no
standards.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

There are no standards for vinyl

chloride in water?
MR. GASTELLUM:
standards.

That's correct.

There are proposed

There are proposed drinking water standards.

The

proposed drinking water standards at 2 parts per billion which
you find in water everywhere, not necessarily in the water you
drink today, or maybe somebody else's water that has a report
that EPA has proposed regulations, they are not proposing that at
2 parts per billion, you couldn't drink water.
But, we're not talking about drinking water at the BKK
site, 100 feet from the BKK site, we're talking about drinking
water of about, well over a mile and a half from the BKK site.
It is not contaminated, and that is separated by another
landfill.

Industry Hills Landfill lies between BKK and drinking

water wells.

I don't know what that means.

But I do know that

Industry Hills contains all the same types of substances that BKK
Landfill contains, or is about the same.

All landfills, as you

well know, Mr. Lancaster, contain hazardous wastes.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I'm not arguing that point.

But

I'm trying to find out exactly what happened as far as the
requirement of pumping - that pumping did not continuously go on
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as it was supposed to go on, and just natural curiosity arises;
would this cause the problem out there?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, I can't say that.

In the opinion

of the experts, they decided that pumping was good then, or not
good, and we have to take their best advice and at this point,
we'll be evaluating whether that's good advice.

We can make our

experts available to answer those specific questions.
I would like to conclude by summarizing.

•

I'd like to

ask my assistant to bring the map of the landfill up and we'll
just show that to you.
In short, BKK Company has made a determination that
because of these uncertainties as to what the standards are,
because the standards are all evolving at this point, accepting
hazardous waste at BKK Landfill, is simply not in the best
interests of all of us.

The controversy, confusion, the monies

being spent is not being done to a productive end.
saying is, we know there's hazardous waste there.

So what we're
Now, we need

to take care of those essentially forever; how can we best do
that?

How can we best use our resources?
Let's say we had two issues to contend with.

gas.

One is

We believe that is the priority, because of the

contamination we've seen; we think there's gas contamination, and
that moves the most rapidly and easily through the earth.
There's no facility that can contain gas without a mechanical
device

anl~here,

so what we at the landfill with probes anywhere

where we show any gas migration, let's have a gas collection
system.

Let's connect that gas collection system to an energy
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turbine that converts the gas to energy, creates revenues,
revenues that are available for perpetual ma i ntenance for the
landfill, and when I say, perpetual, I mean certainly for the
next 30 years.

We can do a lot to 1nitigating problems and that's

what we're anticipating, the revenues to carry us through.
This is a grid.
collection wells.

A proposed grid of wells, gas

See here.

to our gas turbine.

We would connect this grid system

We would maintain it continuously throughout

the life of the facility and beyond.

Around the perimeter of the

landfill we propose to have monitoring wells.
contamination, you treat it.
treatment plant.

If there is

We would build a wa8tewater

A wastewater treatment plant may take us three

years to build and effect •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So what you're hoping to do is to

treat the liquid waste that's in the landfill, r1ght now, and
detoxify it.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Yes.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You would require, you would need

permits from the state agencies?

Has there hee11 discussion with

the state agencies regarding these plans?
MR. GASTELLUM:

We have had preliminary discussions,

discussions just like today.

Conceptual discussions , and we can

see that the other facilities and around the country, that this
is the way regulatory agencies are going.

They want to see that

kind of treatment of leachate on a regular basis.

What is going

to have to be done, is for what was that, for example, as Mr.
Lancaster

point~d

out, in the pond area, we don't want to
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contaminate the pond, not going beyond the containment areas, we
are going to have to put those back into fill.

And when you're

putting in the fill with absorbant material or ratio that is far
better than what we have now, this is basically relocating the
liquid.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It would be treated liquid, is that

what you're saying?
MR.

GASTELLU~1:

No.

At this point, we do not have a

treatment system •.. so you use an absorbant.

Now, asphalt

treatment in the business that's not what I'm telling you we want
to eventually use.

On a current basis, we have to absorb.

have to absorb with municipal refuse.

We'll

The municipal refuse, at a

10 to 1 ratio or 15 to 1 or 20 to 1 ratio, or whatever
scientifically tells us is going to hold that liquid for as long
as we need to hold it until we can get our treatment system in
place.

You are going to see throughout these landfills, wells of

liquid and gas, the interior on the perimeter to control, collect
and treat gas and liquid.

A very expensive process.

The only

way that we're going to be able to afford that is to get the gas turbine project on line.

We have a company that is virtually

guaranteeing us that it will work; it was a major part of our
consideration in booking this, so that we had General Logic to
choose from, Asilomar and several other companies and said,
"We'll guarantee that it works.
you your money back."

If it doesn't work, we'll give

Well, at least we got our money back to

put in another system.

This company has experience, that's the

route we chose to go.

The cost of materials, is not a big money
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maker.

It is an important source of revenue for maintaining the

sump; we intend to continue to use the sump for a Class II in
compliance with all the State Water Resources, Air Board
regulations.

So that is in general, a summary of this.

I am not

a technician, I can make our technical people available to you or
your staff to explain in detail.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Okay.

I have two things.

I'm not

satisfied with -- it isn't your answer, but with the answer
regarding the pumping of the liquid from that particular barrier.
This afternoon, the Department of Health Services and the water
and the air people will be here to testify and we are going to, I
would assume, Mr. Lancaster, you will be asking those questions
again.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIR~l0~1AN

TANNER:

Yes, I will.

Will somebody be here from -- if we

have a conflict in the answers to that question, would somebody
from BKK be here to respond?
MR. GASTELLUM:

~.Yell,

I may be able to ask Mr. Richard

Mandeville what occurred there.
those discussions.

He may have been involved in

Dick, do you have a specific answer or shall

we get somebody here who does?
MR. RICHARD MANDEVILLE:

I think it would be better ,

depending on how much detail, I'm primarily involved in the gas
area.

We work very closely with the •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. MAf1DF.VILLE:

Could you identify yourself, please?

My name is Richard Mandeville.

I'm

with Mandeville and Associates and we've been working with BKK
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for approximately the past eight months on the gas problem and
worked very closely with the firm that they are using to do the

0

site characterization study, so we interface with them, but
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

But that has nothing to do with the

pumping of the water?
MR. MANDEVILLE:

Not specifically, although we're,

again, interfaced with them and I think it would be better to
probably have them come this afternoon.
MR. GASTELLUM:

Actually, I would be more comfortable if

I see in writing as to what we think occurred.

I'm not trying

to •.•
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That would be fine.

(multiple

voices)
MR. GASTELLUM:

I'm not trying to blame the agencies.

Understand that a group of technical people sat in a room and
tried to make those decisions and BKK may have been wrong or
somebody ••.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
blame now.

I don't think our purpose is to

Our purpose is to find some ways to stop the problem

and control ...
l-IR. GASTELLUM:

I understand.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

The second question I have is how

soon do you plan on putting in these monitoring devices?
MR. GASTELLUM:

On the gas system, we're almost done.

Let's have Mr. Mandeville address that specifically.
do that?
MR. MANDEVILLE:

I'd like to •••
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Could you

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Let's put it over there, so that the

audience can see it as well as the members of the committee.
MR. MANDEVILLE:

I might, while we're waiting for

Matthew, I'll give you a few background cornn1ents.
refuse does produce gas.

Decomposing

The landfills have been open since

approximately 1963 and you have a magnitude of abou t 16 million
tons of refuse in place.

As the refuse decomposes, it produces a

positive pressure and the gas takes the path of the least
resistance in moving away from the site.
has to go somewhere.

In other words, the gas

The gas will not remain in the landfill as

a reservoir much like a natural gas.

Consequently, what is done,

and I might also state that the kind of things that we're doing
at BKK are state of the art methodology in terms of the control
of the gas.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You have a monitoring system and

then a gathering •.•
MR. MANDEVILLE:

Okay, let me give you a little more

background and then I'll answer your question very specifically,
if J can.
BKK has been
~ore

awar~

of the gas problem for a long time.

than five years ago, they installed over a

pe~iod

of time,

approximately 150 inLerior wells in the landfill to take this
pressure off that tends to build up within the site.

Again, this

is no different than any other landfill in the country, or for
that matter; the world.

There is this gas pressure.

Coupled

with that, and I mentioned that we came aboard approximately
eight months ago, the reason we were brought in was to help BKK
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develop this master plan that Mr. Gastellum referred to and the
master plan was submitted to BKK and other regulatory agencies
and the master plan, to answer your question more specifically,
laid out a plan for the installation of additional interior
wells, and horizontal collection systems, again to take the gas
out of the landfill before it exerts any pressure, either
laterally away from the site towards a residential area, or for
that matter, up in the air and then to the ambient air, which can
also be a problem.

That plan called for not only the interior

wells and trench systems, it called for, and this isn't the plan
that you requested, a monitoring system around the entire
property line.

I don't know if you can see it from here, but the

yellow line that goes all around the whole property is the line
of where we are currently putting in probes for on-site.

That

probe design and configuration is part of the agreement that we
reached with the Interagency Committee and that particular area
is headed up in terms of the technological background by the
California Waste Management Board.

We reached a signed agreement

in terms of where those would go, what the depth would be and how
we would monitor them, and what we would do if we found gas in
them.

We are currently installing them.

We have prioritized the

location of them so that we get the ones that are most important,
first.

Along the southern boundary line, which is the bottom of

the area that you see over there, are primarily where the
Priority I locations are.
by October 11.

We will complete the Priority I probes

We have also Priority II and Priority III probes,

all of which have been staked out.
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Some of them have been

designed and this is part of the working agreement, the
completion of those probes should take place somewhere in early
November.

We're going to put them in as quickly as we can.

There is a schedule that is part of the agreement, but we're
trying to move faster than that.
CHAIRWO~AN

TANNER:

So that ' s monitoring?

Say you find

that there is gas that is leaving the site, or leaving the
ground, how do you gather that gas?
MR. MANDEVILLE:

Okay.

We will gather the gas in much

the same way that we're gathering the existing gas along the
southern perimeter in the area of the so-called problem area near
the residences that had to be evacuated, and what we would do is
work towards extending a ring, a collection ring, around the
entire site, drawing where needed.

In other words, we believe in

many, many areas, either because of the distance, because of the
geology and other characteristics, that in most cases, we \'lon' t
find anything at all, so we won't need to put any well pumps
down, but the intent is to bring the entire site with a
protection system, although in line with what I mentioned
earlier, the primary place, the best place to keep the gas from
moving away, is within the interior.

It's much easier to collect

the gas within the landfill, because believe it or not, it's more
homogeneous than the geology itself.

So, it's going to be a

combination of an interior system, and then as required, a system
around the entire landfill, which is nothing more than an
extension of exactly what we're doing in the Lynn court Rind
area, the affected area that .••
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
no questions.

Thank you.

If there are

Do you have questions, we will have to move along.

ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:
Gastellum.

All right.

I've got two quick questions for Mr.

I wonder if before you go; my initial comment about

the need for a lead agency and my concern about so many different
state agencies and lack of directions; the second one was about
treatment and where are we as far as no longer using technology,
such as throwing toxics and trash in the ground?

Could you

comment on those?
MR. GASTELLUM:

Well, the BKK Corporation believes that

a lead agency is the best way to deal with the problems like
we've experienced.
very helpful.

Probably statewide, a lead agency would be

Unfortunately, no one agency contains all the

disciplines or the expertise, and there has been a lot of
resistance in this state to having a super EPA type agency.

I

don't think EPA is ready to step in and take over ' this thing,
either.

So, while it would be helpful, I personally believe that

the best we're going to get is continued close cooperation by the
various agencies and that has to be more on treatment.
Our view is that treatment is still, treatment before it
goes into the land, is still a number of years off in this state;
that it's truly a function of cost and that it will for quite a
few years, yet, continue to be cheaper to put waste on the land
or in the land.

There will be a lot of us who are attempting to

build cheaper plants in the anticipation that that will change;
we are pressing forward with our (inaudible) plant because
certain legislative action has resulted in a more favorable
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market for treatment.

And the (inaudible) container, for

example, regulating surface impoundments will have a dramatic
effect.

I believe you're also involved in legislation as well,

Mr. Hill, that will have a dramatic effect on the feasibility of
treatment before waste goes in the land.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

So, you're basically saying the

reason we won't have treatment is not because technologically we
can't do it.

The reason is, is because the people who produce

these toxic wastes find it cheaper to truck it someplace else?
MR. GASTELLUM:

No question about it.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
Gastellum.
staff.

All right.

Thank you very much, Mr.

Before we go on, I'd like to introduce the committee

This is Arnold Peters, who is the committee staff

consultant, and Mary Vases who is the committee secretary.
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Luke is sitting there and she is a member of my district office.
I see Marlene Carter here, representing Congressman Torres, and I
know that Donna Baker was here representing Senator Campbell.
don't know if Mike Duffy is here from Senator Montoya's office,
but he plans on being here.
Our next witness will be Father Juan Romero.
Goode is here from Frank Hill's office.
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Oh, Jean

I

0

Father Juan Romero, Pastor of St. Martha's Church.

Father

Romero.
MR. ROLLAND BOCETA:

Good morning.

I am sorry to inform

you because of illness the Father could not be here today.
name is Rolland Boceta.

I belong to St. Martha's Church.

My
I am a

resident of 2755 West Delano Avenue in West Covina and I am

0

Chairman of the Social Concerns Committee of St. Martha's.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right, Mr. Boceta.

I have you

on the agenda following Father Romero.
MR. BOCETA:

With three hours of sleep this morning, I'd

say I spent four hours trying to decide what to say in 15
minutes.

And so if I sound incoherent, please bear with me.
The cynics, the skeptics have advanced the view that

every politician is concerned, above all else, with
reelected.

gett~ng

And since it has now become fashionable for certain

politicians to take the side of the people in the struggle
against the BKK toxic waste dump, this hearing has been called
just weeks before the election to produce political mileage which
can be translated into votes come November 6th, especially for
certain politicians who have not lifted a finger about BKK.
Now, my taking time out today and •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOCETA:

.••

(Inaudible) is a rejection

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOCETA:

Before you ••.

Sir •

••• of the (inaudible)

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Before you go

. ..

o~,

t question your

statement, but you have every right to make that statement.
think .••
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MR. BOCETA.

I just said that my taking time out today

and appearing before you is a rejection of that cynical view.
Being a representative from St. Martha's Church, I'll be
charitable and accept the pronouncement made at the start of this
hearing.

I might add that if the political firmament had been

occupied by more bright lights, like Esteban Torres, if more
politicians had been involved early on in the struggle waged by
this community, this burden would have been made lighter.

But

purely whether there are politicians who are just now joining the
bandwagon is irrelevant.

The people have suffered long enough

and we can use all the help that we can get.
St. Martha's Church is located less than half a mile
from the BKK, on the corner of Temple Street and Azusa Avenue,
and served 4,000 parishioners from the communities of La Puente,
Valinda, Walnut, and West Covina.

The church operated a school

in the same location, with 350 students.

Church parishioners,

school teachers, and the school children have, of course, been
subjected to the hazards associated with the dump's existence.
About three weeks ago, 3,500 parishioners signed
petitions calling for the closure of BKK to toxic waste disposal
as a first step towards a solution to our toxic waste dilemma.
The petitions were sent to Senators Alan Cranston and Pete
Wilson, and also to Governor Deukmejian.
We at St. Martha's believe that we challenged in a broad
sP.nse, not just in the individual sense, but also social sense -such as the injustice foisted upon the residents of this
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0
community who have been made sacrificial lambs for all of
Southern California.

0

We consider the presence of a toxic waste

dump in the heart of a densely populated community as an
abomination to be cursed, a monument to the folly of past
decisions by the politicians.
At almost every public forum I have been to on toxic
waste, my public prayer has been this:

If my wife and I, or any

of my kids, have to suffer from toxics, let it be, if it be God's
will; but for heaven's sake, let it not be because some mere
mortals like you and me at the EPA, at the Department of Health,
play God, and by some imprudent judgment pronounce us as
statistically safe.
For us at the end poring over mountains of documents and
newspaper clippings and reports, the BKK saga has given us the
perception, rightly; or wrongly, of these characteristics of
regulatory agencies.

Devotion to the special interests of the

regulated industry; lack of sufficient concern for the
underrepresented, meaning the public, and an excess of pollution
in terms of working BKK's interests.
Certain matters cry out for answers.

We do not

understand -- I don't understand why fines have to be negotiated
with BKK instead of simply imposed by the regulatory agency.
If hazardous waste laws are on the books to protect
public health and safety, with the word "public" being defined as
including the residents of West Covina and surrounding
communities, how come BKK which is endangering public health
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through its violations of such laws has never been assessed fines
and penalties which will hurts its coffers?

Wh~r

has the

government been so hesitant to slap BKK with hefty fines and
penalties?

Is it because fines and penalties are not deductible

in BKK's tax returns, as they are unallowable by the Internal
Revenue Code?

The fines levied, that have been levied, are

practically negligible that it would not be an understatement to
say that the guilty in this case have been allowed to escape
punishment.
A statement we have come to believe, again, whether
rightly or wrongly, how abysmally incompetent and (garbled)
government at its worst can be.

We believe governmental help

isn't just a word and/or a set of values surprisingly divergent
from prudent conduct expected of them.
assessments have been

given~

Different health hazard

acceptable risks and (garbled)

admissions and other late assurances that also have been told to
those who have never heard of Love Canal and Times Beach were the
operative statements of the day.
For years, governmental health agencies charged with the
protection of public health and safety, such as the Los Angeles
County Health Department and the State Health Department, such
people as the (garbled) have claimed that BKK wasn't violating
anything in their
technology. "

operation~

that BKK had "state of the art

They were peddling the insane idea that it is all

right to have toxic waste dumps in the heart of a residential
area.

And as everybody knows now, the "crazies" of West Covina
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0
have been proven right and the experts and the apologists for BKK
have been proven wrong.
Now if I might respond just briefly to Mr. Gastellum's
statements.

I have met Mr. Gastellum as a private citizen

together with other citizens in meeting with the (garbled) in
some aspects of the BKK

problem~

however, in the absence by the

State Department of Health Services of a site characterization
criteria or standards, it's an anomaly.

And the department's

willingness to allow BKK to do its own site characterization
study is scandalous and represents just a tiny bit of the whole
gamut of reasons why people like me are angry.

And we are

indicative of the degree to which people's lives may have been
exposed to jeopardy.
On account of Mr. Gastellum's admonishment that there
are unknowns, that the standards are inadequate, the question now
is, how were they able to make pronouncements in the past
indicating that the landfill does not pose a hazard to the
residents of the community?

They proved it in something they

call the West Covina Chronicle which contained laudatory
statements of their prosperity.

It is now clear as broad

daylight that BKK has been propagandizing the community into
believing that the landfill is safe.

Is BKK giving up its

economic position voluntarily, or do we have a case where, based
on the weight of evidence uncovered, BKK has been forced to
withdraw its Part B Application and then provided a graceful
exit?
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How much of whatever the cost of the consequences a
proper order from the EPA or the State Department of Health
Services have been mitigated by an agreement among EPA, the State
Department of Health and BKK? I am not an attorney, but I ask,
how much (garbled) against superfund dollars has been effectively
shut off by an agreement among the three entities?
We, of course, expect our elected officials to actually
take care of, and not just appear to take care of, our concerns.
We strongly urge you to take the responsibility of protecting
public health seriously.

We strongly urge you to lead with

courage and to listen with great sensitivity.
For starters, you might want to consider legislation
calling toxic waste dumps as toxic waste dumps, and doing away
with one of the biggest deceptions ever foisted upon the public
-- when we call toxic waste dumps "Class I" sanitary landfills.
It also definitely will be important to consider
legislation mandating proper fines and penalties on hazardous
waste violators; in promulgating legislation establishing air and
water standards where there are none now.
We strongly urge you to reclaim -- and I stress the word
reclaim

the legislative functions that have gone to the

regulatory agencies and the courts by delegation or default.
your actions may rest the question of whether people now grown
highly cynical of government may be regained.
happens, it would be a victory for democracy.
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And if that

On

We recommend, finally, that legislative oversight is
(garbled) but not (garbled) oversight dictated by this committee

0

over the special agreement negotiated among BKK, the EPA, and the
State Department of Health to ensure that the health of the
residents of this community is not further jeopardized, in order

0

that this community does not become a national disgrace.
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I sense optimism, because I know of the human hands and
the hearts and minds that sent man to the moon and brought them
back safely.

I have more things to say, but •••

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOCETA:

Well, Mr. Boceta •••

I am starting to get emotional, and I

am sure that the likes of Tom Walsh, William Whisenhunt, Marsha
Bracco, Lou Gilbert, can argue the case for the people with more
fervor, with more clarity and more eloquence.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I think that you were very eloquent.

And I certainly, and I am sure the other members of the committee
understand your frustration and your fear and your concerns.

I

want to assure you that we, as members of this committee, as
members of the Legislature, are very frustrated as well.
We passed stronger legislation that would increase the
fines and penalties for violations of hazardous waste disposal.
If the regulatory agencies don't respond to the laws and
implement the laws, it's --we pass more laws.
This year we passed laws not only to increase the fines
and penalties, but also to make it a criminal violation if there
are violations -- make certain violations criminal, where it
can't be a write-off for a company or for someone who violates
hazardous wastes laws.
MR. BOCETA:

That violator will have to go to jail.
That is not enough.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
signed.

Right?

The law has

the bill has been

It will be in effect in January.

We passed legislation to have a state superfund.
was in '81.

Was it '80 or '81? -- '81.

I personally have

carried some 18 bills that have been chaptered since 1979.
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That

This committee requested -- felt that the Department of
Health Services wasn't doing an adequate job as far as
implementing the laws where hazardous waste was concerned.

I

requested -- I'm a Democrat, and this was during the Brown
Administration -- I requested that the Auditor General audit the
performance of the Department of Health Services regarding
hazardous waste.

The Auditor General did audit and found that

the implementation of the laws was not being done.

This

committee has acted as an oversight committee.
We have developed legislation which was recently vetoed
by the Governor that would have absolutely prohibited landfills
of hazardous waste from here on out, which would have prohibited
the use of, or the landfilling of, untreated liquid hazardous
wastes.

That bill was vetoed.
We do pass laws.

concerned.

We have been concerned.

That's why we're here.

We are

We're not here for political

••. you know, politically it's very difficult to be here because
we are facing -- and for real reasons

angry citizens.

But we

are attempting, we have attempted, to do something about this
problem here in West Covina and throughout the state.
legislators don't consider it a partisan matter.
recognize that this is our home.

We as

The three of us

This is our district.

We are

extremely concerned.
MR. BOCETA:

Let me ask a question.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOCETA:

Yes.

Is my Assemblyman a part of this committee?
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0
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

No, he isn't a part of the

committee, but he is very, very actively involved with the

0

legislation that deals with this problem.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Madam Chairwoman, if I might have the

floor?
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
ASSEf.1BLYMAN HIJ.. L:
to thank Rolland.

Yes.
I would like to take the opportunity

Rolland and I have had -- at least on a number

of occasions we've had lunch together.

And though we're on

different ends of the political spectrum, and Rolland has been
very active as an elected member of his party's central
committee, I appreciate his willingness to stick with the agenda
and the direction and offer, at the same time with your
frustrations, some also positive suggestions on the way that we
ought to head.

And I appreciate your willingness to do that and

hope that in t .he future, we can continue to work together.
This isn't a partisan issue.

There were opportunities,

as you can imagine, for people who wanted to come and testify and
attack the Democrats and attack the Republicans.

I just wanted

to publicly thank you for offering some concrete suggestions.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much.

Oh, let me introduce Assemblywoman Lucy Killea from San
Diego.

Hopefully your team will win the World Series!
Our next witness will be Tom Walsh, who represents the

Coalition of West Covina Homeowners Association.
MR. TOM WALSH:

Mr. Walsh.

Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.

First, I would like to make a slight change in our presentation
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this morning.

I will insert Sally Graves behind myself, and then

followed by William Whisenhunt.
minutes.

We stiJ] stay within our 15

Just add Sally Graves behind myself.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right.

I will do that, but let

me assure you that I don't allow someone else to change the
agenda.
MR. WALSH:
granted two.

No, we asked for three positions and we were

Actually we were granted

three~

just didn't have a

name.
CHAIRWOMAN TA}ffiER:

Okay, and Sally Graves is

replacing ••• ?
MR. WALSH:

No, she will be the third member.

We didn't

have a name for the third member.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. WALSH:

I see , all right, fine.

I'm a spokesman for the Coalition of West

Covina Homeowners Association, and I would point out that we have
supplied the Chair with some of our documentation.

We've given

you two volumes.
I would like to thank Assemblywoman Tanner and members
of the committee for conducting this hearing in West Covina.
It's the home of the largest toxic hazardous waste disposal site
in California, perhaps in the United States.
We're all aware of affairs attributable to the
responsible agencies and of the legislative action, SB 501, which
was enacted to protect the continued operation of the
Ben K. Kazarian Corporation toxic dump in our city.
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Also, we are aware of the residents' long-term
complaints and activities ir.

~heir

attempts to bring attention to

the fact that the site has been emitting known carcinogens into
our residential environment.

The site is not the impermeable

basin as described by other so-called "experts," but in fact is
fractured, porous and is in a sand laden sieve.
The barriers, which Mr. Lancaster spoke of earlier, were
erected to stop the flow of toxic materials.
value.

They are of little

The site is not without subsurface water, as stated in

past studies.
Now that these areas of deep concern to the Homeowners
Association have been proven to be accurate, and an accurate
assessment of this site, we have at least four avenues to pursue:
(a) To continue monitoring.

And accelerated monitoring

investigation to determine the full extent of
contamination caused by this facility must become
the highest priority.
(b) The total closure to reduce contamination must be
implemented.
(c) Research and design prqcedures developed in this
investigation must be implemented to protect the
health and safety of future generations.
(d) No further construction or permits should be issued
until such time as the contamination has been
totally identified and stopped.
We are not naive to the fact that this program will be
dangerous to the surrounding residential areas and, of course,
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extremely costly.

We have two choices:

First, the cost of such

a program be borne by the hazardous material generators and
facility operator.

Secondly, the less favorable, the taxpayer be

burdened with these costs.
To resolve the cost issue, we must determine fault.

Did

the agencies responsible for monitoring and regulating this
facility fail in the performance of their duties, or were they
negligent in the areas of control?

Or were the operators and

generators failing to supply suff1cient information as determined
and specified by local, state, county and federal regulation?

Or

were the residents and taxpayers of this state responsible for
this disaster which has occurred?
We will not attempt to identify blame or fault.

Perhaps

a complete investigation by a state agency would make this
determination.

But we feel strongly that the issue must be

resolved.
Total closure and cleanup must also be reviewed.
Closure of this facility to further disposal of any materials is
of utmost importance.

Continued disposal will only generate a n d

create an additional weight on material already buried, ard
squeeze the liquid waste much beyond the existing site boundary.
It will make it more

~jfficult

for site cleanup, if that should

ever occur.
The documentation input by the various agencies and
homeowners' groups should be analyzed and included in any plan
dealing with this disposal site.
many groups and organizations.

This is a responsibility of
This consists of first, you the
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elected officials; secondly, the residents, voters, and
taxpayers, and last, the

ger~r.ators

and the industries that

create these substances.
This subject is no longer a local issue.

The whole

country must deal with the disposal of these dangerous materials.
We must look back in time to determine how we reached this point.
If we view the structure of the above protection, we find that

•

various committees and commissions at all levels of government
are pressured by industry to appoint members of their specific
special interest groups to these positions.
The average resident who isn't here, as Mr. Boceta just
eloquently described,

~ho

may be poisoned, disabled, or lose

their lives from this exposure, have no representation.

Are we

as residents, to sit by, pay taxes, and accept without question
the rules, regulations, and ordinances developed by our elected
officials, who are heavily lobbied, and because of the great cost
of political campaigns, accept those contributions from the
various industries that the members have seated on these
commissions?

As elected and appointed officials,

(inaudible)

spoken, we must begin to listen to those who represent us.

We

must see to it that the local homeowner, resident, or voter, has
equal represent.ation within the community structure.

We need

protection.
This issue and its progress, or lack of, depending on
where you are positioned, is a perfect example of ignoring the
rights o£ our residents for a safe and healthy environment.

What

further action must be taken to prevent a situation as we have in
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West Covina?

First, we can start with such things as classifying

the process with what it really is.
Industry seeks a treatment as the ultimate solution.
The word

11

treatment 11 must be further defined.

Removing moisture

from toxic hazardous materials is not treatment, as in the case
of the proposed BKK Wilmington facility.

The process employed in

this plan only renders the materials less mobile, not harmless.
The residue from the process is no less dangerous.

The materials

remain just as toxic, hazardous, in a resulting slush coke form,
as it is prior to so-called treatment.

This process should be

identified for just what it truly is; a compactor, moisture,
water filtering process.
The word treatment should only be allowed in the
procedures whereby the dangerous materials are rendered harmless
as the end result of such activities.

Let us not continue

misleading the public by the use of such terms as "sanitary
landfill.

11

Secondly, industry landfill operators and generators of
toxic hazardous material have certainly failed in their
responsibility to protect us, the residents of West Covina.
Dealing with such dangerous materials requires years of
investigation by chemists, scientists, geologists, engineers,
medical staff, and water experts (inaudible).

We have such

experts within our community and their input is invaluable.
We need the cooperation of both factions; the state appointed
expert as well as the community expert.

If there is the

slightest doubt at the risk (inaudible) any proposal that deals
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0
in health and safety, continued investigation must follow until
the residential experts are fully satisfied.
0

P~rhaps

with such input, we will be better positioned

for a safe and sane method of disposal, or destruction of these
dangerous materials.

0

Safe and profitable, rather than sorry, as

in the case of West Covina.
My third point is with the devastating effects of both
(inaudible) and the evacuating.

Those residents exposed to known

carcinogenics created by this facility.

I recommend legislative

action which would permit those residents within a specific area
surrounding this facility, the opportunity to relocate their
families at no additional cost or expense.

We, the coalition,

are willing to develop this line with this commission without
proposal for such action at a future date or unless accorded by
the commission.

We are going to participate and work in

developing long-range efforts and procedures, but our first
priority is the safety of our community.

We cannot wait for

long-term solutions in moving our exposed air borne chemicals and
perhaps groundwater contamination.

We need

action~

we need

relief now.
The coalition of West Covina Homeowners Association has
led the fight to their quite obvious problems associated with
this facility, and we have proven to be correct in our analysis
and research.

Had we not been correct in our assumptions, we

would not be conducting this hearing today.
itself.
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That speaks for

We ask that we be allowed to participate (inaudible) and
have our concerns addressed and resolved to our satisfaction.
After all, it's our lives you are dealing with.

we will be

available for any discussions or assistance which we may be able
to supply you, this, or any commission.
My last comment is simply to say that land disposal of
waste is no longer acceptable.
the cost must be (inaudible)
the consumer or user.

True treatment is available and

(inaudible) process and passed on to

If we want such products, we must be

willing to pay for the destruction or the dangerous residuals and
no longer bury them in someone's backyard.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much, Mr. Walsh.

Sally Graves will be our next witness.
And is it possible, Ms. Graves, for you to give us your
statement without reading it.
MS. SALLY GRAVES:

We are running behind time •••

My statement is actually quite short

and I would prefer to read it as I don't want to miss any of the
pertinent facts.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MS. GRAVES:
Lancaster.

All right.

Members of the Committee, Mr. Hill, Mr.

What's going to happen to the neighbors when BKK

walks away from West Covina?

Let me describe two scenarios for

you and tell y0u what I perceive in the future of each.
Scenario Number I.

BKK was granted permission to

proceed with an electrical generation facility.
operations in West Covina.

BKK continues

They install an electrical generation
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facility and discover that it and the flares are not controlling
in migration of methane and toxic gases.

They applied to the

city and other necessary agencies to install one to four
additional turbines with a guarantee that new facilities will
correct the problem.

BKK was successful in obtaining legislation

to reclassify strictly toxic wastes and allows them to burn the
sludge cokes produced by their (inaudible) facility.
The City of West Covina is asked to approve yet another
generator or incineration facility specifically designed to
handle this liquid waste.

BKK determines that the best method of

disposal for solid waste is a waste energy facility at the West
Covina sump.

They again request permission for yet another

electrical generation facility.

BKK continues to be unable to

solve their problems in toxic gas and leaching conversion into
the surrounding neighborhoods.
to operate in the red.

The West Covina site continues

The BKK Corporation divests itself of all

holdings and walks away from West Covina.

The EPA and DOHS or

the City of West Covina becomes responsible for addressing the
future of abandoned toxic waste sites.
Scenario Number II.

BKK is not allowed to install the

electrical generation facility.

BKK Corporation divests itself

of all holdings and walks away from West Covina.

The EPA and

DOHS or the City of West Covina becomes responsible for
addressing the future of an abandoned toxic waste site.
BKK, our lead corporation, is in business to gain
profits for its owners and/or shareholders.
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We need to take a

moment to look at the corporation's financial commitments.

They

are committed to spending $10.7 million to construct a hazardous
waste treatment facility in Wilmington.

They are willing to

commit themselves to spending $7 million for an electrical
generation facility in West Covina.

They have vowed to spend an

unknown amount to obtain federal and state legislative assistance
in addressing their disposal of treated hazardous wastes.

They

will be required to spend an unknown amount to control the
off-site migration of toxic gases and leaching at the BKK site.
This information prompts several thoughts and questions.
I.

The cessation of toxic wastes on December 1st, 1984,

will immediately result in a reduction of profits of the BKK
Corporation.
2.

The $17.7 million commitment to (inaudible) plus the

other unknown expenses, could well exceed BKK's income for the
past two full years of operation in West Covina, and tie up a
tremendous amount of their capital.
3.

In addressing the cogeneration facility in June,

Chris Kadarian said, "In strictly business terms, the investment
will operate in the red for many years before the company
recovers its expenditures."
4.

We're dealing with a corporation that was asked to

develop a work plan and time table that would fully assess and
characterize the site and correct problems.

When was the last

time that you heard that BKK had submitted a required report in a
timely manner or corrected a problem?
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BKK has West Covina

between a rock and a hard place.
from West Covina.

BKK will eventually walk away

How far does West Covina go to pacify BKK?

When will BKK be forced to address and resolve the health hazard
created by their operation in West Covina?
In order to protect the residents of the surrounding
communities, it is imperative that your committee address
legislation that will prevent BKK and the other toxic waste
facilities in California from walking away from the unhealthful
situations that they have been allowed to create.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
questions.

You raise some very serious

The first question, of course, we have considered and

I wonder what the answer to those questions are?
MS. GRAVES:

I wish we all knew.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much.

Mr. William Whisenhunt.
MR. WILLIAM WHISENHUNT:
Tanner and

member~

Thank you very much.

of the committee.

Mrs.

I want to take a very brief

period of time because I know you want to move along quickly.
I think there are a couple of concerns that I would like
to bring to your attention for consideration when we go back to
the State Legislature and that is that the issue does cross
boundaries.

Not only the political boundaries of the state, but

also those of political party affiliation.

This problem affects

California as a whole and the nation entirely, as well as it is
one that needs to be resolved, and the quicker the better.
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Presently, we have seen legislation that deals just with
that subject matter, toxic waste.

Attached to it is an amendment

which has been referred to as the "Torres Amendment."

Hopefully,

that legislation will become law in the near future, and when it
does, it is my hope that for your legislative consideration, that
the state will take the Torres Amendment, what its intent is, and
enhance on it to better protect the environment we live in.
when it first applied for the permit,

BKK,

(inaudible) the studies

provided by BKK from outside (inaudible).

Let BKK get on with

it.
They say that they know it is more of a

(inaudible) on a

hillside and the major problem that has not even been addressed
yet, is the potential for water contamination and the materials
that the coalition has submitted to this body are studies from
the State Regional Water Quality (inaudible) and certain
questions asked as far back as the early '70's.
were never answered.

Those questions

The state geological studies that were

conducted back about 1914 - 1918, there were a series of
exploration for oil, identified serious faults in and around the
BKK sites, which was known as the (inaudibJe) and San Jose Hills.
They identified the conglomerate, they identified strata, they
identified everything that showed that the site was c fault, and
not as BKK would have us believe,

(inaudible) they chose to sit

there and start (inaudible), and these issues need to be
addressed.
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I testified in front of a commission a couple of years
back in front of Senator Campbell and one of the questions he
0

posed to me was, what do you think the future of BKK really is?
What is going to happen in the final analysis?

And I'm told,

years ago, that in my opinion, the final analysis is going to

0

have to be dug up, they couldn't say.

It posed too much risk to

the community and to their water systems.

•

Millions of gallons of

toxic waste, which are only fed by millions of acre feet of water
that falls

o~_the

600-plus acres on your (inaudible) so, no

matter what you pump out, you're going to continually have
materials added to it.·
This is a consideration that the EPA and DOHS is going
to have to consider.

When you look at the proposal to put in

this generating plant, they show a little yellow spot for 1 to 6
turbines.

And yet they have this entire network, and then in

their application to the City Planning Commission of the City of
West Covina, the only thing they really applied for is those
little yellow dots.

Not the entire system.

It would seem to me

that the first thing that should happen here, is the Department
of Health Services should require an environmental impact report
to see what the implication of this entire network and system is
going to be on the cleanup and site characterization as
forthcoming.

We can't permit BKK to come in here and throw

(ina.udible) and say, well, gee, we've got this multi-million
dollar generating plant; we've got all these millions of dollars
in contracts; we've got all of this pipe, and the DOHS says we've
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got to cap it--well, the price won't be any good if we can't get
the stuff out, because we have to have access to the pipes.

The

state is now going to have to pay us if we want to do this,
multi-millions of dollars, and I think that's a cheap way out for
BKK.

Not that we want them to have to be forced out of business

because of that operation with the state; who's going to pay for
it, my tax dollars, your tax dollars, people's tax dollars.
don't think that's the proper way to handle it.

I

There's a whole

lot of legislative things that can be done out there.

And I

would just caution that passing laws, which are not enforced or
easily served then, is worse than no law at all and we've seen
that with the hearings that we have tried to have concerning
health hazards, continuous denial and the legislation has been in
place for these things for some years and in my recent
conversation with state people, I think there has not been one
single hearing on this legislation; not one whole year as we did
in Southern California.

We have 250 abandoned toxic dump sites

in Southern California alone, yet we have not had one hearing.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

••• on the part witb the

11

501"

hearing, is that what you're reading?
MR. WHISENHUNT:

Legislation that states "no more is it

potential or hazardous, but the Department of Health Services
shall direct that a hearing will be held to determine whether or
not the border zone of 1,000 feet around a dump site should be
declared."

That piece of legislation, it is my information that

there has not been one hearing conducted and I believe the
58

legislation has been in place for over three years.
longer~

0

it may be four.

It may be

But not one hearing has been conducted.

The City of west Covina has 60 people evacuated.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It's incredible.

It's absolutely incredible.

0

MR. WHISENHUNT:

And I think there is a piece of

legislation that probably ought to be handled as expeditiously.
We go toward (inaudible) from time to time in our statutes, and
if it's not used, it is no good.

We do away with it and replace

it with something that can be enforced and will be effective.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That's what, hopefully, is our

intent.
MR. WHISENHUNT:

And we would be willing and look

forward to the opportunity to support our legislators in that
area, and our condolences to San Diego.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much.

Thank you very much.

Our next

witness will be Marsha Bracco, President of the Oswalt PTA and
representing Rowland Unified School District, which includes
Walnut, West Covina, La Puente, Rowland Heights, and concerned
citizens of West Walnut.
MS. MARSHA BRACCO:

I'm Marsha Bracco: I live in Walnut

and attended school in the Rowland Heights School District.

With

me today, but not to speak, are Bob Harrison from the same school
district: Harold Low, our Principal: Karen Hom, our President of
the Rowland PTA Council and two members of my executive board.
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On behalf of the Rowland Unified School District, the
Oswalt Elementary school PTA, the Rowland PTA Council and
approximately 18,000 residents from the western portion of
Walnut, I'd like to thank Assemblywoman Tanner for having this
legislative hearing.

It's reassuring to note that someone is

finally willing to listen.

At this moment in time, I would Jike

each of you to reflect deep into yourselves, like a search of
conscience, about the fact that you may have had reservations
about this legislative hearing being held within the City of West
Covina.

Could you have had just a teeny bit of apprehension

about the possible, potential health hazards that you might
experience from the unhealthful air quality?

With this small

seed of doubt that I have planted in your minds, I'd like to
present you with this 295 page documentation of facts and
pertinent information that I have gathered in the past two months
of my involvement with the controversial Ben K. Kazarian toxic
waste dump.
Also included in my documentation are 928 signatures on
petitions to the Governor asking for closure and cleanup of the
Ben K. Kazarian toxic landfill.

These signatures were gathered

in the past week from residents living around our schools.

The

Rowland School District will be mailing to the Governor
additional petitions from the entire school district within the
next two weeks.
I would like to give you a brief overview of the six
sessions included in this documentation which happened to be
divided by topical issue.
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b
Section I deals with the problem.

But to put it in the

most simplified terms possible; we have a leaching gas emitting

0

facility.

There has been an evacuation of residents and attempts

by the City of West Covina to close this facility to further
disposal and the interference by the state and BKK Corporation to
this closure, as well as response to questions raised by the
communities.
Section II encompasses the activities of our PTA unit.
This includes a proposed long-term plan and the impact on the
Oswalt school.

Articles dealing with the PTA community meetings,

the adequate test results, statements of position from the PTA
Council, the School Board, and the Association of Rowland
Educators.
Section III delves into the city Council activities of
Southern California, which (inaudible) because of problems right
in their own backyards, so to speak.

This section identifies

past and present council agendas, presentations and results.
Section IV scrutinizes the political ramifications of
this issue and the self-serving protective activities of the
disposal industry.
A special note:

In this section - I would like to draw

your attention to Senator Pete Wilson's response to my question
for his support of the (inaudible).

Mr. Wilson thanked me for my

interest in the disposal of wastes in the ocean.

Doesn't it make

one wonder just what our elected officials do with their time?
Apparently not reading letters from their constituents is one of
their priorities, (inaudible) perhaps ••
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(inaudible).

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MS. BRACCO:

..• I bet if we did, we have .•.

Perhaps my pleas to Mrs. Reagan, Mrs.

Deukmejian and Mrs. Ferraro, to which I have received no
response, will be of greater value, but this remains to be seen.
I want to add:

I sent each of those women about 100

pages each (inaudible) so I knew they got it.

That showed why;

it included miscellaneous items such as letters, newspaper
articles and television programs dealing with the toxic waste
disposal issue.
Section VI, in my very brief description deals with the
issue.

I am aware that the BKK toxic hazardous disposal site has

been in operation since 1963.

What we residents of Walnut were

falsely led to beljeve is that this facility is totally safe,
when in fact, it is potentially hazardous to one's hcaJth.

The

mere fact that the air from West Covina travels into Walnut is an
infringement on our rights.

I would like to make it clear that I

realize that this landfill is a family-owned business and one's
livelihood, but this does not give them the right to contaminate
our environment, nor do they have the privilege to endanger our
lives.

Life is a very precious commodity and without our health,

money and our homes mean absolutely nothing.

From what I've

heard, it doesn't cost anything except (inaudible).
The Oswalt Elementary PTA became involved in this
tremendous issue after 21 families were evacuated due to
migrating subsurface methane gas and vinyl chloride.

Originally,

we thought that we would notify the families surrounding our
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of the pot<-mtia1 health hazards.

in this survey.

0

'I'h]:=; was to bP included

I never dreamed that our involvement would reach

this magnitude and that we would be hosting community
informational meetings and that I would be addressing PTA units,
school boards, city councils and now I'm addressing a legislative
hearing.
The State of California requires that all children
attend school until they are 18 years of age, graduate, or pass
the state proficiency test, as stated in Sections 48200 and 48416
of the California Education Code.

Therefore, it is the

responsibility of the state to maintain the maximum of health
standards at all times.

The California State Department of

Health Services has stated that they cannot guarantee health
safety within one mile of the BKK area.

These officials of the

Health Department have gone on record with reference to the fact
that the air quality is affected up to two miles away and it
quite possibly takes up to five miles of the chemicals being
emitted into the air to completely dissipate.
(inaudible) elementary school is less than one mile from
the Ben K. Kazarian Landfill.

I have had numerous conversations

with people from the Department of Health Services to assure that
all of my facts and information are accurate.
Included in my extensive research for human justice in
the American life, I have been in contact with various officials
from the Health department; the Environmental Protection agency,
I have spoken with Patty (inaudible).
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I've also spoken with Dr.

Alex Kelter and Dr. Linn Golden, a pediatrician, both of whom
work at the Health Department.

The one common ground that all of

these experts share is that they readily admit that they don't
know enough about the sensitivity of children versus adults in
regard to the toxins in the immediate vicinity.

Dr. Kelter told

me that more detail is needed than is currently known.

Wouldn't

common sense tell us that we should talk preventative methods to
ensure against future health problems?
unknown?

Why tamper with the

Dr. Golden stated that to be conservative, one could

say that children are ten times more susceptible than adults to
chemicals.

She further clarified this by saying, children's

acceptable levels will be measured in parts per billion, whereas
adults are measured in parts per million.

If methane gas is

believed to be the main carrier of chemicals, then why is the old
testing for our school, with 175 children, considered acceptabJe,
when in fact, it was measured in parts per million, not billion?
I've included this report in my documentation, but again I say,
why take chances?

Common sense tells the responsible adult

(inaudible) reach the children, so why even measure the air.
Doctors know the long-term effects of vinyl chloride and they
know what the effects of benzene

con~amination

are, but they do

not know what the combination of these two toxins produce.
of these are being emitted into the air.

The human lives

involved in this situation are not replaceable.
want to find out if they were guinea pigs.

People do not

We want to know why

cleanup (inaudible) have been placed on the (inaudible) in
64

Both

Monterey Park dumps.

They had not one family evacuated.

Please

make me understand this travesty of justice.

0

Looking now in the 70's and Saugus Elementary School in
the 1980's should have been good examples of toxic waste
problems.

There should never be schools or residential areas in

close proximity of a landfill.

My own four children, ages 4, 5

and 1/2 year old twins, and a 9-year old, have experienced

•

headaches, nausea, diarrhea, skin rash and respiratory problems
this past year.

We live 1 and 1/2 miles from this dump, but five

days a week they attend a school located less than a mile from a
toxic landfill.

Isn't it odd that these illnesses were stopped

during this past summer vacation?

But during last summer, of

relatively good health for my family, 21 families were evacuated.
Again I say, doesn't common sense tell us of a health risk?
Keep in mind that nine families are still homeless,
while 11 others refuse to reoccupy their homes because they fear
for their lives.

They fear the unknown, and they don't want to

find out in ten years down the road that it's too late for them.
But then who knows, maybe it's too late for them now.
strong legislation now.

We need

There must be extended (inaudible) in

addition to the immediate closure and cleanup of the BKK toxic
landfill.
Apparently political contributions get in the way of
good judgment sometimes.

The lines of communication will thus be

opened between the people and their legislators.

Naturally,

there must be a stronger and more definite enforcement of laws.
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The regulatory agencies must be working for the people because
you never know, you just might end up with a toxic landfill in
your backyard, and God be with you if you happen to fight the
bureaucracy as we had to do.
I would like you to know that I have received letters
from legislators telling me that I need to take responsibility
for the trash that I generate daily, and I accept that.

But I do

not accept the fact that in the past, the Ben K. Kazarian
hazardous waste facility has been accepting materials of a
hazardous nature from Japan, Italy, Alaska, Arizona, Georgia,
Hawaii and Oregon.

That's just a few.

I'm looking to you people for leadership.

This is why

you were elected to public office; to serve the people.

As you

see, I've done my research and I've become the resident toxic
trash expert from the Walnut Unified School District and the City
of Walnut.

I'm now ready to make you an offer.

it difficult to refuse, not refuse.

I hope you find

I want to work with you, and

I want to make your jobs just a little bit easier and possibly
you, a little bit healthier.

I was informed that your Atlantic

Center of Disease Control was forming a health defect
subcommittee.

I want to be on that committee.

Let us work together and have one lead agency to take
control of this horrifying situation.
from you in the very near future.

I look forward to hearing

But before I finish, I'd like

to leave you with this lasting thought:

Unbeknownst to you, your

home, your possessions, and your loved ones, you just might be
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residing in the midst of an (inaudible) landfill.

Have you truly

done everything in your power to make this a safer place to live

0

and so ensure that your quality of life is at a premium?
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MS. BRACCO:

0

Thank you very much.

Do you have any questions?

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

None.

I thank you for your time.

I'd like to introduce Assemblyman Gary Condit from Ceres,

•

California, near Stockton.

Is that right Gary?

ASSEMBLYMAN GARY CONDIT:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Near Modesto?

ASSEMBLYMAN CONDIT:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Modest.

Modesto.
Our next witness is Royal Brown, a

West Covina resident and a professional engineer.
MR. ROYAL BROWN:

Mr. Brown.

Thank you, I'm Royal Brown.

Members

of the Legislature and staff members and citizens here and BKK.
While this hearing is concerned with BKK mostly, what I have to
say is equally applicable to the Operating Industries Dump and
the County Sanitation District in operation in La Puente hills in
San Gabriel Valley.

What is produced?

It is not a matter of

pressure and making water flow through it.

Why do we say this or

why do I say this, because my experience allows me to say
(inaudible).

As part of our team of engineers over 20 years ago,

I also gave (inaudible) in the San Francisco Bay area that proved
that the long-term hydraulic balance, that's a mathematical
device that we use which is an accepted method of checking
groundwater systems; there is only a matter of pressure that
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..

keeps water from flowing (inaudible) underground.

Twenty years

later, we of the scientific backgrounds, have almost totally
eliminated the assumption that water prefers to move laterally.
Groundwater moves where it finds the least resistance.

The push

of gravity and anything above it just adds to the power.
at BKK we have hundreds of feet of garbage.
is flowing underground at BKK.

Today

We know methane gas

This does not surprise me.

This

is merely another confirmation of what I warned (inaudible)
research effort.

Groundwater or gas moves where it finds the

least resistance, the force of gravity and anything above it just
speeds up the process.

As I understand it from my contacts with

EPA, it has confirmed that leachate has moved three of the four
directions from BKK Landfill.

What does it take to stop it?

You

must decrease the resistance to the flow or eliminate the flow.
Stopping the introduction of water to the dump would eventually
~liminate

the problem of groundwater seepage beyond the site.

Another alternative is capping the dump.
solution later.

I will return to that

However, the current effort is to drill

perimeter wells to intercept the flow to areas surrounding BKK.
BKK drilled a well every few feet to extract some of the water.
The (inaudible) amount of leachate will require (inaudible) much
more frequently than they have proposed and is shown on their
maps and their illustrations.

Even then, if you put a well every

few feet, you'll only get a percentage of the leachate that is
due to the fact of the ground extraction.

Though you public

officials might as well start facing the other alternatives, that
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0
is trenching and building of cutoff structures below the current
level~

ground

to do this, the row of homes closest to the dump

must be condemned and removed.

I'm sure that these homeowners,

many who have never been evacuated, will sell to the BKK
Corporation at a bargain price.

In my county there are 36 homes

currently within 100 feet of the dump; property that has garbage
on it.

•

Most of these homes will represent a $4.5 million

investment by BKK or the City of West Covina's Redevelopment
Agency.
dug.

Once these homes are removed, a trench would have to be

There are several possible design alternatives and the

cutoff structure I would recommend would be of value.
First, there is concrete.

Second, compacted earth with

gunite injection, self-structure, and finally I would suggest
using a high density baled garbage.
baled garbage?

You ask what is high density

Over ten years ago, the EPA and several

engineering societies conducted experiments on compacting garbage
into bales.

These efforts evolved in 1974 to a commercially

available set of equipment to produce two types of bales.
are low density and high density bales.

These

The high density bales

have some interesting properties that would be advantageous to a
dam-type of structure.

The bales are formed and finished off

within a four-by-four-by-eight foot dimension in size and is free
standing.

It can be moved and erected as a

solid~

they can be

trucked, shipped by rail or conveyed by conveyor belt by any box
or container.

Once placed in a

(inaudible) place, they will

stand slightly to seal in small gaps (inaudible) in the pond.
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This is a property that would be great in a cutoff structure
because construction gaps are always a major problem in darn
building.
Other important properties of high density bales are the
low level that methane generates in the garbage in the bale.
Only a small amount of gas can develop within the bale and it
does not migrate to the surface of the bale because of mechanical
blockage.

What methane will generate at the surface of the bale;

quickly stops once it is placed in part of which is allowed to
expand.

This is a not unique phenomenon; the best comparison is

powdered metal.

You first grind up the metal, then squeeze it

back into some shape with high pressure.

There are some voids in

the finished powdered metal shape, but for practical purposes,
it's a solid.
Now, if you do not build a cutoff structure around BKK,
you must reduce the pressure on the native soil on a neighbor's
property.

The only way to reduce it is to remove the existing

garbage at BKK and take it somewhere else.

If you're only

willing to consider a minor reduction in pressure on the
surrounding land, you can reduce that pressure by preventing any
more water being introduced to BKK.

Stop all the liquids from

entering the site and capturing all the rainfall before it enters
the existing garbage cells.
on existing garbage.

To do this requires a waterproof cap

With a collection device for collecting the

runoff, a plastic membrane is one possible way.

(inaudible)

earth movements for 700 yard shells with (inaudible) the
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0
integrity of (inaudible).
capping.

What is needed is a much stronger

Historical caps on toxic landfills have been several

feet of clay with a chemical placed in five foot cap on Love
Canal, and we all know the results.

Powdering, a much thicker

cap, say 15 feet, might be a barrier to liquids entering the
garbage cells.

Also a 15 foot clay cap might be very effective

in keeping a higher percentage of the methane gas that is
generated by the existing cells and only partially collected by
the gaseous recovery system in the ground and available to be
collected by whatever well system the dump has.

In my opinion,

the existing gas recovery system at San Gabriel Valley, currently
operating dumps, have not been successful in recovering the high
percentage of the methane gas produced by the garbage cells.
get odor complaints constantly.

We

These odors are nothing but

testimony for the existence of escaping methane gas.

Shortly,

BKK will try three approaches to methane gas collection.

The

question before you, ladies and gentlemen, is how the Legislature
can make existing recovery systems more effective.

I support a

law requiring a cap on any garbage cell within 15 days after the
cell is completed, unless another cell is to be placed on top of
it within 30 days.

(inaudible) many of the air pollution

problems caused by the BKK and other San Gabriel Valley dumps.
I've suggested before the AQMB that these caps be either 15 feet
from native soil, well compacted, or four layers of high density
bales of garbage.
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Now today, I suggest to you that if you want to solve
the air pollution problem caused by BKK, the gas collection
system will now be capped in garbage cells is not going to keep
the neighbors happy or prevent air pollution by the dump.

It is

my opinion only by capping the dump can you provide an effective
gas recovery system.

BKK has the means to create (inaudible)

soil cap of 15 feet or more.

They could start immediately.

However, there is a one-year lead time on high density bale
equipment.

It is my opinion that the four layers, high density

bales will do a better job.

But they at BKK can utilize either

alternative and the law should allow them to determine the
relative economics and make their own choice.
Now to diverge from the (inaudible) situation.

I point

out that there never has been an EIR prepared on BKK's operation
or any of the changes they have made in the last several years.
BKK complains they have had the ground rules changed on them by
the EPA and the Health Department.

Many new laws have been

passed concerning dumps the last few years.

BKK should

understand that once the law changes, you had better change your
operation to conform to the law.
changing.
issued.

BKK has been very late in

They only changed once an administrative order is
They overreact all the time.

We as neighbors resent

that our one neighbor who constantly night after night violates
our rights to peace and enjoyment of our property without
(inaudible) appearance; this violator is BKK.

Never has BKK come

to us to ask us what we suggest to do to correct the situation.
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Even when one calls their offices and talks with their technical
employees, one quickly

find~

that one gets the runaround.

Those

of us who have a technical background don't need to review the
published data on BKK to know that they do not have a safe
operation.

The past few months have only seen the government

agencies docketing the violations and the rights of the
neighbors.

•

BKK is now proposing a migration plan ••• I mean a

mitigation plan.

Such a plan must be reviewed by the public

before any non-emergency provision can be implemented, if I
understand the intent of the environmental review legislation who
read this review and what government agency has the overall
responsibility to be the lead agency for the EIR.
agency is the California Department of Health.

I believe that

They are

discussing this issuing letters to BKK concerning the mitigation
plan and once such discussion starts, it is my belief that the
EIR process must also start.

I believe that it's your job as the

legislative committee to (inaudible) up why not has this EIR
process not begun and to force the California Department of
Health to begin to obey the EIR requirements.

Although there are

many agencies making inputs, there is no means for the neighbors
to have an input or even better saying that work getting done to
prevent the violations of their rights.
While SB 501 largely took away the zoning control of the
local citizens they once had, we neighbors even tried to get
involved with an initiative known as Prop. K.

There have been

lots of efforts by the neighbors, but always BKK's views are
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accepted by the elected officials that have direct authority over
BKK.

A careful review of the past few years will show the

neighbors have better understanding of what actually was
happening than did BKK or regulatory agencies.

The system of

complaints, for instance, operated by the AQMB about order of
complaints and sn1all fines is but a joke and has caused large
resentment in the community.
These are some of the problems that you need as
legislators to correct.

Both you in government and BKK should

open your eyes and act to the request of the BKK neighbors and
maybe this problem would then be solved.

The current direction

of BKK shows no signs for successful elimination of the problem
in my opinion.

Legislation should be enacted to allow the

neighbors of any metropolitan landfill to exercise their judgment
on corrective measures in the landfill in response to all
violations in the operation of the dump.

If the law continues to

provide for the existence and operation of new metropolitan
dumps, the neighbors that have to surround that facility, who
have that facility forced upon them, must be given some effective
means to cause the violators of their rights to clean the air up
and to have the right to clean air and pure water.

The longer

you fail to provide this relief for landfill neighbors, only the
more disillusioned with politicians and government will the
public become.
The San Gabriel Valley landfills are a testimony by the
failure of government you legislators have agreed, have the power
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to bring about the reform of our landfills.

BKK is the testimony

of the problem with the current laws.

0

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much.

Oh, I thought

you were finished.
MR. ROYAL:

0

Just to review the current operation of BKK

has led to two types of problems:

1) underground migration of

gas and water and 2) air pollution rising from the (inaudible)

•

cells •
There are two things that can be done now or later, but
any other technology that you will attempt to use to solve these
problems is only a temporary "Band Aid".

The groundwater

migration of gas and water have to be stopped with cutoff
structures.

The air pollution will only disappear once the dump

is capped with either 15 feet of dirt or four layers of high
density bale garbage.
It is my opinion that unless you encapsulate it, as I
have described to you, you will have to eventually remove all the
contaminated garbage.

Thank you.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. ROYAL:

Thank you.

I pass on to you an illustration of what a

bale garbage offset system will look like.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That wouldn't do much about water

migrating, though?.
MR. ROYAL:

Yes, it would.

I've outlined to you the

system that capping stops the introduction of water to the
garbage cells; therefore, with time, there will not be any water
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c
corning out of the existing cells.

The problem we have at

Stringfellow, is the introduction of rainwater to the existing
toxic waste.

Thus, to stop that water corning out, you have to

cap the landfill.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Encapsulation isn't going to do

anything about the liquid that's already in the landfill.
MR. ROYAL:

Yes, that will stay there.

The solution

that I suggested about stopping and corning out of the landfill is
the cutoff structures--that's a dam-like structure.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

In your point about the public's

right to know and public participation, is something that I
absolutely consider must be done.

I think that there has been

for many years a lack of communication that was a very difficult
problem for the citizens of West Covina.

I think that we have to

have stronger legislation that gives the public the right to know
what is happening and the right to participate in
decision-making.
that.

I agree with that and I think we all agree with

Thank you very much, Mr. Brown.
we are running late.

West Covina, Bob Bacon.

Our next witness is the Mayor of

Mayor Robert Bacon, thank you for being

here.
HONORABLE ROBERT BACON:

Thank you very much, Mrs.

Tanner and members of the committee, Mr. Hill and Mr. Lancaster.
I appreciate the opportunity to present the city's thoughts as to
the problems relating to the BKK landfill and their impact on our
residents.

The city has been attempting to deal with their
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impact since 1979.

Proportionately as we have progressed, the

number of problems has increased.
Mr. Miller, the Community Services Director for the
city, has transmitted to the committee a brief history of the
city efforts during the life of the landfill.

That history does

not include the tireless efforts by the city to obtain solutions
to the landfill problems.

These efforts include:

1) stimulating

and actively participating in the Southern California Regional
Hazardous Waste Management Project;

2) participation on the

League of California Cities Environmental Quality Committees,
both state and Los Angeles County;

3) participation on the Los

Angeles County Solid Waste Management Plan Committee;

4)

chairing the Hazardous Waste Plan Subcommittee of the
above-mentioned committee;

5) formation of the Transition/Waste

Management Commission to assist the city Council in dealing with
waste management issues affecting the city; and

6) numerous

trips to Sacramento, San Francisco, and Washington, D.C., to
enlist aid and/or support legislation at the state and federal
levels to solve the landfill problems.
Some of these efforts have been fruitful.
you are here this morning attests to that fact.

The fact that

However, it is

quite clear that our attempts to enlist the support of the
California Department of Health Services in Sacramento has been
somewhat like butting our heads against the wall.

In light of

their obligation to protect the health of the citizens of this
state, you would think they would be the agency most concerned
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with obtaining long and short-term solutions to the problems with
BKK.

To the contrary, they have, in fact, opposed or otherwise

put roadblocks to reasonable and rational solutions.

In spite of

that, we have pursued a resolution of the problems so that every
avenue open to us will continue to do so.
The announced closure of the BKK Landfill to the
disposal of hazardous wastes raises many other questions; these
questions and matters related to the pending litigation and legal
opinions discussed by Mr. Lennard, our city attorney for the city
of West Covina.
For my part, I want to suggest to you a number of
actions that you and your colleagues in the Legislature can take
to solve the problems.

First, continue the pressure to demand

that a "501" hearing be held to determine whether or not a health
hazard exists from t.he landfill.

Closing the landfill to

hazardous waste has not changed the need for a full hearing
before an impartial administrative law judge to determine whether
or not the continued operation of the landfill constitutes a risk
to the health and well-being of our citizens.
Next, take steps to fund the expenses of the "evacuees"
or until all potential health hazards have been identified,
addressed and eliminated.

This includes the expense of those who

have been told by the California Department of Health Services
that they can return, but as to who the department refuses to say
it is unequivocally safe for them to do so.
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Third, enact legislation which will create one state
agency which has primary res?onsibility for the regulation and
management of hazardous wastes.

Such legislation need not, for

instance, eliminate the role of the Department of Food and
Agriculture as to pesticides, but it could establish the
Department where the "buck stops" so as to prevent the
conflicting orders .••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
for a second.

I wonder if I could just stop you

I'm curious about the one thing that you said that

the Department said that certain families could go back to their
homes, yet they couldn't say that the homes were totally safe--is
that •••
MAYOR BACON:

Yes.

Let me tell you how they say it.

They say to families, "Here is a chart of risks that you have
every time you cross the streets.
percent of getting killed.
have a risk of so much.
thing.

You have a risk of so much

Every time you drive the freeway, you

Now families, let me show you this risk

You have a risk because you've been exposed to vinyl

chloride for seven years at certain sets of levels.

You have a

risk of getting cancer which is 1 in 150,000, or whatever the
number is.

And now families, based upon that, you decide whether

or not you want to move back into the homes."

Mrs. Tanner, I

mean I'm just describing to you exactly what was said to those
families at those meetings.
of Health said.

That is exactly what the Department

That's no way to be able to tell the citizens

whether or not it's safe.

The Department must come to a
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conclusion.

It must make its recommendation.

It must say to

them, "we believe it's safe."
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MAYOR BACON:

It must make a determination.

And if they don't believe it's safe, they

should tell the citizens that they should not return--one or the
other.
Of the state agency we think that with all the problems
that still can be put through, it will take them a lot of
compromise on the matter, but we believe that if there is one
agency where the final determination as to which order shall
apply, this will eliminate to a large measure, the problems we've
had on conflicting orders at the BKK Landfill.
make sure who is in charge.

But we want to

We want to encourage you that you

have to encourage through legislation the use of treatment
technology at the source of production so that no disposal of
untreated waste becomes necessary.

Then ban the landfilling of

all hazardous waste in urban areas and only allow landfilling of
the residuals of treatment or such waste currently for which no
technology exists to allow treatment at production site.
Next, to encourage possibly through financial means the
regional solutions to hazardous waste management.

I know this is

something you tried to do very diligently and we all worked with
you, but again, come back with it again because we need to have
this.

We need to encourage jurisdictions which produce waste to

make arrangements with those who might be willing to accept waste
financially, or whatever it may be, so that we can have a
solution to t h at problem.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MAYOR BACON:

0

I intend to reintroduce it.

Last, obtain more funds for manpower and

_equipment to enable the enforcement of regulations that currently
exist.

You've heard today that they are not enforcing the

regulations.

The recent gas migration of the landfill problem

had the agency saying in court that they did not have the money
or the manpower to conduct the migration tests necessary to prove
whether or not the system installed by BKK was effective.

And of

course, as you know, the Governor stated in his veto of the Sher
bill, that there was plenty of money and plenty of equipment.

I

don't believe that's the case and I think that we need to go back
again and have that legislation passed.
Uppermost in our minds must be the people affected by
the inability of the state agencies to force BKK to comply with
the regulations.

Someone said this morning, and I think it is

absolutely true, I don't believe that BKK has ever met the
deadline for producing something by any regulatory agency.
don't believe they have ever met the deadline.
an extension and gotten it.

I

They've asked for

Maybe they've met in on the

extension time, but I think the record is clear that they've
never met a deadline so far as to what has been asked of them by
a regulatory agency.
We have accepted the burden in West Covina of being the
only hazardous waste facility in Southern California.

In an area

of millions of people, it's simply not fair that a city of 90
thousand people bear all the cost of that waste disposal.
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If the

state agencies who have the responsibility of seeing to the safe
operation of the landfill will do their job, that cost will then
be more fairly borne by all of our citizens in this state.
Your Committee can do a great job by obtaining a
commitment of the appropriate agencies that they will do their
assigned job and enforce the rules applicable to BKK.
the problem solved.

We want

The actions we've mentioned to you

previously will gain that solution, both in the short-term and
the long-term.

Thank you very much for allowing me to present

the views of the city of West Covina.
CHAIRWOMAN TMlNER:

Thank you very much, Mr. Mayor.

Any

questions?
MAYOR BACON:

Mr. Lennard has just briefly on the

litigation status which you asked for.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. COLLIN LENNARD:

Also a .•.

All right, briefly, Mr. Lennard.
My name is Collin Lennard.

the City Attorney for the City of West Covina.
members of the legislative committee.
sho~· t

amount of time.

I am

Mrs. Tanner and

I will take a very, very

I know that you want to press ahead.

I would like to make a statement with respect to what
the city is doing and the present status of the litigation which
I know a few of you are aware of.

We are presently now in court

on two different law suits; two different pieces of litigation.
The first one is a Writ of Mandate forcing the State Department
of Health Services to uphold what we've heard you speak about
before and that is a "501" hearing .
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The reason that we've filed

the litigation is that the state has continually refused upon
request after request after request to hold a "501" hearing.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It seems to me that it is clear that

we are going to have to have legislation which will not just
simply authorize, but require, a "501" hearing and the procedures

0

to follow and for the department to meet to hold a "501" hearing
and obviously, we're going to have to do that.
MR. LENNARD:

I think that's correct and I have a number

of suggestions that were made for this committee.

One I think

that it is absolutely ludicrous under the circumstances of
evacuation and the circumstances of the landfill site now, that
any agency, whether it be state, federal or local, can turn
around and say that there is no need for a "501" hearing.
whether that is something obviously that will have to

b~

Now
left up

to the courts and we have a hearing date now set for November the
fifth.
The other action that you all are aware of is presently
it is obtaining through the courts and that is the action by the
city council to close the landfill site down in its entirety to
acceptance of Class II and Class I material until verifiable data
can be shown and, in fact, the Class I site and Class II site is,
in fact, able to accept that material without any hazard to the
citizens of the City of West Covina or any other neighboring
community.

In fact, no one has been able to present that

verifiable data to anybody at this time.
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As you are also aware, a preliminary injunction has been
issued by the court in (inaudible) in the gas migration problem.
I have to respectfully disagree with Mr. Ron Gastellum that the
main problem with the Class I site, that is the BKK site, is thP
gas problem.

I think that the gas migration problem is extremely

serious; one that is subject to the court order and being dealt
with on a piecemeal fashion at this time.

I think equally

serious, if not even more serious, is the whole problem of the
groundwater contamination problem at that site, which has as yet,
not been dealt with.

The reason it hasn't been dealt with is no

one has the analyses in terms of the site characterization study
to come up with a mitigation or remedial plan.

It seems to me,

in a very simplistic fashion, that it is rather silly to say
"Well, forget about the site characterization plan, and go ahead
with the mitigation plan," when we don't even know what's in the
site.

I have no quarrel with both going on side-by-side.

The

site characterization plan and the work plan that was issued
jointly by DOHS and Water Quality on September 6th, is specific;
has specific report dates, has specific dates as to what material
is required.

None of those dates as of yet has been met since

the September 6th date.

The site characterization study in the

proposal has been going on now for well over a year.
ASSEMBLY~~

LANCASTER:

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Excuse me, Madaro Chairwoman.

Yes, Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Mr. Lennard, let me see if I

understood correctly what you just said.

We heard some commentB

this morning by the gentleman from BKK that they're having
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difficulty in understanding what was required of them as far as
regulations on the site

char~cterization

study.

Are you saying

that they have particular requests from the department saying,
"This is what we need, and would you please provide this
information to us?"

I mean, it's all laid out for them what they

have to provide?
~1R.

now.

LENNARD:

Assemblyman, I have it before me right

Obviously I'm not going to take the time to read it.

It's

approximately a 25-page document, what has been transmitted to
BKK, outlining specifically what these requirements •.•
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. LENNARD:

Submitted by •..

••• submitted by the Department of Health

Services and Water Quality.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. LENNARD:

Clear as a bell, is it?

As far as I'm concerned, Assemblyman,

there are specific dates and materials that have to be provided.
Not one of those dates has yet been •••
CHAIRWOMAN

T~1ER:

MR. LENNARD:

Yes.

May we have a copy of that?
I would be glad to provide you with

a copy.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
might.

One further question, if I

The city council has been in court to close the BKK

operation.

Without commenting on whether it's wise or unwise,

whatever the courts decide, they decide I guess, but what
position does that put BKK in as far as their responsibilities
are concerned?

If in fact that it does close, it's closed.
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MR. LENNARD:

Assuming that the site is closed, and

again, I would point out to you that there's not one action taken
by any state or federal regulatory agency to close the landfill.
This is a voluntary action proposed by BKK and I think that has
to be made extremely clear.
ASSEMBLY1Wl LANCASTER:

I'm aware of that.

That was my

next -- leading this whole thing --what's happening on the toxic
now is really a decision that everybody came in agreement that
it's got to stop.

Does that mean that if the city closes it,

that the BKK ceases to have anything to do with it anymore?
MR. LENNARD:

Absolutely not.

I think that obviously

under the present regulations that exist, under RCRA, which is a
federal statute, there are numerous complex requirements that
have to be met in the closure plan.

The closure plan, as I

understand it, is going to have to be submitted by BKK to all
regulatory agencies and to the Interagency Task Force who have to
take a look at that closure plan to make sure that the closure
plan, in and of itself, is one which, in essence, has to answer
the bottom line question, "Can the integrity of that site be
maintained even after closure?"
ASSEMBLYHAN LANCASTER:

Federal law would apply because

we have no state law on the subject .
MR. LENNARD:

Exactly.

Is that

wha~

you're saying?

It should be noted that back in

1983, a statute was adopted that specifically required the
Department of Health Services to adopt regulations with respect
to closure.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That's right.
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MR. LENNARD:

We are now looking nearly two years down

the line and there's not one regulation on the books with respect

0

to closure.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Does that mean that we

automatically accept the federal law in this case?
MR . LENNARD:

We would have to accept the federal law

with respect to the RCRA requirements.

There are no other

requirements that are specific as to what regulations apply in
the event that the site is closed.
I think that it also has to be understood, and I think
it's very, very important, and again (coughing: inaudible) but I
think this information is very critical to the committee.

As a

result of the agencies not taking any action to close the
landfill site down, and I will presume for a minute that BKK
will, in fact, stop receiving hazardous waste after November
30th, but they still have and still operate under what is called
an Interim Status Document.

That Interim Status Document

(inaudible) is a document that was issued by the state pending
the federal Part B application which would be issued by the
federal EPA and the state under its delegated duties.

No one has

taken any action to revoke the Interim Status Document and it is
my concern on behalf of the City of West Covina that we do not
get into an incredible situation whereby we have a hazardous
waste site declared by the owners so that it is shut down to
receive hazardous wastes, yet at the same time still holding an
Interim Status Document, and the site also still being classified
as a Class I site.
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ASSEMBLYMAN I.ANCASTER:

How is an Interim Status

Document repealed?
MR. LENNARD:

There are two ways of repealing an Interim

Status Document:
1) The Department of Health Services or the EPA has
administrative authority to revoke an Interim Status Document in
the event that part of the application was not submitted.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Without any requirement for

administrative public hearing?
MR. LENNARD:

There would be an administrative hearing,

an administrative process, obviously, but I think that it's also
important to note that since BKK has withdrawn its Part B
application to EPA, I think the city's position, I don't think,
it is the city's position, there is absolutely no reason for that
site to still hold onto an Interim Status Document.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
that for a moment.

1-ir. Lennard,

if I may pursue

Thjs has nothing to do with "501".

It's a

total separate operation.
MR. LENNARD:

But in a way it does have something to do

with "501" and I will get to that in just one minute.

It is

very, very complex and I'll try to make it as simple to you as
possible.

Not only did I hold an Interim Status Document, but

that site is classified as a Class I site.

There is no reason

after November 30th that that site should be classified as a
Cla~;s

L :.it.(·.

Who h,Hj <lUihorlty t:o d l•classjfy it

myriad problem of dgencies?

jn

thi~;

wh o l 1·

I think it's easier to play Trivial

Pursuit than it is to deal with all the myriad of state agencies
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0
in this matter.

Water Quality, the Water Quality Board has

specific responsibilities with respect to classification of a
site as to whether it's classified as Class I, Class II, Class
II-I.

At the present time, the site obviously is classified as

Class I to receive hazardous waste.

If in fact that site is not

going to receive any hazardous waste, I can't think of any reason
at all why the classification should be maintained.

•

It should be

and appropriately be reduced from a Class I down to a Class II
site.

That is going to take action by the Water Quality Board

and •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Except that the site will still

contain Class I material.
MR. LENNARD:

But the Class I material that it would

contain, Madam Chairwoman, is something that will be handled and
under the control of a closure plan.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. LENNARD:

Closure.

It does not need to maintain its Class I

site classification in order to be a closed Class I site.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

But I think Ms. Graves' questions

were very important and very much to the point1 what happens?

I

think there's some serious considerations about what happens if
the amendment, Senator Torres' amendment passes and hopefully it
does, there are some serious questions about what are the
ramifications to the city, to the people of West Covina?
responsible, then, if BKK walks away?

Who is

These are very, very, very

serious problems and if then BKK, the site becomes a Class II
site, and then the closure will, there will still have to be some
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kind of maintenance or something done about the Class I material
that's in the site.

All of these things ••.

MR. LENNARD:

These are problems that no one really has

any answers to and I certainly don't have them.
out problems and questions.

I can only point

One of the problems that has come up

is under the RCRA requirements, there has to be a credible, I
think (inaudible) both in Class I area in order for our closing
plan to be acceptable.

That (inaudible) has to be credibly

maintained.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So how do you accept, how do you

accept the Class II?
MR. LENNARD:

How do you accept Class II rubbish for

cover and then meet the closure requirements until EPA or DOHS
and in fact, the closure plan is being met?

It's an impossible

task.
ASSEMBI.YMAN HILL:

Collin, before you leave, the

classification from Class I to Class II is in by the L.A.
Regional Water
MR. LENNARD:

It's done by the L.A. Regional Water

Quality Control Board.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILI,:

It 1 s done by the Los Angeles Water

Control Board.
MR. LENNARD:

Exactly.

Not only do they, Assemblyman

Hill, in fact, they have specific requirements and criteria under
the Administrative Code which have to be met to be a Class I
site.

I recently had an occasion in going up to Sacramento to

take a look at those criteria and I have no doubt in my mind that
those criteria absolutely cannot be met.
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ASSEMBLYMAN J,ANCASTER:

Don't we, Mr. Lennard, get back

to the site characterization study again?

It keeps coming back

exactly what the ground is like.
MR. LENNARD:

There is absolutely no question that the

site characterization study has to be completed in order to be
able to come up with a credible, remedial action plan.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

•

In the water quality they have

got to have information in order to do the •.•
MR. LENNARD:

Right, but you don't have to have the site

classified as a Class I site to do a site characterization study.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. LENNARD:

Right.

I would just suggest these following

actions if I may and I will stop.
move on very quickly.

We'll have to move on.

As I said, I know you have to

I would suggest that the legislative

committee take serious consideration in amending "501" so as to
make it perfectly clear that the Department of Health Services
does not have unbridled discretion to hold or not hold a "501"
hearing.

It should be pointed out that at no time, has the state

taken advantage of its regulatory process to come up with any
regulations as to what would be the criteria to hold or not hold
a "501" hearing.

I think that is something that is essential.

don't think that a state agency can sit down and tell a local
government agency, "Under these circumstances, we're going to
decide whether we'll call a hearing and you're not going to tell
us upon what any evidence you submit to us, that in fact, we're
going to have to hold a hearing."
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

They've told us the same thing.
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ASSEMBLY~mN LM~CASTER:

MR. LENNARD:

It's the present law.

I think also that we should require as

part of legislation that a site characterization study be
completed for all existing and future landfill sites, whether
they're waste treatment repository sites, or whether in fact,
they're existing Class I sites.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Mr. Lennard, what you're saying

is probably a good idea by the committee, and I'm sure you're
aware that we'd be involved in the mandated cost to a lot of
local governments.

And I have no idea what that cost operation

would be.
MR. LENNARD:

And I'm not suggesting that this cost be

passed along to local governments.

Obviously, this is a serious

question that has to be resolved as to whether who actually picks
up the cost of the site characterization study.
And the last two things, and that is:
1)

That legislation be adopted, that in the event that
the "a" part of the application is withdrawn, that
in fact, the outstanding ISO is also revoked and the
site be reclassified at the same time.

AgaiP to

repeat myself, it makes absolutely no sense for a
site to publicly say that it's no longer going to
take hazardous waste and yet hang on to an ISD and
the Class I site classification.
And last, and to reiterate what the Chairwoman has
already said, and a lot of other people have said, and that is
that we need one single state agency with respect to the toxic
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and hazardous waste materials regulatory aspect in California.
We need it very badly especially and in this situation, we need

0

one lead agency who is willing to take responsibility for the
overall regulatory control of toxic waste.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

0

Thank you very much.

Our next

witness is Louis Gilbert, who is the Chairman of the West Covina
Transition Waste Management Commission.
MR. LOUIS GILBERT:
ladies and gentlemen.

Mr. Gilbert.

Assemblymen, Chairwoman Tanner and

I would like to first thank you on behalf

of the Waste Management Commission for being here and for hearing
all of the witnesses and for giving me this opportunity to make
my statement which is not going to deal with technical matters.
I'm a layman, I'm not an expert and therefore I cannot, in any
way, either challenge or contribute in the area of technical
testimony.

I'm sure that the City of West Covina and others will

submit enough information to your committee to give you much to
work on.
What I would like to say, however, is that as a
long-time resident of West Covina, and as someone who's been
concerned about the BKK problem for many years, and as a charter
member of the Task Force which was created in the City of West
Covina, the Hazardous Waste Task Force about which, you know,
I've sat for hours and hours on end listening to experts talk
about what is, in fact, taking place at the landfill, and as a
result of that, I've formed some opinions and I think that these
opinions are justified by what I've heard.
I'm an expert but only in this sense.
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So to that extent,

And I would like to tell

you that, again, for many, many hours, a great many hours, we've
sat in our meetings and the meetings of the Task Force and we've
heard experts and representatives of all of the agencies;
federal, state, county and whoever else, to testify to us, that
was some time ago, I'm going back, to tell us that there was no
problem, there were no problems with BKK.
place there is.

BKK was the safest

It was an environmental bowl; a beautiful

geologic formation, there were no health hazards of any kind .
time went on, this testimony began to change.
totally different story.

As

And now we hear a

What we hear now is, in fact, that BKK

is coming apart at the seams and they don't know how to stop it
or how to secure it or how to secure the integrity of the
landfill.

And in addition to that, they don't know, they don't

say any longer that there are no health hazards.

I heard the top

official of the State Department of Health tell the West Covina
residents that in his opinion, he would not say that there are no
health hazards, he considers it our health hazards.

As a matter

of fact, he even included a very serious hazard from the
psychological point of view.

He stated that the people who live

here, they don't have to necessarily live near the landfill to be
affected psychologically in an adverse way by all of the stresses
and strains which the BKK problem creates in the city.

So you

know, with this background, that's the background that I can give
you that gives me credentials for some sort of an expert.
So I would like to read to you what I have down here for
the record because I'm going to be repeating something that was,
many things that have already been said.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GILBERT:

All right.

However, I would like to put it in the

record.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GILBERT:

0

No.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GILBERT:

Will it take a long time?

Fine.

The BKK is the largest hazardous waste

landfill in the country.

About one quarter of a billion gallons

of liquid hazardous materials have been comingled with millions
of tons of solid hazardous and non-hazardous wastes in the
landfill.

All of this was allowed to be placed in the site, the

geology of which is not really known, because the site has not
yet been fully studied, analyzed and characterized as to geology
and other relevant factors.

And, as you heard here, the BKK does

not think that that is necessary to do even at this time and, in
fact, it's their duty to do it.
At this very time, BKK and DOHS have allowed this site
characterization to be postponed time after time.

Volatile gases

mixed with carcinogens such as vinyl chloride have migrated off
site into nearby homes forcing evacuation of residents.

There is

a very significant movement of leachate toward off-site areas
which threaten our water supplies.

And this is a problem which

is accelerating as time goes on.
BKK, as you know, is surrounded by homes with tens of
hundreds of thousands of residents.
trucks go in and out of the landfill.

Hundreds of waste carrying
Over 85 percent of

inspected trucks are cited for violations and 12 percent had to
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be removed from service because of serious safety problems.
There have been numerous spills, by the way, and now I assume
there are going to be less of those because there's no movement
of liquids in there.
What I have described above represents only a small part
of a much larger and more complex problem created by the presence
of the BKK Landfill in our city.
I believe that with authority goes responsibility.
I believe that very strongly.
assume responsibility.

You can 1 t have authority and not

SB 501 preempted the basic controls of

the landfill for the state.
assume full and total

And

Therefore, the state, I think, must

re~ponsibility

for making sure that

mitigating the negative impact of this landfill on our community.
The state must exercise its authority to require and compel the
BKK Corporation to bear its full share of burden, financially and
otherwise, for all needed mitigation and safety measures.

At

this hearing, you will hear from many interested and involved
persons.

Some will be experts who will give objective testimony

on how best to deal with these problems.

Others will be lay

people like myself, residents, friends and concerned neighbors.
You will receive many suggestions on what you can do to
help.

Here are some more that I would like to leave with you for

your consideration, and I'm going to repeat some that have
already been made:
1.

The landfill site characterization must be completed
without any delays.

If necessary, the state

agencies should take over the work and complete it.
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2.

A health assessment program is being "developed" by
the Department of Health Services.

This program

must be completed in a timely fashion by allocating
the resources necessary to complete the work.
3.

A public hearing, "501", must be held on the health
hazards from the landfill.

We don't believe the

site is safe.
4.

Evacuees who have been told they can return to their
homes, but won't because they don't believe it's
safe, must have their housing and food expenses paid
for by the state until all the potential hazards
have been identified, addressed, eliminated and
certified by the state and other appropriate
agencies that it's safe for them to go back there.
And I call your attention to the statement by Mayor
Bacon with respect to this, and I was present when
both DOHS and EPA officials talked with the evacuees
and absolutely refused to tell them or to say that
they would say, they wouldn't even say it was safe.
They simply said, "We're not going to tell you not
to go back."

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GILBERT:

They said they could go back.

They said, "Yeah, you could go back, but

we're not going to tell you that it's safe."

And you know, this

went on, the questions back and forth on this subject.

And I

think that, if necessary, some emergency legislation should be
introduced to deal with this particular problem.
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c
5.

Legislation needs to be enacted to: a) Provide more

funds for manpower and equipment to effectively conduct
enforcement programs.

b) Permit qualified local enforcement of

commercial vehicle regulations, complementing the efforts of the
California Highway Patrol. c) Create one state agency for
hazardous waste management in California to eliminate
jurisdictional confusion.
And here, I think that everyone who spoke, spoke to this
point.

I would amend my own statement here that should include

waste management, not just limit it to hazardous waste
management, because we know from sad experience, and I think that
it's in our own area here where we have our Class II landfill
that has vinyl chloride coming out of it.

d) Encourage through

grants or financial incentives, the treatment of hazardous wastes
at the source, where they are produced.

And when I say

treatment, I'm not talking about dewatering process.

I have read

a statement that I've read a quote from, I think Mr. Kazarian
himself was quoted, in explaining that the chronology does exist
to treat, really treat •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GILBERT:

Detoxify.

Detoxify, as opposed to the way this, you

know, currently the term treatment is being used, the watering
process; however, he says it's all a matter of cost.

So they,

the BKK of course is going for what costs less, which is the
watering which is not really detoxifying.

And I might point out

that several years ago, when we first formed our Task Force, we
asked the BKK to give us in writing, a declaration that after
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they treated, they engaged in the (inaudible) treatment,
dewatering process and during the residual source case and place
0

in their landfill, that they would be secure in there and create
no problem.

BKK refused to give us that assurance.

So I'm

pretty sure that BKK knows that that is not a safe kind of
treatment.
I'd also like to say that wherever I speak of the
responsibility which the state must take, I also want to include

•

all the federal and all the other authorities which are involved
in this.

I'm not excluding the responsibility of the federal;

however, I'm speaking to a state legislative committee so I'm
certain of that.
The state must assume the responsibility to secure this
site and address these problems.

We emphasize the need for

better management of hazardous wastes.

However, the kind of

problems created by today's hazardous waste regulations must be
solved because they directly reemphasize the need for better
management of hazardous waste; however, the current problem
created by today's hazardous waste regulations must be solved
because they directly affect the people.
looking to you for help.

These people are

In our city I know we're doing our

share and we're asking you to do yours.
And finally I would like to say that for myself and I
think for most of you here, there's only one possible immediate
action that needs to be taken.

And I think the most prudent

action to take right now is to ban all further waste deposits
into the landfill, any kind of waste or waste deposits, not put
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millions of tons more on what there is there now until such time
as full site characterization will establish site integrity
beyond any doubt and a comprehensive health study will show that
no health hazard whatsoever exists as a result of the landfill.
And I want to thank you.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much, Mr. Gilbert.

Our final witness for this morning is Charles Richardson, who is
the Mayor Pro Tern of the City of Walnut, and is also a member of
the City of West Covina BKK Transition Task Force.
Mr. Richardson.

I might also note that Chris Lancaster, a member

of the City of Walnut, city administration, is here, and who is
the son of Assemblyman Lancaster.
MR. CHARLES RICHARDSON:

He's our latest addition to the

city staff and is doing an excellent job, I might add.
MR. LANCASTER:
MR. RICHARDSON:

Well, thank you.
And we're pleased to have him on board.

Honorable Sally Tanner, Chairwoman, Consumer Protection and Toxic
Materials Committee, good afternoon.

My name is Charles

Richardson and I am the Mayor Pro Tern from the city of Walnut.

I

want to take this time to thank Assemblywoman Sally Tanner for
the privilege and honor to testify on one of the most significant
social issues and problems of our time -- that of waste
management and its effect upon the environment.
Assemblywoman Tanner, we commend you for your efforts as
Chairperson for the State Committee on Consumer Protection and
Toxic Materials.

This has been one of the most active committees

in the State Legislature.

Your leadership on that committee has
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been outstanding, particularly as it relates to the recently
approved Hazardous Waste MaPagement Plan.

The specifics of that

plan are timely and important to future considerations of how to
manage toxic waste.

But at this time it appears to be too late

regarding the BKK operation.
As this Committee knows, the BKK Class I toxic waste
landfill is located in the City of West Covina, but is contiguous
to the borders of the City of Walnut.

The authorization to

provide for control of the landfill was vested in the legislative
body of West Covina and those rules and regulations that are
approved on the state and federal levels.
It is our understanding that BKK began their dumping
operation in 1962 as a sanitary landfill disposal site.

In 1969,

the West Covina City Council debated and on a 3-2 vote, changed
the status of the facility to a Class I toxic waste disposal
site.

From that time to the present, BKK has been an issue of

great concern in the City of West Covina and their impact has
also been felt in Walnut.
To give you a brief historical sketch from the city of
Walnut's prospective:

Our population in the early 1970's was

approximately 4,000 to 5,000.

While we were aware of BKK and

their toxic dumping operations, this city never took a definitive
position regarding BKK and their effect on the community's
environment.

The reason was because the residential development

in the area nearest the facility had not yet taken place.

In

addition, the state agencies which regulated these types of
facilities provided assurances to the state that the site was
safe.
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Since those early 1970 ' s, Walnut's population has grown
to approximately 16,000 with development of both commercial and
residential areas very close to the BKK site.

BKK does not

directly affect the City of Walnut with its operation of that
facility, but they do give our City some very grave concerns
because they own approximately 600 acres from the east of the
West Covina site which is within the city l i mits of Walnut.
Since they acquired ownership of this property, BKK has been
involved in our community through the municipal election process
as a campaign contributor to candidates in 1978.
Their second involvement was in 1979 and the issue at
that time was land use.
of (inaudible).

BKK has contributed towards the defeat

BKK continued their involvement in the political

process in the election of 1980, but have not have been involved
since, as our records show.

The political activism of BKK

heightened the awareness of their operation.

We still had

concerns about toxic waste dumping in West Covina but continued
to receive assurances that al l was correct and safe.

Land use

has been an issue in the City of Wa l nut mainly (inaudible) of
development within the city with the hills and the geology that
is prevalent throughout the community and particularly the
location of the BKK faci l ity.

The genera l plan was designed to

incorporate low density, single family housi n g.

In the area of

BKK, itself a bu f fer, a commercial developmen t was planned for
the southeast corner of Arnar Road and Nogales Street.
Today a shopping center has been b u il t at t h at spot a nd
houses c l ose to the shopping ce nter have been constru c t e d.
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These

new homeowners have now been affected by the inability of the BKK
operation to control

migrati~g

gas which has been cause for great

alarm by Walnut citizens living in that vicinity.
elected to the seat on the city council.

In 1982 I was

The council appointed

me as its delegate to then Transition Waste Management Task Force
0

and I attended all the meetings concerning the BKK Landfill
operations.

Through those meetings, it was made clear that BKK

operation was hostile to our environment and especially to the
people who live close to the facility.

As you know, one of the

biggest investments that any individual can make is the purchase
of a home.

In Walnut we have a unique community planned with a

philosophy of maintaining a rural characteristic.

Because an

investment in a home is a very important decision, we believe
that every new prospective resident who might consider moving
into our town should be made aware of the surrounding environment
and other important items such as school districts, parks,
railroad crossings and dumps.

As a result, attempts were made to

determine what regulations required developers to disclose these
pertinent facts to prospective buyers.

The Walnut City Council

was greatly surprised to find that previous state regulations had
been rescinded and there were no guidelines requiring developers
to disclose this type of information.

As a result of this

finding, the council unanimously supported an ordinance requiring
a "buyer awareness disclosure package."

I have a copy of our

Ordinance No. 375 for this committee.
In essence the "home buyer awareness package" requires a
)

prospective home buyer to sign an affidavit indicating they have
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read the document and are aware of some of the characteristics of
the area in which they are contemplating buying a new home.

We

want prospective buyers to know about the BKK operation and its
proximity to their new purchase.

This Ordinance No. 375 is

unique in that the county and state do not have any regulations
requiring developers to provide this type of information.

After

our ordinance was adopted and implemented, it was forwarded to
the League of California Cities to see if it would be appropriate
to recommend consideration of state legislation mandating that
developers provide such information to prospective homeowners.
Home buyers should be able to receive information on t h e
community they plan on living in.

And as the lady indicated that

this type of regulation was not appropriate for state law because
it supposedly invaded quote, "the local home rule concept in the
California Cities' Handbook."

It is ironic that the League and

state Legislature should invoke the violation of "home rule" for
this type of ordinance when there are other encroachments by the
state that violate the "home rule" philosophy.

We in Walnut

cannot even consider the possibility of contaminated air or water
in these newer developing areas of our town.

Naturally, we had

continued assurances by all state regulatory agenc i es that the
DKK operation was still safe in West Covina and, therefore, it
must be safe 1.n Walnut.
When the problems of the dump site began to develop with
migrating gases and leachate outside of the established barriers
that contain these wastes, it became quite clear that BKK site is
indeed not safe when the bomb went off in July with the
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0

evacuation of 21 homes in West Covina.

Not only was this a

serious matter, but continues to remain a difficult problem.
0

The discovery of these volatile carcinogenic gas emissions and
migrations were not made by the state, but by the Southern
California Gas Company.

0

At this time, we began to receive some

complaints from our new Walnut residents about odors, headaches,
and nausea.

These new homeowners brought their complaints to the

city council, even though they had signed a "buyer awareness

•

package" receipt indicating they were aware of the BKK facility.
The council, along with the residents in that area, were misled
by state regulatory personnel who continued to allow us to
believe the facility was safe.
On September 26, 1984, the Walnut City Council adopted
Ordinance No.410, here for your use, which provided greater
definition of the previous "buyer disclosure ordinance."

Our

intent is to make it unmistakably clear for the prospective buyer
of the potential environmental impact they might experience and
we want them to be able to make a good decision on whether to
purchase a horne in this area.
One of the most recent documents concerning the BKK
operation to be approved by the city council, is Resolution No.
2410, which I also have a copy of for the committee.

The Walnut

City Council unanimously adopted this Resolution which says
specifically quote, "that the City of Walnut supports the closure
of the toxic and nontoxic landfill operations at the BKK
facility, which must include coordinated cleanup of the site."
That is one of the most important elements of the resolution to
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which I request that the committee consider strongly in its
deliberations of this hearing today.
The City of Walnut is growing.

We have carefully

planned the development of single family dwelling units in
commercial areas within the city.

We are proud of our community

and believe it to be one of the nicest cities in Los Angeles
County.

We believe the efforts of your committee, Assemblywoman

Tanner and the Legislature, have been helpful with respect to the
Hazardous Waste Management Plan which is a plan for the future.
The issue in question today is how to solve the problem of the
BKK site with escaping gas that is migrating into Walnut.

Also

the integrity of the water table and the leaking of liquid waste
from the site into the water table that we are concerned.
It is the recommendation of the Walnut City Council
that the facility be closed down.

The health and safety of the

people of West Covina and Walnut, and especially the areas
surrounding the site, must be protected.

We in government have

the duty and obligation to see that it is.
plan to close BKK and clean up that site.

It can begin with a
Again, thank you for

the opportunity of testifying on behalf of the Walnut City
Council.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
Richardson.

Thank you very much, Councilman

I am sorry to say that the Governor vetoed my

Hazardous Waste Management Plan.
MR. RICHARDSON:

You're kidding me.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Yes.
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You'll keep trying?

0
MR. RICHARDSON:

These folks have been trying for many

years to do just what we're suggesting today.

0

The only way to

regulate that outfit is to keep pressure on them.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you.

I'm really interested in the fact

that the disclosure isn't required.

0

MR. RICHARDSON:

Yes, we were too, but that was

presented to the Legislature and unfortunately fell on deaf ears.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. RICHARDSON:

Well, we'll talk about that as well.

I think that's something that not only

would help the people in our area, but also throughout the entire
state.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Do you have any idea whether that

was the Department of Real Estate or were they regs, or was it a
state
MR. RICHARDSON:
expired.
Calendar.

It was Sunset on that legislation that

(inaudible) roll taking, it was on the Consent
The initial contact that I made when I first got

involved with this was with Stirling's office.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Okay, we'll do some research and

follow up on that.
MR. RICHARDSON:

I would suggest that you talk to

Senator Campbell and then also Assemblyman Hill had been involved
with that somewhat.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

The real problem, as Chuck points

out, is the League of Cities, themselves, are fighting
regulations as Chuck points out; he would think that the cities
ought to be supporting it and they're fighting it.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
you very much.

All right we will recess now.

Thank

We'll recess now, it's 12:15 and we will recess

until 1:30.

RECESS:

All right, sorry we were a little late.

We had a

terrible time getting served lunch and then we walked the wrong
way.

Our first witness this afternoon will be Phil Bobel, who is

the Chief of Toxics and Waste Programs Branch from Region IX, the
United States EPA.

Thank you for being here.

MR. PHIL BOBEL:

Good afternoon, my name is Phil Bobel

with EPA's San Francisco office.

The committee asked us seven

questions and I hope I had enough copies for everyone.
do is just read our answers today.
without reading the questions.

What I'll

I think they can be read

They kind of stand alone, but

they do correspond to questions and I'll just say one, two, when
I'm getting to each new question.
CHAIRWOMAN TANUER:
know what

yo~'re

Well, as long as the audience will

responding to.

MR. BOBEL:

Well, why don't I just read the question

too, and if it gets too long you just tell me.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:
1.

Okay.

The first question is:

Question:

What is the current relationship between

EPA and the State Department of Health Services with respect to
the regulation of hazardous waste landfills like the BKK West
Covina facility?
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Answer:

EPA has authorized the Department of Health to

administer much, but not quite all, of their Resources
Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA) Hazardous Waste Program.

DOHS

is authorized to enforce the currently effective RCRA
requirements for a landfill such as BKK.

However, DOHS has not

yet been yet fully authorized to issue the RCRA per.mits for such
facilities, so that part of the responsibility remains with the
EPA.
2.

Question:

The BKK Corporation has withdrawn its

application for a RCRA permit for the West Covina landfill.

What

is the present status of the landfill under RCRA and is the
landfill under interim status?
Answer:

BKK's application for a RCRA permit for the

West Covina facility has been withdrawn.

The facility will

discontinue the acceptance of hazardous waste on
November 30, 1984.

However, the interim status standards

will continue to be in full force and effect even after that
date.

And violation of those standards could mean •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

Question, from Mr. Lancaster.

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

The standards will be in full

force and effect for the interim, but is the permit in full force
and effect, the interim permit?
MR. BOBEL:

There is no permit under the federal system

that's been issued yet.
what you're thinking of.
Health.

The Interim Status Document is probably
That was issued by the Department of

It mirrors the federal interim status requirements
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pretty much.

You can confirm this with the department, but I'm

almost sure that their Interim Status Document also remains in
full force and effect in the community and is being enforced by
them.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

So the role of the EPA is

strictly from the standpoint of the enforcement of the standards.
It has nothing to do with whether or not they do or do not have
interim status permit to operate?
MR. BOBEL:

Well, there is not a discretionary action

there on the part of EPA.

But how the federal regulations work

you have interim status as a matter of regulation and absence a
removal action you continue to have it.

So there is no permit

that is required in the federal system to give you interim
status.

It's something you have by virtue of the fact you notify

and submit an application for removal.
enforced by either.

So the violations can be

Any violations of the interim status

requirements can be enforced by either DOHS or EPA.
3.

Question:

How does the status of the landfill

change, if at all, after November 30th when the site will no
longer accept hazardous waste?

Does the site at that point

become a closed hazardous waste site?

If so, will EPA require

closure and maintenance plan of some sort?
Answer:

After November 30th, the facility must commence

the closure process.

Although termination of the acceptance of

hazardous waste will occur on that date, the facility does not
automatically become a closed facility.
consists of the following major steps:
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The closure process

a)

The closure plan the BKK already has must be revised

as it's currently enacted;
b) The closure plan must undergo review by the
regulatory agencies, the public, and be revised as necessary and
approved by the DOHS.

In this case, we know there will be

extensive modifications that are going to be needed and it is a
public process.

Ultimate approval or disapproval resides in the

Department of Health Services.

Part of the program in general

(inaudible) •
c) The closure plan must be carried out and certified
complete by BKK.

This is the actual physical work on the site of

doing the activities described in the closure plan and certified
as done by BKK, and,
d) Before closure maintenance starts at the time that
the closure was done after the facility is completely closed,
then there is a period of at least 30 years where (inaudible)
will take place and care also maintenance of the facility.
4.

Question:

Is the BKK Landfill presently in

compliance with the applicable RCRA requirements; if not, which
regulations is there noncompliance with and what action has EPA
taken to require compliance?
Answer:

The West Covina facility is not in full

compliance with RCRA.

The principal violations at this point in

time are inadequate groundwater monitoring, inadequate closure
and post-closure plans.

EPA has issued a total of four

non-compliance and enforcement orders to secure compliance.
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5.

Question:

On July 21, 1984, the EPA Regional

Administrator issued an administrative order under Section 106 of
CERCLA.

In that order a determination was made and I'm quoting

from the order, "The actual and threatened releases of hazardous
substances from the BKK facility may present an imminent and
substantial endangerment to the public health, welfare, and
environment."
6.

Question:

Answer:

Whether it (inaudible) the determination.

The basis for the (inaudible) finding was in

large part the finding of air contaminants in the vicinity of the
landfill.

We've provided a copy of the detailed order, but

basically, it was those air contaminants that we found in the
. vicinity of the landfill that was the basis for that statement.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So you are saying, or the EPA is

saying, that there is the actual and. threatened release of
hazardous substance from the facility may present an imminent and
substantial endangerment to the public health.
determination?

You've made that

That is the determination that could or could not

be made through the "501" hearing by the state.

And apparently

you people have made that determination, is that correct?
MR. BOBEL:

But the language is a little bit different

than the "501".
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

Very much the same I would say.

And we haven't done any legal analysis as to

whether our finding exactly corresponds to the "501".
have made the finding at a disclosure.

But we

Your second part of that

question is that the EPA viewed that that determination is still
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valid; if not, what steps have been taken to abate the
endangerment or what circumstances have changed?
Our answer is that the air contaminant levels have
dramatically reduced as a result of the improved gas collection
system.

However, the finding is still valid due to the fact that

a threatened, and we underline the word threatened, release may
be present.

In other words, we don't have to have an actual harm

situation to make that finding that would threaten and the may
part of features that still exist, so we would say this finding
is still valid.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

Thank you.

Question:

What guidelines or criteria does

the EPA use to determine that facility may present an imminent
and substantial endangerment of public health or welfare of our
environment?
Our Answer:

Quantitative criteria doesn't exist.

The

agency interprets the statutory language to refer to potential
releases, as well as actual releases.

Therefore, documentation

of a current danger to the environment is not needed to make a
finding.
I want to do a little more work on this one for you and
actually provide the guidance that we do have from our
headquarters office in Washington as to when one of six orders
are issued.

Unfortunately, I didn't bring that with me; however,

it is true that there is not any quantitative criteria for that
and what we do have in the way of guidelines simply elaborates on
the theme that I just mentioned.
that.
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But we won't provide more on

Next question:

What steps are being or have been taken

to ensure that the landfill gas collection system will be
designed, constructed, and operated so that the migration of
methane and entrained volatile organic compounds off-site will be
reduced to acceptable levels?
Answer:

EPA has issued two enforcement orders requiring

both immediate and more long-term improvements to the gas
collection system.

The Solid Waste Management Board is the

regulatory agency with the greatest expertise in landfill gas
migration.

Their staff are continually reviewing performance of

the gas collection system and a protocol for modification has
been specified by a state court order which directs BKK when any
problems are detected.

To lend further expertise to this

question, EPA has retained landfill gas consultants and a report
is in preparation now on the effectiveness of the newly improved
system in the Lynn Court Miranda areas.

We anticipate that

report being completed in approximately three weeks to a month.
Your next question:

What types of hydrologic studies

remain to be completed in order to adequateJy characterize the
landfill site.

Is there any evidence that leachate has moved

off-site, and what type of leachate collection system will be
required to ensure that leachate and water flowing through the
site does not move off-site or endanger groundwater?
Our answer:

A substantial number of wells and corings

must still be placed to fully characterize the site.

BKK does

not drill wells off-site; EPA is currently sampling new off-site
wells.

We drilled four wells on the southern side off the BKK
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property.

And we have another six cazometers, smaller holes in

the ground that are being built in as well off-site.

Data from

the first four wells is expected to be available in approximately
one month.

The data collected by BKK for an on-site well to

date, suggests that we will find relatively lightly contaminated
water off-site.

We don't anticipate that there will be a sudden

declination with a drop off to zero in property value.

It is

likely that extraction pumping of water and gas on BKK property
I

will be required to prevent further contamination moving
off-site.
Well, those were our answers and we can deal with any
questions.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Any questions, members?

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Yes, I have one.

Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

If I understand your testimony

this afternoon, once the toxic waste ••• correct me if I'm
incorrect in my understanding, once a toxic waste is no longer
going into

th~t

site, from the EPA standpoint, the closure

procedure starts immediately, is that correct?

Regardless of

what permits exist elsewhere.
MR. BOBEL:

Correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

D

So then the closure procedure

plan, would you say at the present time, needs to be revised?
That revision will start within a reasonable amount of time after
that, whether it's a voluntary or involuntary action not to
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accept any toxic waste material anymore, that plan must then go
into effect, is that it?
MR. BOBEL:

Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Okay.

Now that plan by being

revised, my question is, how long do you think that would take?
MR. BOBEL:
right now.

Well, that's one that we're grappling with

The plan is not close to being adequate.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Well, when you say close, you

know, we rate everything today, 20 percent, 30 percent?
MR. BOBEL:
be.

It's like five percent of what it needs to

It was a very short document prepared, assuming that the

landfill would close in, I think, the year 2010, something like
that.

Since it's going to close with many remaining

environmental problems, those problems will have to be addressed
in the closure plan.

And, •••

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. BOBEL:

The closure plan.

Yes, but I'd be addressing the closure plan

and then implement it.

I mean, there are two steps here:

One is

just to figure out what it is that needs to be done; and, second
of course, is just to do it.

The plan will need to be submitted,

they're working on it already, it's not the actual determining.
The November 30th date doesn't always trigger the submittal of
the plan.

The plan should have actually already been submitted.

And it was submitted, but it's inadequate.

So now we're talking

about how much longer is needed to correct the deficiencies in
the plan.

I think that a minimum of two months is going to be

needed and possibly more time, possibly as long as four more
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months to complete, for BKK to complete and resubmit.

Then when

we get into a loop with the agencies reviewing it, the public
reviewing it and I suspect there will be more corrections and
additions even beyond that.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Public review, does that require

public hearings?
MR. BOBEL:

Yes.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

When a permit under RCRA is granted

to a facility like this, is there a requirement that the
applicant also agree to your closure plan?
MR. BOBEL:

Yes.

If one is not in existence in this

case, but if one were •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

Pardon?

There hasn't been a permit issued to this

but if one was, a closure plan •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

There was an interim permit?

There was this Interim Status Document

issued actually •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

That was

..• by the state.

there is no interim permit issued.

th~

state, yes.

In the federal system,

There are simply regulations

that you have to obey immediately, you haven't been issued a
document.

You just read in the Federal Register what the

requirements are.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So there wasn't any formal agreement

then through .permitting for closure?
MR. BOBEL:

No.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

How does the EPA force a facility to

meet the requirements for closure if there wasn't any •..
MR. BOBEL:

You mean, say they didn't resubmit a closure

plan, what enforcement recourse do they have?
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

Yes.

If they don't resubmit the closure plan,

then we enforce the requirement that they have a closure plan and
that it be submitted.

Actually, we've already sent them one

warning letter not associated with the November 30th date because
they didn't have a closure plan.

So the next step would be to

force them, at minimum an enforcement order which would possibly
be a referral to the department of Justice because of the
(inaudible) •
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BOBEL:

I see.

So we do have an enforcement mechanism to

enforce if the closure plan is inadequate or if it takes too long
to (cough- inaudible).
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Any questions, members?

Thank you

very much.
Our next witness is Angelo Bellomo, who is the Chief of
the Southern California Section of the Toxic Substances Control
Division for the State Department of Health Services.

The

Department of Health Services has been mentioned often today.
We're happy to have you here.
MR. ANGELO BELLOMO:

Thank you.

I'm aware of some of

the major concerns that have been expressed by the committee in
view of some contacts I've had with committee staff earlier.
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I

think what I'd like to do in view of what you've heard this
morning already, I think I'd like to cut my comments short.

I

have about two or three minutes worth of comments and I'd like to
respond to some questions you might have.
I have with me today also, Mr. Azadero, who is our
Project Manager, who will be· giving more details and will be
available for that.
There are three major concerns that I'd like to discuss
with the committee at this point.

The first one in order of

priority for our department, is the gas problem, the landfill gas
problem.

Efforts underway right now are to expand the current

system for controlling landfill gas emissions and to eventually
ring the perimeter of the site with a series of gas extraction
wells that will prevent or control
pe~imeter.

th~t

problem in that

Parallel efforts that you've heard about this morning

that is extremely important in the Number One priority in terms
of where we go on the site deals with our ongoing
characterizations of the exposures that are in the community as a
result of the gas emissions.

Specifically, the parallel effort

of monitoring the community air so that we can make determination
as to the short-term and long-term health effects and the
eventual occupancy of the homes in that area, we're looking at
probably a program that we'll be able to answer in short-term,
anyway, several weeks, but before we can make a definitive
statement on the suitability of these homes that are immediately
adjoining the landfill from here on out is probably going to take
anywhere from six to twelve months of additional monitoring for
that determination to be made.
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The second major priority, although it's right up there
with Number One, the second major priority has to do with
defining the nature and extent of the problems of the landfill,
other than the gas migration problems, and developing and
implementing the plan for correcting those problems.

There has

been a lot of confusion and misinterpretation on the term, site
characterization, and I would like to just spend a half a minute
describing that.

Site characterization is done for two reasons.

The first one is, in the case of BKK, the site operators were
attempting to secure state and federal permits for their
operation and have to demonstrate the integrity of the landfjll.
So you do a

s~ries

of geologic studies, hydrogeologic studies to

determine whether or not the landfill is acceptable.

The second

major reason for site characterization which is pertinent now
even if the landfill is closing, is to determine what the nature
and extent of the problems are so that we could correct them.
think in terms of site characterization, one of the major
concerns that I've heard expressed recently is that site
characterization is slowing and, in fact, site characterization
efforts are being abandoned.

I would be happy to comment further

on that later.
The third major concern that I know this committee is
dealing with today, is the status of the facility.
the action is a voluntary action on the part of BKK.

Specifically,
The obvious

follow-up to that is what if this action is voluntarily rescinded
or taken back?
waste?

Will the landfill be allowed to accept hazardous

What I can tell you this morning is that the Department
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of Health Services and several of the agencies that we have
conferred with lead us to the decision recently that the landfill

0 ·

had major deficiencies in it and in evaluating those
deficiencies, the department conferred with the other agencies
and it made the determination that these deficiencies would not
warrant issuing a permit to the facility.
voluntary.

The action is

If the landfill were not to close on December 1, that

would put the agencies back in the same position they were prior
to the voluntary action being taken and a decision would be made
as to whether or not regulatory action is necessary.
The ISD does remain in effect, as Mr. Bobel indicated.
The ISD will remain in effect until, unless there is some action
by the department, the Interim Status Document will remain in
effect until the closure permit is issued and then the document
that will, the overriding document regulating the site during the
30-year post-closure period, will be the closure plan permit.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

May I ask a question?

Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLYMA}l LANCASTER:

Why does the permit have to

remain in effect until the closure plan permit is issued?
MR. BELLOMO:

It doesn't, Mr. Lancaster.

The Interim

Status Document, there are a number of things that can be done1
the document can be amended1 it could be rescinded, although that
hasn't been done yet.

Normally what's done is a decision is made

on a permit, either, "Yes, you may have a permit," or "No, you
may not have a permit," and if the decisipn is the latter, then
the Interim Status Document goes away.
121

It just disappears.

And

that's the way it's been handled in the past with the regulatory
program.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

We've heard from EPA whether the

fact of the matter is, just by the mere fact that the BKK will no
longer accept toxic materials, that starts the process for the
closure permit.
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

ASSEMBLYMru1 LANCASTER:

So it's within the power then of

the department to rescind the Interim Status Document at any
time.
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes.

That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Do they have to go through a

public hearing process or any administrative process in order to
do this?
MR. BELLOMO:

It is unclear to us now.

There is an

administrative process available to us7 however, there is some
question in the law as to whether or not a hearing would be
required.

I don't believe with the current state regulations, a

hearing would be required to rescind, or certainly not to modify
the ISD.

That's been done in several prior meetings.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

interrupt.

Why is that unclear?

I am sorry to

Why is it unclear to the department?

MR. BELLOMO:

Well, because there are federal

requirements and the department's position, in fact, there are
some pending regulations right now that have not been issued.

I

don't believe they've been issued as of this date but they may be
by December which would (coughing - inaudible) the same
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procedural or administrative process as the federal government.
The federal government would have to hold a hearing and it is a
0

process that takes quite some time in the future.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Hill?

Were you finished, Mr.

Lancaster?

0

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

No, I just want to see if I

understand what you said earlier.

The fact of the matter is that

there is some confusion, and I think the confusion is kind of
borne out by maybe some correspondence or something in this area
that the site characterization study is still a high Number One
priority of the department.
MR. BELLOMO:

Is that correct?

Absolutely.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

All right.

sure that that's clearly understood.

And I want to make

Now you're maybe

emphasizing at this point the need to do some work outside where
the immediate situation is with the homes and things of this
nature, but you're not backing off at all.
MR. BELLOMO:

Mr. Lancaster, I noticed that Chairwoman

Tanner did request a copy of the work plan and there is a copy, a
work copy.

This work plan, which is the assessment and

mitigation, characterization and mitigation work plan is the
overall value document that is guiding not only our department
but all of the agencies that sit on an interagency steering
committee in terms of ensuring the characterization is completed.
ASSEMBLYMAN

LM~CASTER:

But there's no de-emphasizing of

that need?
MR. BELLOMO:

None whatsoever.
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Okay, and I also am very pleased

to hear you state before the committee that the department and
the agencies involved in the enforcement aspect, are very earnest
and I use that term, word "earnest" about the fact that December
1st is the deadline.
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes, that's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. BELLOMO:

Okay.

But again, it's a self-imposed deadline

and •••
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. BELLOMO:

At this point.

••• that's right, and as I said, and I

don't want to second-guess certainly any of the agencies besides
my own.

At this point, all I can say is that we were all, at

least my agency, was in a position to render a decision on the
suitability of the site to accept hazardous waste, but the
actions of the operator were such that that decision wasn't
necessary.

I mean, they may have to review that again,' but I

don't think so.

I think I'm a born optimist in this case, but I

believe the site is going to
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
any confusion about the date.

Well, I'm trying to eliminate
December 1st is the date and after

November 30th there will be no more toxic materials taken into
that site •.•
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

..• which, as I mentioned this

morning, we hear that it's a very positive thing 'cause you know
we're cleaning out a lot of toxic sites in this state.
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Some of

that material was wandering our way and no longer can it wander
our way.
MR. BELLOMO:

!-1r. Lancaster, from the statewide

perspective though, what you're saying is true.

From the

statewide perspective, we're very concerned about where that
waste is going.

It's separate and apart from BKK but that's

another subject.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

But it was coming this way for a

while and no longer.
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Thank you.

Mr. Hill has questions.
Mr. Bellomo, first, I want to

apologize, because of all the people that my office has dealt
with in the Department of Health Services, clearly you stand out
as kind of a shining light as far as being responsive and I
appreciate that.
here.

I'm sorry that you're the only person who's

I'll go on to the next part of my question but I did want

to preface that.
You know, I think it's unconscionable that the
Department of Health Services is refusing to hold this "501"
hearing when we have a situation where we have people evacuated
from their

homes~

no choice.

They weren't given any options.

They're given the option on the other end, whether or not they
move in.

Sally Tanner, myself, Bill Lancaster signed the letter

to the department asking Peter Rank to hold a "501" hearing and
nobody seems to be willing to deal with this controversy or this
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conflict; this inherent conflict that says, "Yes, people
shouldn't be in their homes because it's not safe."

Yet the

department is not willing to hold a "501" hearing to determine
whether or not it's safe.

And I want to know, I'd like to hear

your response on how I explain that to the constituents.
MR. BELLOMO:

Okay.

I think we have an obligation, all

of us, certainly my agency and my staff have an obligation to
explain that.

Essentially, the "501", the way the department's

view is, we can all get in a room and spend four hours debating
this problem, but the way our department views the "501", is that
that is a tool that the department may have to use at some time
in the future when we have a facility that meets all our
technical requirements,

But due to local concern about the site,

unfounded local concern, and this can happen, there can be an
environment where some local official may be so concerned about a
particular site, even though it meets all requirements that he
could close it, and that was the purpose of the bill being placed
in.

There is a provision, however, which says that if the

department determines, after public hearing, that the site may
present an imminent and substantial endangerment, then any local
agency can come in and take actions necessary to close the site
or to research the site.
Our position right now is that we're not in a position
where we are embargoed by a court order, or we are prevented from
taking action that we feel is necessary to protect the public
health.

We're not in that situation.

use the "501" at our discretion.
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If we were, then we would

Now, there is a lawsuit now

0

that says the department --it's non-discretionary for the
department as to when to hold the hearing, in fact, the
0

department is abusing their discretion that was granted to them
by the Legislature and that's a subject that I haven't, I
certainly probably know better than to comment on than anyone

0

else in the room as to how that's going to end up in the court.
Current law sees that we're doing everything that can be done and
I will repeat something that I said to the City of West Covina
repeatedly:

Anybody who can demonstrate that the "501" provision

is standing in the way from any local, regional, federal agency
from taking whatever is necessary to either abate a nuisance or
protect public health, and we will do everything we have to do to
get that section out of the way.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:
bureaucratic runaround.

Yeah, but that's just the

What are you going to say to the people

who were out of their homes, "Can I move back in?"

Are you

willing to hold a public hearing to say that it is safe, you can
move back in.
MR. BELLOMO:

No, no.

If we did hold a public hearing

right now, what would we come up with?

We would come up with a

statement similar to the one that EPA had issued and there were
certainly, if the decision was made to evacuate homes, which I
personally consulted with city officials and other officials the
evening the homes were evacuated, and made the decision that the
homes would be evacuated.

At the time the decision was made,

could anybody deny that an imminent or substantial danger may
have existed?

Certainly not.

So the determination is not the
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test, the test is really whether or not that tool, a "501"
hearing is necessary for all of us, government and you folks, all
of us who protect public health.
My personal feeling, Mr. Hill, aside from what I've said
the department's position is, is that it's not necessary.

But I

really, sincerely, I would like to hear from somebody as to why
i t is and then I will know, perhaps, fight to change that policy.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:
have it both ways.

It just seems to me that you can't

I wasn't in the Legislature when SB 501 was

passed, but basically, the concept behind it was that this is a
statewide problem, we're going to preempt the cities, we're going
to take it out of the hands of the City of West Covina and we're
not going to give them the authority in that area.
went through there.

It passed and

Yet, at the same standpoint, when the City

of West Covina wants that hearing, wants that assurance from the
people who want that, nobody is willing to give it to them.
MR. BELLOMO:

Well, I can answer any questions that

would be asked during the hearing.
ASSE~lliLYMAN

HILL:

families move back in?
MR. BELLOMO:

We could do that now.

All right, should those other 11

Is it safe?
No.

Our recommendation on the remaining

ten homes is that we were are not ready to recommend reoccupancy
and that is why we have asked those people to stay out.

That

situation may change, Mr. Hill, but "501" isn't going to change
it.
On the other hand, I have to admit, again, looking at
this in the most objective way I can, there is a lawsuit filed
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that challenges the discretion the department is using in the
hearing.

I'm just saying that if we were to decide, "Yes, the

hearing is available," I'm just wondering where that will bring
us, to what end that will bring us if we're not already
(inaudible).
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

l~hat

about those people who have

been evacuated and then told that they could move back in?
they safely move back in?

Can

I mean, this is a very frightening

thing and especially, when you consider that someone next door is
not, it's not safe for that family to move in, yet the department
is saying, "Yes, you may move in, it's safe."
wouldn't move in, I would hesitate to move in.

I think, I know l
The question is,

there's a lot of money involved, too, for the families that have
moved out and then have been told that they could move back in.
Now they care about their families, they care about themselves,
and so, what do they do?

They stay out and pay rent in another

house and make the payments on this house.

And the state, I

feel, is dilly dallying, you know.
MR. BELLOMO:

Okay.

With regards to the whole situation

of the evacuated residents, I wish on the matter of safety, I
could give you an honest answer either on behalf of the
department or as an individual.
CHAIRWOMAN

D

T~lNER:

But that's your responsibility, you

see?
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes, I know.

But many of you already know

that in terms of safety, and Mrs. Tanner, you know that a study
was done at the site and determined that the risk, and what we're
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talking about here is the relative risk, the risk of those
homeowners around the site is greater than the risk of anyone
else in t he L.A. Basin in terms of vinyl chloride exposure.
is a finding that we've known now for some time.

That

The question is

when do we consider that risk so unacceptable that we are going
to displace people from their homes?

These new findings of vinyl

chloride and other gases from landfill gas migration, we don't
have the information now to say definitively, "That house has
reached an unacceptable risk."
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BELLOMO:

We do know because .•.

Why don't we have that information?

••• it's going to take us, not that we're

not monitoring every day, we're out there monitoring every day,
but it's going to take our expert testimony and I'm talking about
an interagency member and you can certainly confer with the other
agencies involved.

we estimate that we can make a decision now

as to whether or not those people living in those homes would
represent short-term exposure.

But we're really reluctant to

say, "It's okay to move back into your homes for a couple of
weeks."

We want to be able to say, the big picture, and that is,

what is the "forever" suitability of living within those homes?
we want to be able to tell and assure residents, "We will have
that answer for you in six or eight months."

We don't have the

number yet, but when we have that answer ...
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BELLOMO:

Why?

Well, we don't know yet whether it's going

to be six or eight months, because we're developing that extended
monitoring program presently.

~vhat
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we can tell people right now

is that the exposures that have been seen in the other nine homes
that were evacuated, and the department and EPA said could be
reoccupied, those exposures are within acceptable

~imits

to

tolerate a matter of monitoring years, but we still, even in
those cases, can't say that it's an acceptable place to live for
the next 30 years.

We just can't do that based on the

information we have.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

You know, you've got ten houses

where you still say they cannot move back in, it's not safe, in
effect, it's not safe.

You have 11, I guess, where you say, "Go

ahead, you can move back in."

But once you say, "Go ahead and

move back in," then the hardship, economic hardships start
developing on these 11 houses, on these 11 families and this is
where circumstances are created.

You've got ten people that are

still receiving aid, right, or ten families, and you have 11 now
because you made this determination that, very candidly, appears
to be quite vague to me.

Now they're off the economic aid and

the hardship, economic hardship is now being created on these 11
families, and I don't understand why you even say anybody can
move back in at this point.
MR. BELLOMO:

Mr. Lancaster, a lot of people have

suggested that perhaps the improper action to begin with was to
even evacuate the homes.

I can only tell you that in addition to

the concern with the people who we said can go back to their
homes, in addition to those concerns, there are neighbors across
the street and two and three blocks away who are concerned with,
"Why wasn't I evacuated?"

And there are criteria and there are
131

numbers that we've established.

There is a protocol that is

unmatched anywhere in the country in terms of the effort that is
going in this monitoring program.

It cannot be done in a better

way elsewhere; it's not being done and we've consulted with
everybody that's ever done this kind of evaluation and the
agencies that are carrying forth with it now are confident that
this is what we have to do before we can make those kinds of
statements.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Right now, BKK is paying the

costs, as I understand, via the local community, of those
families who still can't move back to their houses, is that
correct?
MR. BEI.LOMO:

Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

But by your action, you remove

the responsibility of the city or BKK to pay the costs of the 11
families.
MR. BELLOMO:

That's correct.

We no longer require BKK

to pay those.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

All right, so the Legislature,

now this is what's come up in this committee all day long, the
Legislature is now going to have to be faced with some sort of
responsibility if, in fact, there are circumstances and the
hearing probably I guess will determine that, of trying to help
these people, these other 11 families.
l>1R. BELLOMO:

I know, the risks that they're subject to

in the 11 families, the ones that have been authorized to move
back ...
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

You go back there tomorrow and

you say, "House number nine, you're okay."
left.

And you keep going.
MR. BELLOMO:

Then you've got nine

Then the Legislature moves in.

Right.

Those homes that are in that vague

area that you mention are also accompanied by a number of homes
in that area that have already been told that they do suffer some
increased risk, some increased health risk, because the levels
are elevated.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I'm not getting after you, but I

guess I'm really pointing out the fact that there might be a
glitch in the law here.

You're not saying it's safe, but you're

not saying that it's unsafe, so they move back in and they won't
move back in for fear reasons, and therefore the economic
circumstances could be severe on some of these families.
MR. BELLOMO:

I can only tell you that you're

referencing a problem that does exist.
answers.

I don't have all the

The agencies that are working with us do not have all

the answers but we're open to suggestions.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I have a feeling there may be

some legislative suggestions down the line someplace.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Your department can determine when

it's safe, right?
MR. BELLOMO:

We will determine when the risk is

acceptable.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

But you can't determine when it's

unsafe?
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MR. BELLOMO:

Yes, we have done that for a number of

homes and that ' s why they were .•. see, unsafe, Mrs. Tanner, may
be because we don't know enough about them ..•
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BELLOMO:

It's relative.

••• in other words, we can say, "We don't

know enough about your home, but these two homes over here were
both evacuated so as a precaution, we're taking you out."
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Okay.

Now the six to eight months,

what is the six to eight month delay?

I mean, what is the reason

for that "six to eight months from now, we will know?"
MR. BELLOMO:

Okay.

If we were to take measurements

now, over the next two months, and use as a basis for our
decision about long-term suitability of those homes, and then we
get into the wet season, where we're in another part of the year
where the atmosphere and pressure changes, where in the day the
sun stays out a longer period of time, there can be variations.
So that the real objective we're trying to reach here is trying
to define the actual exposure, what are these people being
exposed to?

We can't do that jn a short period of time.

We have

to let almost a season go by before you can get the full range of
exposures.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Oh, I see.

I understand.

But if the decision can be made on so

many •.. what bothers me is the so-called vagueness that Mr.
Lancaster points out, how do you get a handle on the process?
Are you going to say at a certain point, so many parts per
billion of vinyl chloride, if you get below that, then it's
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acceptable to move in?

That's the kind of thing, it seems to me,

that needs to be done; not this grab bag effort that nobody gets
a handle on.
MR. BELLOMO:

Mr. Hill, that's exactly what has to be

done is that we do have to, and again those numbers are not

0

readily available.

I think it was mentioned earlier that there

are no numbers readily available, but we do have to establish a
set of what's called the criteria, we need the numbers.

If we

don't have them now, we'll have to develop them and we're going
to have to say to people fall into this exposure are not
readily available, but we do have to establish a set of what's
called the criteria, we need the numbers.
now, we are going to have to develop them.

We don't have them
We are going to have

to say people fall into this exposure, that is considered
acceptable by government and our recommendation is that you go
ahead and try to (inaudible).

That determination is not going to

be very comforting for many of the people who are convinced that
their home is never going to be safe to occupy.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

What are the standards?

How many

parts per million or billion?
MR. BELLOMO:

Well, if we are talking about vinyl

chloride and our technical folks tell us a good indicator right
now, the ambient air quality standard is ten parts per billion
and I think Mr. Camarena, when he makes his remarks, can tell you
what the levels that are found in or around the L.A. Basin with
that constituent and others.
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We do have very specific criteria when we go in.
doing monitoring today.

We ' re

When we go into a home and we exceed a

certain level of vinyl chloride, then that says the house must be
evacuated until we can take some repeated measurements over a
period of time and then make a decision as to whether that was an
anomaly in the data or whether that really was the number as far
as the exposure.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I'm curious as to why the gas

company discovered that there was a problem and not the
department?
MR. BELLOMO:

Because the regulatory agencies that were

involved in establishing {inaudible) controls are not doing their
job.

And that's the reason.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Gastellum said that in May of

this year, BKK presented the Department of Health Services with a
plan to gather, to collect and to

to monitor and to collect

the gases and the department {was it the Department of Health
Services that turned .•• ?)
UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:

He said the regulatory agencies do

not ••.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I thought I asked him who, and he

said "Turned the application down or the plan down."
MR. BELLOMO:

I think, Mrs. Tanner, that that is their

version of what happened.

However, you have to keep in mind that

the site operators have been under (inaudible) •.• by a number of
agencies, including Air Quality Management District to make up
(inaudible) ..• to the system.
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When they propose a system that will go in and work up,
dig up a bunch of gas wells and we are going to expand the system

0

and we don't have a clear handle on what is going to happen,
because I'll tell you something, Mrs. Tanner, in moving ahead and
mitigating the site, if we were to extract liquids from a certain
ar~a,

and this has happened along the southeastern portions of

the site, if this is the landfill, and this is the border here on
the southeastern and the homes are over here, when you extract
liquids, and this is an effort, everybody would agree there are
liquids building up there that are contaminated, let's pump them
out and get rid of them.

There is just one example where if you

were to lower the water level and you would increase the window
through which migrating gases could go.
(inaudible)

You may be increasing

migrating gases will go under the existing gas

(inaudible) system.

And it is this interplay between trying to

put in a gas migration system and to put

~n

water for leachate

systems that has to be delicately balanced and our two agencies
agree that we are going to take a very cautious approach to any
proposal by BKK.

l~e

didn't want to leave anything to chance and

then have a problem.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I see.

Did you, Mr. Lancaster, want

to go into the •••
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Yes , I do.

Is that the reason

why the pumping was stopped on the various permit
This was not actually BKK's fault then.

r~quirements?

It was-- I'll put it

another way -- it was not BKK's decision to stop the pumping on
the permit requirement then, is that correct?
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MR. BELLOMO:

Unless something else migrates into that

area, that's correct.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

In other words, the agencies

involved, your agency and other agencies, were concerned about
expanding the gas, I guess, if they pumped the liquids out.

Is

that correct?
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

This process is going to

have to be a very delicately phased process.
ASSEMBLYMAl~

LANCASTER:

Okay.

Well, that clears up one

of the questions I had this morning, because I couldn't
understand why as the permit required a constant pumping,
recycling and this type of thing of the pool, but they had to
stop because they were concerned about the gas expanding.
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes, there were at least one or two

occasions I can think of where our agencies had to stop
proceeding with this particular process because we had to
determine yet what impact it would have on another problem.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
West Covina informed?

Do you attempt to keep the people in

Is there an attempt to keep the people

informed, because this has been a serious question and clearly
the people in the city, I mean the city officials and I'm sure
the citizens of West Covina wondered why is BKK not doing what
they are supposed to be doing; pumping.
MR. BELLOMO:
that way.

There is no excuse for the city to feel

I would be happy to discuss that part with anyone here

from the city.

With regard to the residents, I will tell you,

no, we have never done -- classically we have done a very poor
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job of keeping residents informed.

Since the Environmental

Protection agency has gotten involved and they have placed a
0

great deal of resources on this, we have been able to do a much
better job of keeping the residents informed.

That's been a

concern of ours and we need to do much more in that area.

0

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Well, I think it's, now that we

understand why the pumping was done, it would have been unsafe,
apparently, to just, without consideration of the gases, pump the
liquids.

But you know, those of us who are not in the business

of -- experts in this field -- and the citizens out there would
have to wonder why in the world would they stop pumping if there
is an overflow or if that water, if that overflow is endangering
the groundwater, and you know there are so many . questions that
could have very easily been answered •••
MR. BELLOMO:

Right.

See in a gas well that is going to

collect migrating gases has to be down to the point where it runs
into a saturated zone or a water.
have to extend the well.
hand-in-hand like that.

After you pump that down, you

And the process is going to go
Let's not use this valid explanation as

to why there have been delays, though, to temper the way we feel
about the general delays the department is having right now.
(inaudible).

The operators are claiming that their resources are

being overburdened at the present time simply because they are
responding to gas migration problems and they have a point there.
But the government and industry together, in this case, are going
to make sure that an adequate level of resources is provided.
believe BKK is responsible for that and can, and if they are to
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We

(inaudible) inconsistent direction, which I do not believe there
is now by the agencies, I think the agencies have their heads
clearly in the same direction and, again, I would be happy to
hear from the agencies that that is not their perception.
ASSEMBLYI~N

characterization.

HILL:

I would like to talk about the site

I want to get back to the "501", too.

It

seems to me that there is something inherently wrong with having
the BKK Corporation do its own site characterization study.

They

are looking at the geology to see whether or not it is safe, yet
they are doing that inhouse.

I asked the same question of

Mr. Gastellum this morning and he said that they offered, back in
May, to pay for it and let the Department of Health Services pick
the contractor and they would fund it and the project would be
done and we keep hearing about those delays.
MR. BELLOMO:
Hill.

Somebody has misdescribed that to you, Mr.

It's true that we are doing the study inhouse, but they've

got all the doors and windows open and an inspector looking into
every one of them.

We have staff on the site

o~

a daily basis.

We share that responsibility with EPA; I'm talk i ng about
geologists now, with EPA, Regional Board and the Department of
Health Services.

We could not, and I'm going to tell you as

honestly as I can, government could not have placed a level of
resources and spent the money in as efficient a manner as has
been done out there since December.

We have studied that site

more since December, and have studied it to our specifications,
not the operator's specifications, using their resources and
their

corr~itments

more than any site in the country has been
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0
studied.

I wish we could do it faster and maybe we would, but I

think there is an obligation and the way we have operated in the
0

past, classically, is that we just don't go to sleep and have
someone else conduct the study.

We are using their people, we

are using their dollars, we are guiding with the use of that work
0

plan, everything that is being done and we do have observers in
the field on a daily basis.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

•

And this is going to bring the

plan -- it seems to me that we are approving that in the
Legislature all the time; the contracts, or the state or the
department contracts out with private geologists and have a _study
done.
MR. BELLOMO:

We are contracting out with private

geologists and we are contracting out with a number of other
firms.

Some of the work that is being done is being funded by

the BKK, appropriately.

Other work that is not appropriately

funded by them is being funded by the Environmental Protection
Agency or our department.

Even the Division of Water Quality

Control Board has a geologist that is. working with them on loan
from another agency.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

It just seems to me that there is

something inherently wrong with the entire structure and I don't
hear you saying anything except well that's kind of the way
things evolve.
MR. BELLOMO:

No.

If I thought by giving this

department $100 billion right now, earmarked for the BKK we could
get the problem solved quicker, then I would suggest that you do
that.
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ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Well, let's talk about that.

I am a

Republican and I got unbelievable pressure from the
Administration when I voted for a veto override of the Governor
who cut out $6 million, roughly, out of a $30 billion budget out
of Department of Health Services' budget.

And all through the

whole process, the Department of Health Services kept saying,
we've got the staff, we can do it, we can monitor it, we don't
need the extra money, we're doing so much more than Jerry Brown
ever did.

Yet we get a response to that, to the letter asking

for the "501" hearing.

Let me quote it so I don't get it wrong.

Peter Rank, Department of Health Services Director says, "It is
my belief that holding such a hearing would of necessity divert
much needed resources from the investigation which is presently
under way."

Now what's the story?

have the money?

Have you gotten-- do you

Is this taking away resources?

I am getting

mixed signals.
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes, the money has not been a constraint

expressed by any of the regulatory agencies working on this, and
we meet once a week.

But again, I will just tell you my position

right now is that we do have the money, Mr. Hill, and I thought
if we needed more, we would get it.

But by having the money, we

either have the money or have access to it.

I am asking my

department right now for money to hire a contractor to do
specified work.

But there has been a constraint in the past.

With regard to your -- the veto and the veto override,
all I can say is that I think many of those positions dealt more
with toxics control than it did with hazardous waste management.
And I don't have any specific details.
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0

ASSEMBtYMAN HILL:

In closing, and I want to, again, I

want to apologize because you have been the most responsive of
0

anybody in Health Services dealing with this.

I think the

Department of Health Services is ignoring the law.
very clear that a "501" hearing should be held.
0

I think it is

I think the City

of West Covina is going to win in court and that that hearing is
going to have to be held.

If not, I can guarantee you that

legislation is going to come as a result of this hearing and it
is going to narrow it down so tightly that the Department of
Health Services isn't going to have any choice and there isn't a
doubt in my mind that it is going to get to the Governor's desk.
MR. BELLOMO:

May I make one more statement in response

to that -- and that is that the hearing for us is not an issue of
BKK.

The department's position about wanting to maintain some

control over a site has to do with a site where we believe the
site should not close and the local jurisdiction is closing it.
So all I am saying is if the department isn't holding up, fine,
but what I am saying is that we don't want locals to take action
here locally.
necessary.

There is some of that action we believe is

But again, the whole position is based on

~he

statewide perspective with wanting to have some authority.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right.

about, then the EPA tells us when closure

When December 1st comes
b~gins.

There are

certain requirements that BKK will have to meet for closure and
maintenance of this site.

We pass legislation that would require

the Department of Health Services to adopt regulations for
closure.

Apparently, the department hasn't adopted closure regs,

or, they have?
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MR. BELLOMO:

Not yet.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That's what I thought.

Now when

closure begins, and it will be EPA regs that the BKK will have to
follow, there's been also a discussion that BKK is planning on
accepting solid waste, nonhazardous solid waste.

Well, how can

you have closure and accept additional waste?
MR. BELLOMO:

The term "closure" refers to, in this case

that we're using and that Mr. Hill used that refers to closing
site, formally closing the site to the acceptance of hazardous
waste.
plan.

Now your question has to be addressed in the closure
BKK will have to demonstrate how you can successfully

close a site to hazardous waste and yet keep the site open to
refuse.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

And \-That about the existing

hazardous waste that's in the site?
MR. BELLOMO:

That is going to be the subject of the

control efforts that you are either arguing now or will be
decided upon once the problem has been defined.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Is the department considering

demanding or participating in detoxification or something, or
doing something with that toxic material that's in the site?
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes, I think that the major

there are

two objectives, two options that all of you are aware of.

One is

to simply contain the wastes that are in there t.o not allow it to
migrate further.
CHAIRWONAN TANNER:

If you encapsulate it, then you

can't accept solid waste, can you?
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0
MR. BELLOMO:

Well, that's -- perhaps that true, but you

could encapsulate it and put hazardous waste on top of it.

0

That's one option.

I'm sorry, refuse on top of it.

Again, that's not something that I'll come up with.
That is something that on-site operators will address in their

0

closure plan and I don't want to second guess what options are
available to them.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

How far along are we in the state in

preparing and adopting regs for closure?
MR. BELLOMO:

As part of our overall effort to adopt

RCRA federal equivalent regs, the package is under review in the
Office of Administrative Law and we expect some action out of
them shortly.
CHAIRWOMAN TAlfflER:

Oh, so there are regs that are

already being studied by the Office of Administrative Law?
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

We would like to see those proposed

regs.
MR. BELLOMO:

Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I have one final question.

Mr. Lancaster.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Let us say that the EPA regs or

whatever regs are established, the closure permit is issued for
toxic hazardous waste on that site.
considered a Class I site.

It no longer can be

It then reverts to a Class II.

say the closing permit allows that.

Let's

Outside of the enforcement

of the closure permit on Class I materials, who then assumes
jurisdiction under the law for the Class II site?
145

MR. BELLOMO:

Well, the jurisdictional authority now

will remain the jurisdictional authority and that is the City of
West Covina, who jointly shares that responsibility with the
County of Los Angeles as the twin, or joint, local enforcement
agencies for the State Solid Waste Management Act.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

So the state, in effect, outside

of our oversight responsibilities and the enforcement of the
closure are met through EPA, I presume.

It really doesn't get

involved in the jurisdictional question of -- it really becomes a
city and county responsibility.
MR. BEI.LOMO:

That's correct.

The only time it would

become a problem there is if, for example, it was hampering our
efforts to mitigate the site.
ASSEMBLYMAN I,ANCASTER:
MR. BELLOMO:

Right.

On the closure permit?
But assuming that that is all

approved, i t will revert to the (inaudible) •••
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Which removes this cloud that

"501" kind of created on the property.
~tR.

BELLOMO:

Yes.

ASSEMBLYrt.AN LANCASTER:

"501" created the cloud of

accepting jurisdiction by the state of the toxic materials, but
"501", if I remember correctly, has nothing to do with a Class II
site.
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

So that goes back to the normal

local channels, with the exception of the toxic.
MR. BELLOMO:

Yes.
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

In other words, passage of "SOl"

with the state assuming the responsibility, in my opinion, of

0

hazardous waste sites, of hazardous waste.
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

Once the facility stops

accepting hazardous waste, I don't think, I think there will be
-- once the facility stops accepting hazardous waste under
closure, I don't believe that there is any state requirements
that would -- I don't believe there would be any enforcement
other than the local enforcement agencies, that is the City of
West Covina and County Health Department.
ASSEMBLYMAN
moot.

Lru~CASTER:

Which makes the "SOl" hearing

Because the "SOl" hearing does not apply to Class II

dumps.
MR. BELLOMO:

That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

That's correct.

Just to make sure that I am clear, so

your position is that it is -- "501" says that it has to be an
operating Class I facility, operating, you take it to mean you
have to be continually accepting Class I taxies.

The fact that

the 7SO million gallons in there, it could still be considered a
Class II site just because you are no longer accepting that?
MR. BELLOMO:

Well, again, if the locals want to

let's say ten years from now the locals want to go in and
unreasonably regulate hazardous waste.

In other words, they may

do something, this is not going to happen, but they may do
something that would prevent us from maintaining the leachate
collection and gas collection systems and certainly we would say
you are preempted from regulating hazardous waste.
147

You've got to

maintain these systems.

With regard to refuse that Mr. Lancaster

referenced, I can't think of a situation where "501" is an issue
at this point.

I may be wrong.

ASSEMBLYMM~

LANCASTER:

I don't think it applies.

don't think it applies to a Class II site.

You

We don't have

anything to do with the sanitation district Class II sites.
MR. BELLOMO:

Mr. Lancaster, I don't believe it applies,

either, but I don't know for sure.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BELLOMO:

Any other questions?

One correction that somebody just handed

me and I am sorry that I neglected to mention this.

The Regional

Board -- the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board
does have authority over the designation of Class II for
acceptance of refuse.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. BELLOMO:

No, that is the Regional Quality •••

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
MR. BELLOMO:

The state?

••• Water Control.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. BELLOMO:

But that is Los Angeles County.

Regional Water Authority.

Okay.

All right, thank you very much.

You bet.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I think he did a nice job of

testifying.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

He did.
It is rather nice to have someone

from the Department of Health Services here who is so candid and
direct.

I really do appreciate your testimony.

much.
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Thank you very

0

Our next witness is Mrs. Christine Reed, Chairman of the
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board.
0

Oh, someone

said -- yes, she can't make it.
Now, this is Robert Ghirelli, Executive Officer, Los
Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board.

0

Mrs. Reed couldn't

make it.
MR. ROBERT P. GHIRELLI:

She sends her apologies.

She

had a prior commitment •

•

My name is Robert Ghirelli and I am the Executive
Officer of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board,
Los Angeles Region.
Before I get into my testimony, to clarify one point,
Mr. Lancaster, regarding the role of the Regional Board in the
Class I versus the Class II designation, the Regional Board would
take an action, or could take an action regarding the designation
of that facility.

It could remain as a Class I

facility~

it

could be downgraded to a Class II facility, or even a Class III
facility, depending on the technical merits of the data that we
get out of the characterization work.

That is a decision that

will rest with the Regional Water Board.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

But let us say that Regional

Water Quality makes the determination it is still a Class I
facility.

That does not mean you can utilize it as a Class I

facility.
MR. GHIRELLI.:

That's correct.

The overriding decision

would be with the Department of Health Services.

Our role would

be to determine whether or not continued operation as a Class I,
II or III would be detrimental in water quality.
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ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

Okay, and Water Quality

determined that it was a Class I site; you perhaps cannot answer
this question, does the "501" hearing process, which is actually
in the Health Services agencies, does that apply to BKK?

I tend

to doubt that it would.
MR. GHIRELLI:
hearing.

Well, I am not an expert on the "50 1••

All I can say is that our determination in terms of

water quality issues would be one factor that the Department of
Health Services would consider in any action that they might want
to take.
ASSEMBLY~~N

LANCASTER:

Well, as Mrs. Tanner so ably

pointed out at the beginning of this hearing and throughout the
hearing, one of the reasons for the hearing is the determination
of just exactly what the "501" process should do or doesn't do.
MR. GHIRELLI:

With me today are two Regional Board

staff members; Mr. Hank Yacoub, who is the Supervising Water
Resources Control Engineer and Ray Delacourt, a Senior Water
Resources Control Engineer with the Board staff, and they are
available to answer any technical questions that you might have.
I have prepared testimony and have made copies of that testimony
available to you.

I would like to take a few minutes to

summarize my written testimony and then to answer any questions
you may have.
State law gives the Regional Water Quality Control Board
the authority to regulate discharges of waste that could
adversely affect water quality.

The Regional Board adopted waste

discharge requirement for the BKK hazardous waste landfill in
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0
1978.

These requirements were subsequently amended in May of

this year.

In July, the board issued a cleanup and abatement

order to remedy a contaminated spring we found flowing off-site
at the eastern end of the landfill.

BKK has violated the

compliance deadline for that order.

Regional Board staff has

also noted violation over waste discharge requirements during the
last several months and these violations will be the subject of a
special regional board enforcement hearing scheduled for Monday,
October 15.

I have included copies of pertinent staff material

regarding this hearing in my

testi~ony

package which you have.

The committee has asked the Regional Board to respond to
a series of questions regarding three major areas; site
characterization, groundwater monitoring, and leachate movement.
Let me preface my response to these questions by stating
that the Regional Board has been and continues to be an active
participant in the BKK interagency steering Committee chaired by
the Department of Health Services which Mr. Bellomo referred to.
&1

interagency work plan has been prepared by the committee to

guide site characterization; remedial activities needed at the
site.

The regional board staff has been actively involved in

developing the work plan to ensure that all water quality issues
are adequately addressed.

And with respect to the three areas of

concern mentioned previously, I would like to summarize my
written remarks.
First, in the area of site characterization -- Our best
estimate at this point, from the technical staff, the estimate is
that about 60 percent of the on-site work has been completed.
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We

have evidence of site deficiencies in two areas; at the barriers
and also at the southeast sector of the site.

Only limited
(

outside geological mapping has been completed at this time.

We

estimate that the site characterization studies could be
completed in about six months.

The remaining work will focus on

geological mapping, well pumping, and (inaudible-coughing).

The

information from these studies will be used to assess the rate
direction of contaminate flow, the extent, if any, of off-site
contamination and the corrective actions that will be needed at
the site.

And it is the results of these studies that will weigh

very heavily on the board's decision as to whether or not that
facility should remain as a Class I, II, III or even operated at
all.
With respect to groundwater monitoring -- the regional
board's waste discharge requirements call for routine monitoring
of some 30 wells located primarily at the two barrier systems.
Several off-site •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GHJRELLI:

••• monitoring by the board?

They are monitored routinely by BKK and

the Regional Water Quality Control Board also takes periodic
samples and runs analyses as well to sort of cross check.
Several off-site wells have been constructed, as you've
heard Mr. Bellomo say, at the south and southeast portions of the
landfill.

Sampling of these wells is now in progress.
The interagency work plan in addition calls for more

wells in three areas.

Operating wells to monitor background

water quality, a ring of monitoring wells surrounding the
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hazardous waste disposal area and wells to monitor potential
pathways where off-site migration of contaminants might occur.

0

And we expect the installation of these systems to take place
over the next three or four months.
With respect to leachate movement, we have evidence that
leachate has migrated beyond the Class I boundary around the
barriers that are now in place.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

•

Where is that?

Could you indicate

where that was?
MR. GHIRELLI:

Sure, Mr. Delacourt from the board staff.

MR. RAY DELACOURT:
here.

The barriers -- Barrier I is right

This is the older of the two barriers and Barrier II is

right here.

Barrier I is in a natural spring channel that goes

this direction and Barrier II is a smaller spring channel that
used to go that direction.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

But that is the one where it is

leaching out beyond the barriers, is that correct?
MR. DELACOURT:

Barrier I, that's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

And it is not off of BKK

property.
MR. DELACOURT:

It is going in that direction.

It is

going in this direction.
ASS~MBLYMAN

LANCASTER:

MR. DELACOURT:

That's correct.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GHIRELLI:

Following the channel.

All right.

Thank you.

Yes, as Mr. Lancaster said, we have no

evidence that the leachate has migrated off the BKK site, but it
has migrated beyond •.•
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ASSEMBLYHAN LANCASTER:
MR. GHIRELLI:

••. Class I boundary.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GHIRELLI:
different things.

••• the barrier.

What do you find in that water?

It is a soup basically of a lot of

There are organics, there are metals,

inorganic constituents ••• Ray, can you elaborate?
MR. DELACOURT:

We have analyses that essentially, we

are talking volatile organics, there are vinyl chlorides, there
are trichloroethylene, dichloroethylene and all of the variety of
volatile organics, and it would be a chemistry lecture to go
through all of them, essentially.
there.
expect.

But they are pretty much

There hasn't been as much heavy metal as one might
There are a few heavy metals, but not in very great

concentration.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I understand that -- could you, on

that map, indicate where the Industry Hills Landfill was?
MR. DELACOURT:

Industry Hills was about here.

And the

landfill, I believe, was sitting north of the Industry Hotel, so
it is a considerable distance.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I see.

So we were told this morning

that there was all sorts of waste that was disposed of in that
particular landfill as well.

So that's a very difficult

situation with two landfills that we're talking about within the
very, you know, close proximity.
MR. GHIRELLI:

Well, yes and no.

The distance that

we're talking about; one, it's doubtful that one would affect the
other one.

The distances are just too great for groundwater

contaminations to meet.
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0
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
interrupt you.

0

Okay, all right.

I'm sorry to

Before we go on, just a minute, I would like to

introduce City Councilwoman, Nancy Manners.
to do that a long time ago.

I'm sorry, I meant

Thank you for being here, Nancy.

Go

ahead.

0

ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Sally, before you leave that point, I

think Mr. Gastellum certainly intimated that the water, the
groundwater was over a mile-and-a-half away and that the closest

•

groundwater was through the Industry Hill site, that's how the
Industry Hill site came out.

I mean clearly the implication was,

could be BKK, could be Industry Hills, in either event it's a
mile-and-a-half away from that.
MR. GHIRELLI:

Mr. Hill, that's correct.

The closest

usable groundwater is about a mile-and-a-half, two miles away.

I

think the closest well used for disposable purposes is about two
miles away.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

In the direction through Industry

Hills?
MR. GHIRELLI:

In that general direction, yes.

Obviously our concern is, even if it's very shallow groundwater,
it's being contaminated.

It is not being used for any purpose.

The likelihood that that is a pathway could eventually carry this
material along to a usable groundwater base and this is the
subject of our concern.
ASSEMBLY~i

LANCASTER:

stop it from continuing?

Are you pumping it out now to

Are they pumping it out at the end of

the stream or something?
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MR. GHIRELLI:

Yes, the barriers are constructed, a

combination of the dynamic system of barrier itself and well
pumping extraction

~ystems,

so that as any liquid reaches the

barrier, it's stopped and then these extractionals float back
out.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

You made the statement that

there was no groundwater contamination off the site at this
point.
f.1R. GHIRELLI:

Well, that we are aware of, yes.

We're

conducting some studies right now.
ASSEMBLY~~N

LANCASTER:

Okay, that was my next question.

Are you tesLing off the site to see how far that actually has
leached?
MR. GHIRELLI:

Yes, in fact our staff is out there today

monitoring the new wells that were placed off-·si te.
ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GHIRELLI:

Thank you.

Where are they?

As I understand it, the EPA wells are,

one of them is located here at Lynn Court, there's another one I
believe right in this area, there's a couple of thent right here
and there's one up here.
ASSEMBLYf.mN

LM~CASTER:

What about Barrier 1 where it ' s

through the barrier?
MR. GHIRELLI:

There are a number of wells at the

barrier systems that are monitored.
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MR. DELACOURT:

There's got to be, gee, 15 to 20 wells

around Barrier I; 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 9, 19, 21, 18 and several of
0

those are multiple conduit wells.
MR. GHIRELLI:

We have found contaminated water in both

an off-site well and an off-site spring and we believe at this

0

time that the water is being contaminated by migrating landfill
gas.

•

Maybe I should stop for a moment to make the distinction

here between leachate and contaminated waters.

It's important in

terms of the kinds of remedial methods that may be required .
Leachate is the liquid that is generated in the site itself.
Contaminated water could be clean groundwater, rainwater that's
sitting perched around the site that gas will migrate through and
leave behind some of the contaminants and that's why it's
contaminated, so it's not a direct conduit of leachate leaving
the site.

It just happens as an artifact.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It could be clean water going,

passing through the gas •.•
MR. GHIRELLI:

That's correct.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

••• and picking up some of the

contamination from there and then going into the water.
MR. GHIRELLI:

That's correct and that's why it's

important to understand how the site characterization work must
go hand-in-hand with the remedial work because you have a gas
migration problem that will be solved; but at the same time, you
have to recognize the water quality impact that such a system
might have, so they are very closely tied together.
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However,

regardless of the source of the contamination or the mechanism of
pollutant transport, a body of shallow, polluted water exists
adjacent to the site which must be removed.

We have directed BKK

to develop and implement a leachate management plan to correct
this particular problem.

The ultimate solution to the leachate

problem will likely be a collection of storage and treatment
system that will ultimately dispose of the liquids to a sanitary
source system, but that again is just one option of many that
will be considered in the next months.
That is the conclusion of my formal remarks.
Mr. Delacourt is at the map and can perhaps highlight a couple of
the things that we've mentioned here and will be available to
answer any questions you might have.

Ray, could you point out

again the barriers and where we did find the contaminated spring?
MR. DELACOURT:

Okay.

As I mentioned before, Barrier I

is here, Barrier II is here, Brandeis Spring, which is the
subject of our clean-up and abatement order, is in this channel
right here.

Right at this point, behind these two houses, is a

run-off catch basin and if naturally left to run, the water would
go down this channel into the subcontrol catch basin.

The water

itself, when we discovered it, was only going down, partly down
the hill, and was reabsorbed back into the hill, but this is
about 100 yards east of the site at this point.

This is, as I

said, the Miranda Spring, which is the subject of our clean-up
and abatement order.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

How's BKK responding to your

clean-up and abatement order?
MR. DELACOURT:

Miranda, BKK brought a small drill rig

and they had to drop it in here by helicopter in order to save
the countryside, here, without going in with big trucks or
however else they wanted to come in.

They drop in here with

their helicopter and they're drilling small extraction wells with
an idea of just essentially drawing out the aquifer, just
starving it and then pumping the water back up onto the site and
handling it as they do other on-site liquids.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. DELACOURT:

So they are responding then?

Yes · they are, but they haven't completed

the work at this time.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

What about the violations that you

mentioned?
MR. GHIRELLI:

Yes, one of the violations that we will

be referring to in our hearing is a violation of the compliance
(inaudible) for the work at this particular strength.

We had

originally set an August 15th compliance deadline which BKK did
not meet and we feel that additional work is necessary to correct
that situation.

The staff physician at this time is recommending

that the board, the regional board, adopt a "cease and desist
order" which would refer this matter to the Attorney General for
appropriate penalties.
ASSEMBLYMAll HILL:
a scenario.

I've got a question or maybe more of

December 1st BKK closes down, no longer takes
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Class I.

The pressure, I think, is going to be tremendous to

have that reduced to a Class II landfill, because if that forces
the City of West Covina and the county, who is going to do the
regulation, then I think the political pressure will be such that
t.he City of West Covina will no longer be able to say, "We'll
even allow you to continue offering us a Class II line."

Have

you guys looked at that potential down the road and what -- I
have to assume BKK is going to want to save Class I landfill and
to ••.
MR. GHIRELLI:

Mr. Hill, it's certainly something we've

been thinking about for a long time, but what we have been saying
all along is that we need the technical information, the data
that the psychocharacterization study will provide to us and,
once we have that information and are able to make a
determination as to whether or not continued operation of the
site as a Class II facility will exacerbate the problems that are
there now, that would lean very heavily on our determination, I
should say the board's determination, as to whether or not that
facility should remain with a Class I designation will be
downgraded.
ASSEMBLY1-1AN HILL:

You know, for what reason, if we're

no longer, and clearly that's the direction that the site's
going, it's no longer going to be a toxic landfill, what possible
reason would there be to continue it as a Class I site?
MR. GHIRELLI:

At this point I don't know, because

essentially the decision to not accept hazardous wastes defacto
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makes them a Class II facility and it's really a paper exercise
as to whether or not the waste discharge requirements, we'll say
Class I or Class II, any decision that would be made on that
would be made at a public hearing.

Any amendment to waste

discharge requirements and every decision on waste discharge
requirements must be done in a public hearing.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

But it still seems to me that the

decision, the practical decision, whether or not, you know, the
ultimate decision, but it seems to me the real crux of the whole
situation is going to come down to, after December 1st, how that
site is classified.

If it's classified as a Class II landfill,

there's not a doubt in my mind that within six months, there will
not be any refuse going into that site.
MR. GHIRELLI:

Well, if that's the decision that the

data tells us is the right one •••
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

But what I'm trying to get at based

on what, what are you guys looking at to make a determination
whether it should be Class I or Class II, if we're no longer
accepting hazardous waste.
MR. GHIRELLI:

Well, the determination there would be,

is continued operation of the facility as Class II operation
going to pose a threat to water quality?
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

Okay, so are you just automatically

assuming that the Class I designation will automatically be
removed?
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MR. GHIRELLI:

I'm not that worried about the Class II

designution because I know Nancy Manners from the city council is
going to take care of that.

I have more experience about how to

get from I to II, and that seems to me that's going to be your
there will be a decision of the board to discuss at a public
hearing whether or not facilities should have this waste
discharge requirement amended to remove the Class I designation.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Could •••

ASSEMBLYMAN LANCASTER:

I'm sorry, I do have to leave.

I'm about 20 minutes late but I want to thank you for the
opportunity of allowing me to be here with you.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
Lancaster.

I appreciate your being here, Mr.

Could Mr. Delacourt point out which area is found to

be sandstone and where is the bedrock?

We assumed, not we, but

it was assumed that everything was bedrock under there and now
it's found that there is sandstone, right?
MR. DELACOURT:

Well, I think you're referring to the

coring that was done and what's commonly referred to as the C3
area.

There is a series of four holes drilled around the site

and I'm not 100 percent sure exactly, I can't say that this is
one core and this is the other, but essentially it's in this
area.

Core hole II was found to be, show competent bedrock, core

hole IV was shown to have competent bedrock.

Core hole III in

the middle was found to have approximately 200 feet of sand and
that was totally unexpected, and so we're thinking that there's a
possibility of being about a 1400 foot window through here.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. DELACOURT:

I see.

And we have geologists here if you want

more precise information.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
sure we're all interested.

0

Yes, I would.

I'm interested, I'm

It goes into that particular area

between the two points that you say were bedrock.

How far up

does that sand go into the site and how far out at the site?

Do

you have .any idea?

•

MR. DEIACOURT:
direction.

We don't have corings in either

I don't believe we can determine that.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

0

MR. GHIRELLI:

I see.

I'd like to introduce Jim Parsons, who is

a geologist with the State Water Resources Control Board and
serves as a technical consultant to the regional board staff in
our investigations.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. GHIRELLI:

Jim Parsons?

Jim Parsons.

MR. JIM PARSONS:

As Ray Delacourt already mentioned,

there is a core hole right in this general area here that just
barely went through a part of a sandstone bed.

This one right in

this area that went down several hundred feet, and then down here
that did not cover any.

Where there's been some very fragmentary

geologic mapping compiled down in this area that suggests that
the sand goes over in this area, here, but that. has not been
carefully evaluated as far as I know.

This way, of course, we

can't tell because it's underneath waste.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Is it important to know?

I would

th1nk that it would be important to know if there is sandstone
outside of the site and important to know if there is sandstone
below the site, to be, to have any knowledge as to whether there
would be leachates from the site out into the, outside of the
site.
MR. PARSONS:

I totally agree.

That is one of the many

answers that need yet to be answered in the continuing on- site

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Are we attempting to find those

answers?
MR. PARSONS:

That is one of the goals.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. PARSONS:

I see.

The work plan does have provisions in it

for off-site geological mapping, but we are not very far along in
· that particular aspect.
CHAIRWO~~N

TANNER:

Do you have any other questions?

Do

you have any other information that you can give us that ..•
MR.

GH~RELLI:

I have provided the committee with some

good testimony and extensive background material.

If there's

further information that's needed, I'll be happy to provide it.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
your being here.

All right, we appreciate very much

Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

I suggest you draw the wagons in a

circle because there's quite a decision pending.
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0
MR. GHIRELLI:
speak.

0

I wish Mrs. Reed could have been here to

Thank you.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right, our next witness is

Edward Camarena, Director of Enforcement for the South Coast Air
Quality Management District.
0

Did I pronounce your name

correctly?
MR. EDWARD CAMARENA:

Yes, it's close enough.

Good

afternoon, Madam Chairwoman and members of the committee, my name
is Edward Camarena.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

Thank you.

I'm Director of Enforcement for the South

Coast Air Quality Management District.

Mr. Stuart, our Executive

Officer, was unable to be here this afternoon and expresses his
regrets.

He's at a meeting of air pollution control officers

back east where he is sharing our experiences on this very
subject with air pollution control officers from other agencies.
I've been asked to discuss the ambient monitoring
program in and around BKK and as soon as (equipment failure.) ·
Basically, what I'll be discussing is the monitoring program for
vinyl chloride that was begun in June of 1981.
recent deterioration in air quality

a~d

I'll review the

the reasons that we feel

that this has occurred and I'll also be discussing what we are
doing about it as an agency working with the other agencies and
Interagency Task Force.

We'll discuss our participation and the

efforts to assess and correct the gas migration problem that was
uncovered in July of this year, and I'll also be describing some
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other activities, studies, and actions that we have been involved
in.
I would like to in the second (inaudible) graph, point
out that there are a number of ways that gas, gases that are
generated within the landfill car, move off of the landfill.
First of all, they rnay escape through the surfaces, the vertical
slopes, the horizontal surfaces to the ambient atmosphere.

They

may escape through leaks in the gas collection system or if the
flares should go out, that is another potential source.

In

addition, there's the underground gas migration that we're now
familiar with and yet another route for off-site gases, which
deteriorate air quality is gases, that may be carried through
liquids, leachate and other liquids, either subsurface or on the
surface which may then release their gases to gas here.

While

monitoring has included testing of all of these, principally
ambient air monitoring in the outside air that people breathe,
but in addition, in order to carry out our activities we have
assisted the other agencies that we work with in testing of the
underground wells, the testing of the subsurface gases for our
own purposes, testing of the gas collection ljnes and the ±lares
and assisted the Department of Health Services in the testing of
the gas in the homes in (inaudible).
The third slide ••.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
mom~nt.

I'd like to stop you for just a

The responsibility of monitoring the air or the ambient

air or the air within the homes, did that lie ln your
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responsibility or was that the Department of Health Services'
responsibility?

0

You know, what I'm concerned about is that a

state agency and the state agencies have been very much involved
because the citizens have been demanding some kind of action for
a number of years now and, you know, I'm curious as to why the

0

gas company, not a state agency, discovered that there was a
serious problem.
MR. CAMARENA:

The monitoring of the ambient outside air

is clearly within our jurisdiction and responsibility.

State law

makes the South Coast Air Quality Management District the primary
regulatory agency for nonlocal air pollution sources so the
ambient air quality is clearly within our responsibility.

The

gas migration is another matter that we believe is within the
jurisdiction of the state South Waste Management Board and
because this is a hazardous waste facility, the State Department
of Health Services.

We have, however, worked very closely with

these other agencies since 1981 when we took the initiative to
create an Interagency Task Force to address what we then
perceived to be the problem which was odorous at that time.

At

that time, we had not yet identified the toxic nature of the air
emissions.

When the, I'm sorry, I'm not sure that that totally

answers your question.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Well, I really was wondering whose

responsibility it was to find that there was a problem within
those homes.

Apparently, it was the Department of Health

Services.
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~1R .

CAMARENA:

We believe that it was •••

CHAIR\'JOMAN TANNER :
MR. CAMARENA:

Or the Solid Waste Management •••

... Solid Waste Management Board and the

Department of Health Services.

Nevertheless, we have provided

test data and provided that data to those agencies which had
assisted them in this, in assessing the problem and correcting
the problem.
~Then

we formed a task force in early 1981, the effort

then was to address the odor problem and as a result of those
efforts, the gas collection, the then existing gas collection
system was enhanced with additional wells at BKK and in the
testing of that gas collection and incineration system, we
discovered high concentrations of vinyl chloride and immediately
notified the other agencies, notified the public and (inaudible)
the Task Force; the Department of Health Services ordered the
cessation of any further dumping of vinyl chloride containing the
waste at the landfill.

The vinyl chloride that is currently

being emitted is the result of the material that was deposited
prior to June of 1981.

As a result of that finding, additional

collection wells and flaring of the gases were required.
In 1982, in response to our own concerns and concerns
raised by the public, we, together with the Department of Health
Services and the California Air Resources Board, engaged in a
standard monitoring project to elaborate the monitoring that we
began in 1981 when we discovered the vinyl chloride.

In 1981, we

monitored vinyl chloride and the ambient air around the BKK.
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In

0

'82, we added to that analyses about six or seven other toxic air
contaminants to determine whether or not these were also a
0

problem.

The data was reviewed by the Department of Health

Services and they concluded that while there was no immediate
health endangerment, there was indeed an excess cancer risk of
0

five in 100,000.

We felt that this was not acceptable and that

the data, the results, the review of the Health Department
warranted further action on our part.

That further action

resulted in a petition for an abatement order.

An abatement

order is an administrative order that is issued by our hearing
board which is an independent, quasi-judicial body, which if the
order is violated, tend to result in up to a $6,000 a day fine.
That petition for an abatement order requested a further
enhancement of the gas collection and incineration system.
Immediately upon the filing of that petition, BKK met with us and
embarked upon a program of complying with the requirements of
that petition even though the petition had not yet been heard by
the hearing board.

What followed after that was that BKK

requested continuances of the hearings which were granted by the
hearing board because, in part, the actions that we were seeking
were being taken by BKK.

That further enhancement of the gas

collection system was essentially completed by January of this
year and on the 19th of March, after verifying that these things
had been done, we withdrew the petition before the hearing board.
tie had intended to go back this summer and repeat the extended
monitoring study that we did in 1982 in order to determine what
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improvements in air quality, with respect to the other
contaminants, had been accomplished as a result of the various
enhancements of the gas collection system.

The gas migration

problem that was discovered in July and the subsequent evacuation
and other activities drained our resources and that planned
expanded marketing study was put on the back burner.
CHAIRWOIY'.IAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

Drained your resources.

While the gas migration problem was not

specifically within our responsibility and jurisdiction, the
other agencies that do have primary responsibility in that area
needed additional resources, needed our expertise and we did
provide personnel which we were involved in the early testing of
the homes with our loaned test equipment.

We did our own work in

making sure that as far as possible that the activities to drill
wells and and hook up new lines to gas collection systems to
collect the migrating gases were being done

e~peditiously,

but

also in a manner to minimize the air emissions during that very
early act i vity.
In addition, we provided a fault assurance effort to
make sure tha t the laboratory analyses being conducted by private
laboratories is good data and there were other activities along
those liu es.

Our inspectors were working along with the

inspectors from other agencies, day and night, and so this
activity was time-expanded1 the monitoring study had to be
delayed to address the immediate urgent problem, again, of
migration.
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I'd like to talk about the ambient air quality.
go to Slide 5-A, please.

0

We can

Slide 5-A is a slide showing the air

quality trends with respect to vinyl chloride.
left-hand side with June of 1981.

It starts on the

The vertical axis is the

number of days in each of those months when the air quality

0

standard for vinyl chloride was exceeded in each of those months.
Here we see that in June of 1981, the first amount we started
monitoring, the air quality standard was exceeded 16 days.

•

average for that year was about 15 days a month in 1981.

The
The

average drop in 1982 as a result, we believe, of the improved
efforts on the gas collection system to six days a month.

In

1983 we saw an average of two days a month and, in fact, there
were three months during which there were no exceedences at all,
and we were quite pleased with the progress of the air quality
improvement.
That concluded our stock in late 1983, and the air
quality has essentially been degrading for a variety of reasons.
One of these is the unusual weather that we have had, especially
this past summer.

Another one of the factors which contributed

to the deterioration of air quality were the site
characterization activities.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
~m.

CAMARENA:

Can you describe why that ••••

There were wells that were being drilled

in order to characterize the site, and in not every instance was
every precaution taken by BKK to make sure that during the
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drilling of the wells, that the air emissions were controlled as
much as possible.

We found situations as uncovered trenches t h at

allowed emissions to escape through the atmosphere.
Mr. Gastellum mentioned that unfortunate incident where
an employee of one of the other agencies ordered a gas collection
monitor to be broken in order to move a drilling rig into an area
where the well had to be drilled and failed to assure that the
gas collection system was reconnected immediately.

As it turned

out, that line remained broken for at least a day that we could
determine.
These are the kinds of activities that we engage in.
The pumping of water (inaudible, coughing) also increased the
porosity of the soils in certain areas and allowed gases to move
into areas where they previously had not been.

So all of these

activities to characterize the site where they were not properly
thought out, or where people failed to do their job, did result
in some of the exceedences.

We believe also that in the

extraordinary effort that followed the discovery of the gas
migration in July to drill additional wells, to connect them up
to the gas collection system, that during that time there were
incidents where there were emissions to the atmosphere which
resulted in exceedences of the air quality standards.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I am going to interrupt you and ask

you a question that's really not related to BKK, but has come to
my mind since you're talking and describing these problems.

The

McColl site -- the cleanup has begun and if that material is dug
out of the McColl site, doesn't that cause a problem with the
air?
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0

MR. CAMARENA:

Yes, that is a very real potential, and

in fact, early on the district took a position in opposition to
0

the excavation of that landfill site.

Based on prior experiences

at the (inaudible) company's excavation of the (inaudible) site
and the excavation of the Kellogg site in Yorba Linda, we were of
the opinion that it could not be done without a very severe
impact on the immediate community.

In those other two instances,

despite the best efforts of the Department of Health Services and
ourselves to require every mitigation measure that was then
known, there were some 500 or 600 odor complaints, with respect
to each of those excavations and they were all identical.

People

were complaining of headaches, and nausea, and these are
complaints that I personally can verify because I was there and I
did also experience it.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So there is a real problem, isn't

there?
MR. CAMARENA:
problem.

Yes, indeed there is.

A real potential

we believe that the technologies that have been

developed and with that it may be done with a much, much less
impact on the community.

There was a pilot test excavation

conducted over a year ago at McColl to verify some of these
technologies and we were very skeptical.

Based on the results of

those pilot studies, we now believe that at great expense, it can
be done •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Without. endangering the

environmental. ••
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MR. CAMARENA:

Right.

And that is one of the reasons

that that excavation will run in excess of $20 million and
require more than a year to complete.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Yes.

And so every time -- it is

sort of like a balloon, every time you punch it in one spot, it
puffs out in another spot and causes another problem.
MR. CAMARENA:

Everything is connected to everything

else.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

In the meantime that water isn't

pumped, then there is an overflow.

I know that isn't your line,

but there is an overflow, or I would assume that there is an
overflow and then there is danger of contaminating the water; the
groundwater.

But, if it is pumped then there is the danger of

gas contamination.
MR. CAMARENA:

That is why the correction of a problem

such as BKK is so very complex.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

What is the best state of the art

method?
MR. CAMARENA:

\vell, we believe that the drilling and

the pumping of wells can be done with appropriate controls to
collect the gases and bring them off as the gases are being
emitted during the activity of the drilling of the well.

We

believe that through appropriate location of gas collection
wells, that the increased porosity of the soil which results in
the pumping of the liquids, can be controlled.

So it is not an

impossible task, but it is something that requires careful
attention to details to make sure that none of the environment,
air quality, water quality, or anything is endangered.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

The plan that Mr. Gastellum

mentioned and as indicated on the map there, is that a plan that
you people agree with?

I don't mean officially, but is that more

or less •••
MR. CAMARENA:

••• More or less, yes.

One of the areas

that we discussed this morning may, did have some deficiencies in
that it was not sufficiently specific to allow us to give our
approval.

And those comments were provided to the interagency

committee that was reviewing the plan.
We believe, however, that the detail that has been
provided by BKK and their apparent willingness to follow through
on this, will result in a project that will accomplish the task
of correcting the problem and make sure that all of the
environmental concerns are taken care of, at least as far as our
expertise can tell us and that is limited to air quality.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right, you can continue.

Do you

have more testimony?
MR. CAMARENA:

Yes, I do.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

All right.

I mentioned some of the reasons for the

deterioration of quality and the one that I didn't discuss was
the grading and other activities in and around the solidification
area.

This, we believe, is another area for us.

There are

emissions which are contributing to the current degradation of
air quality.

And I've mentioned that our assessment that air

quality has degraded is verified by, perhaps, the speed of the
complaints that we have received from the community.
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There has

been a downward movement in the number of complaints that we have
received and in the last few months, there has been a marked
increase.
What are we doing about the deterioration?

One of the

things that all of you are heavily involved in, working with the
other agencies on the gas migration problem this summer, we also
conducted an on-site directional study during the months of July
and August.

And this is shown on slide 6-A.

We had a number of

on-site air monitoring stations to collect air over a 24-hour
pe~iod.
~ample

These collectors were designed for us to collect the air
only from the air from a certain direction because we

wanted to pinpoint where, now, on the site we were getting the
most vinyl chloride {slide 6-B).

And that data suggests that,

these are isoconcentration lines -- the areas toward the center
are the areas with the higher concentration .••
UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:

Can I interrupt you just for a

moment here -- and you're in northern fashion and you are looking
at about this section of BKK.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

All right, thank you.

Thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED VOICE:

Unfortunately, the slide shows it a

little larger.
MR. CAMARENA:

If you look at the centermost oval, the

area in the upper corner is the area of the solidification and
some of the slopes adjacent to that, and we believe that it is
here that we are getting the most of the vinyl chloride which is
leading to the exceedences that we are measuring off-site.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

And then the air flow is

••. down off of the slopes, especially at

night when the air cools and the air drains off of the slopes.
This is the reason why we have a large number of odors in the
evening.
As a result of this, though, we will be working again
through the interagency committee and BKK so that the emphasis on
the gas collection system is first placed in this area where we
think it will do the most good.
With respect to some of the suggested other remedies,
such as capping and baling, I would like to mention that capping
alone, whether it be a 15 foot earthen cap or 10 foot or 16 -capping alone will not resolve the air quality problem, because
that will still have some degree of porosity and it may
exacerbate the gas migration problem because the gas will
continue to be generated and it is going to go someplace.

It

will take the path of the least resistance.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

And then it is likely to go •••

••• push it down, it is going to squirt

out on the sides, so, capping alone is not the answer.
Baling was suggested as a solution.
that that method has been proven anywhere.

I am not certain
Certainly the

compression of organic matter, or compressed organic matter,
ultimately deteriorates.

This is the way Mother Nature provided

these underground pools of petroleum and natural gas.

And so the

building of barriers with bales might simply postpone a problem.
We believe that the positive approach is to collect the gases and
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destroy them because they arc going to continue to be generated.
You cannot fully encapsulate it.

A cap might be appropriate in

conjunction with a gas collection incineration system, and that
will be part of our assessment in our work through the
interagency committee to determine what is the best approach to
addz:ess in the remaining air quality problem.
We are continuing with the ongoing ambient air
monitoring program on vinyl chloride and the assessment program
that I just described and we will take

-~

require the remedial

actions as needed.
I have already mentioned on Slide 7, our activity with
respect to gas migration problems this past summer.
through those.

I won't go

One of the other things that I did mention was

that BKK needed to get hold of a flare in a hurry and at that
time we were able to locate one that was owned by the sanitation
districts and they were good enough to loan the flare and, in
fact, it is still there as a temporary fix.
Slide 8 shows some of the things that we are currently
doing.

We heard some complaints with respect to our servicing of

complaints.

One of the things that we have done is to install an

"800" toll free line so that residents may call us toll free to
lodge their complaints so we can track down the source.
had some problems with this 800 complaint line.

We have

Citizens have

called and there has been no answer and the problems have been
associated with the new system and with the change to the ITT and
it has taken some time to resolve that problem.
has been solved and the line remains operative.
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We believe it

We have also embarked on a 24-hour complaint answering
service.

We have people on standby during all hours of the

evening, 24 hours a day, who can handle complaints from the
public.
We also, through our active bases, are identifying air
quality controls where needed and our mandate requires that we
review the permit applications carefully and that we not issue

•

the permit unless the air quality regulations are complied with •
Further, we have under development proposals to require
fitted controls on all night drills.

Rule 1150.1 and Rule 1150.2

will be coming before our board late this year, or early next.
These rules will apply our experience at BKK to other landfills.
We have an active public information program that exists
as a result of the one-on-one contact with the community in
answering the complaints that affords our people to answer any
questions that the public may have with respect to the air
quality situation or any other information we may have that
relates to the activities of the other agencies participating in
the local community task force and •••
CHAIRWOMAN

That's good.

TAln~ER:

That's important.

You

mean the public can reach you at any time.
MR.

CAMARENA:

Yes.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

The phone number is (800) 572-6306.
Are you making that -- I mean, is

that information -- has that been given to the people of West
Covina, for instance, before this?
MR.

CAMARENA:

It was a news release.

~ve

Do you know?

have published it in the newspapers.

We have advised the people in response to
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complaints that went out on the BOO line, we have advised them,
to the best of my knowledge, that's the limit of it.

Because it

is new, it is not yet in all of the phone books but it will be.
I should point out, again, that when we initiated this,
I think sometime in July and through the month of September, we
did have a lot of operational problems with the lines and many
times people would call the next day very angry, and I would be,
too, because there was no answer and it was not that there was
someone not there, it was just that the line didn't work.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

Yes.

We will be making a study of dust that

may come off of the landfill.

People have raised questions about

the contents of that dust, whether or not there are heavy metals
that may pose a problem.
case.

We do not believe that that is the

Nevertheless, our belief is not fact.

We need to verify

that and we will be doing that within the next month.
We will also, as I mentioned, be repeating our expanded
monitoring study.

Within the month we will be initiating that.

And the purpose of that will be to determine whether or not the
air quality with respect to the other air contaminants has
changed since the 1982 study.

We hopefully will determine which

toxic species are now present and at what concentrations.

We

will, again, as we did before, provide that data to the
Department of Health Services and seek their advice with respect
to the meaning of this information in terms of who may be helped.
And then we will take whatever action might be indicated by their
review of that information, their analysis.
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Another issue that was raised this morning is
BKK not been hit with heavier fines?

0

excellent question.

~rhy

has

I think that that is an

The fact is that state law, presently,

limits our penalties to $1000.

We have, our district has

supported and sought legislation to increase the penalties, but

0

we have not yet been successful.

The bill that you authored,

Madame Chairwoman, on air toxics does set into motion a mechanism
to establish standards and establish regulations and control
requirements on sources of air toxics.

And that bill also has,

also carries, a high penalty of $10,000 per day for violations of
those regulations.

Those regulations are yet in the future and

we must deal with what we have today.
What we have today, we are limited to the public
nuisance law that essentially -- which is admittedly difficult to
enforce because of some ambiguities in the law and because of the
limitation of the $1000 per day penalty.
Nevertheless, our agency has gone forward and is
proposing regulations which would require controls of all
landfills where there is reason to require controls and we hope
to have these before our board for adoption late this year or
early next.
Madame Chairwoman, that takes me to the end of my
comments and if you have any questions, I will be happy to
respond.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
note here and I

~Tould

I appreciate that.

I received a

think that you possibly could answer this.

If solidification is occurring, using virgin soil, why would
vinyl chloride levels rise in that area?
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MR. CAMARENA:

We do not believe that it is -- it is the

movement of soil, the grading of slopes, that is increasing the
porosity of the soil or, rather, opening new channels for the
escape of the gases that are already there.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAMARENA:

Rather than the process?

Yes.

And that is the area of our initial focus

is the control (inaudible) •••
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Hill?

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
Our last witness is Kerry· Jones, who is the Manager of
the Office of Enforcement for the California Waste Management
Board.
MR. KERRY JONES:
CHAIRWO~mN

MR. JONES:

Good afternoon, Madam Chairwoman.

TANNER:

You've been here all day?

! have been here most of the afternoon, but

not this morning.
CHAIRWOMAN
MR. JONES:

~A~nf.ER:

Thank you.

It is -- I am the last speaker and I am kind

of here fulfilling two roles.

Up until the first of July, I was

Manager of our Standards and Regulations Branch and very highly
involved in a study we are doing to develop new standards for the
control of subsurface landfill gas migration.

And I have been

more actively involved in this situation in that role as a
consultant to the Interagency Steering Committee, because it has
been very recent that I became Chief of the Office of
Enforcement.

I can also talk somewhat technically about the gas

migration situation as it occurs today at the landfill and what
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0
the status of the controls are.

I can also talk to you about our

regulatory program and how it works; how it is designed and set
up and I can go to those in any order that you wish in the
interest of the best use of your time.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

I might have a suggestion.

I think

we are pretty well up-to-date on the status of the gas migration
problem.

I

am more curious in how the Solid Waste Management

Board fits in with the Water Control Board and the Air Resources
Control Board or the DOllS, and how the jurisdiction ought to line
up.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

And when this is no longer a Class I

site, then it is a site that you would be responsible for, right?
MR. JONES:

Yes.

The way that solid waste laws are set up that created
the Solid Waste Management Board is that we were created in 1972
and at that time were required to develop state minimum standards
for the handling and disposal of nonhazardous solid waste in this
state.

And at the same time, every local, county, and local

government was required to develop a solid waste management plan
as to how they were going to handle these wastes in their county.
So, those standards were developed shortly after the board was
created.

But we didn't have an enforcement program to go along

with the state minimum standards at that time.

That law was

passed in 1976 and in the legislation that set up the enforcement
program, it was stated specifically that it was the legislative
intent that the primary responsibility for enforcing those
standards rest with local government.
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So, it set up a program

where each local governing body was required to designate an
agency that they wished to be the local enforcement agency within
their jurisdiction.
In developing the state minimum standards originally,
there were certain standards that were set up as health related
standards and we got input from the State Department of Health
Services on those.

The health matters were related to the

traditional nonhazardous waste things like fly breeding and
rodent population and that sort of thing; the sanitation types of
health standards.

Other standards were set up as safety and

environmental type standards.
the control of landfill gases.

Among those was the standard for
The City Council of West Covina

designated, in their jurisdiction, that for the health related
standards that the local enforcement agency would be the County
Department of Health Services for the County of Los Angeles and
their local enforcement agency for the nonhealth standards,

al~

the others, was the Environmental Services Division of the Cit.y
of West Covina, itself.

So they are the local enforcement agency

for the primary role in enforcing the state minimum standards.
Now the state board has kind of an oversight role in the
enforcement of those standards, and this role was more
specifically defined in recent legislation authored by Senator
Presley, which defines our role in terms of overseeing the local
enforcement agencies.

Prior to that legislation, if the local

enforcement agency wasn't fulfilling its role properly, we had no
real recourse.

The Presley legislation set up a program where we

can now, upon finding a cause, withdraw the designation of a
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0
local enforcement agency and take over the enforcement role
ourselves.

0

Currently, we have five budgeted positions for part of
the Presley program, which requires us to inspect each facility
on a frequent basis.

0

And there are some 900 facilities in the

state that we have five people to do the inspecting for.

We have

a couple of other positions budgeted to do primarily the
oversight role in reviewing permits prepared by local enforcement
agencies and so forth.

And those two staff positions oversee the

activities of roughly 120 local enforcement agencies throughout
the state.
As a result, we don't get to spend as much attention and
time with each local enforcement agency as we would like to.

We

also do technical assistance and have some positions available to
help those local enforcement agencies when they request it in
enforcing the standards.
So basically, the lead role in enforcement lies with the
local agencies.
ASSEMBLYMAN HILL:

And what happens if the status

changes from a Class I landfill to Class II?
MR. JONES:

Okay, under the state law right now, a site

which accepts substantial quantities of both hazardous and
nonhazardous disposal wastes, such as the BKK Landfill does, is
required to get both a permit from the Department of Health
Services and a solid waste facility's permit from the local
enforcement agency.

The classification as of I, II, or III is,

as was mentioned earlier, determined by the Regional Water
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Quality Control Board and that is basically a geologic
description of the site which sets up what kinds of wastes they
can handle without presenting water pollution problems.
Our board generally uses that guideline in terms of
sites that are nonhazardous sites over which we have jurisdiction
and sites which strictly take hazardous wastes, which we don't
do.

The classification is done by them and then a Class II

facility is generally one that would be required to get a permit
from us.

So the site, BKK, right now has the solid waste

facility's permit.

It could lose its Class I status and still

would have that solid waste facility's permit, which was issued
to it by the City of West Covina.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Do you review it if such a thing

would happen?
MR. JONES:
program.

Yes.

We would hav.e a review of that

There is a provision in the law that requires every

solid waste facility permit to be reviewed every five years and
it could be brought up for review whenever there is a major
change in operation.

There would, no doubt, have to be some kind

of modification to the permit, if nothing more than inserting
prohibition against accepting hazardous waste.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Any further questions?

I am sure

that there are questions that we both could ask, but I think that
we have listened to so much testimony and have absorbed so much
that we c.re like the sponge and we can only take so much.
MR. JONES:

Okay.

Thank you.
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0
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
it.

Thank you very much.

I appreciate

We have a little bit of -- well, I planned on closing the

meeting at 4:00.

If there is someone who has something, in the

audience, something to offer that might be valuable to this
committee, please come forward.

If not, I want to thank the City

of West Covina for allowing us to use their chambers.

When we

first requested, you were already tied up with -- somebody was
meeting here, as I understand, and somehow we were able to get
the chambers and I appreciate it.

It is certainly much more

convenient for the citizens to meet here than in another city.
appreciate your testimony and the witnesses that were here.

I

I

hope that ... I'm certain that we have some ideas and I can see
that we're in ••• that we have sort of a consensus feeling among us
members of the Legislature that certain kinds of legislation
should be introduced.

I'm hoping that ••. I don't know what the

answer is for the people who have been evacuated and moved back
in.

I think we should explore the possibilities, if there are

possibilities, of helping those people.

I certainly think that

there has to be some tightening up of the "501", the law that
developed the "501" hearing.
"501 " hearing is clear.

Obviously, the criteria for the

It's a decision that the department can

make if they choose to, and I think it should be a requirement

j f

there is a concern about health and safety with the public and
environment.
There were a number of other suggestions made by people,
witnesses, that t think are very good.
we'll take those all into consideration.
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The suggestions, I think,
I'm hoping ... you

understand that we don't--that we can't--introduce legislation
until December, and then actively move legislation through
committees until

afte~ Janua~y, _ but · we

oversight committee.
will

conti~u~,.

will continue to act as an

Where the state agencies are concerned, we

and _I hate "-to use this word, but harp and demand

that action be taken quickly and reasonably and responsibly.
I appreciate your being here today.
much.

The meeting is adjourned.
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Thank you very

